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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1.800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 24. 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, Division of Economic Stability,
to amend existing contracts with the Contractors listed below to provide statewide coverage for
workforce development services focused on assisting current, transitioning, and former
participants of the New Hampshire Employment Program and Temporary Assistance for Needy
Families participants in obtaining career advancement support services and opportunities that will
assist them in achieving continued upward economic mobility, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance in additional services areas, as a result of a Request
for Proposal, by increasing the total price limitation by $2,936,485 from ̂ ,923,889 to $7,860,374
with no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2026, effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 83% Federal Funds. 17% General Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on April 10. 2024, item
#15.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Manchester

Community
Resource

Center, Inc.
(Manchester,

NH)

#153471

Manchester &

Nashua Region
and Claremont &

Keene Region

$1,825,347 $1,507,232 $3,332,579

Southern New

Hampshire
Services. Inc.

(Manchester,
NH)

#177198

Concord &

Laconia Region.
Rochester &

Seacoast

Region, and
Berlin, Conway,
& Littleton

Region

$3,098,542 $1,429,253 $4,527,795

Total: $4,923,889 $2,936,485 $7,860,374
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Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to expand the scope of services to include the Berlin,
Claremont, Conway. Keene, and Littleton regions. The Department' re-solicited for these
designated regions, to ensure statewide coverage, through a competitive bid process. The original
action ensures coverage for the Concord, Laconia, Manchester, Nashua. Rochester, and
Seacoast regions.

The Contractors provide workforce development services focused on assisting current,
transitioning, and former New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP), Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families (TANF) participants in obtaining career advancement support services and
opportunities that will assist them in achieving continued upward economic mobility. The
Department seeks to support individuals in gaining skills, education, and workplace experience
to continue their career exploration aixl success, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect and reducing
the need for public assistance.

The workforce development services include:

• Workforce Development Services to assist current NHEP/TANF participants, in
obtaining career advancement, job development and opportunities that will assist
them in achieving continued upward economic mobility.

•  Post TANF Services for participants who closed TANF cash assistance, and
NHEP dues to earnings, from the lime of cash closure for a one(1 j year period and
those participating in the Earned Income Disregard pilot program, to increase
employment retention, reduce recidivism, support ongoing training and learning
opportunities that will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction
of obstacle to gaining and retaining employment efforts to avoid employment loss.

•  Pilot Disregard Services for those actively participating in the 75% or 100%
earned income disregard, and for participants who remain eligible for TANF cash.
When participants are no longer eligible for TANF cash, they will be eligible for
Post TANF Services.

The number of Program Sites is determined by and equal to the number of District Offices
assigned to the region identified in the contract Direct services are provided to participants by
offering services in a family-friendly office or meeting space in each district office catchment area
with the highest concentration of participants within the geographical region including the
Contractor's offices, local libraries, community colleges, community resource centers, One Stop
Centers, and other establishments that are convenient to the participants. Services may be
delivered individually, in a group setting, via remote workshops, by telephone, and using email
and other technologies, including video conferencing.

NHEP focuses on closing skill gaps by ensuring job seekers gain and increase
competencies, earning the credentials that businesses seek of employees. Additionally, NHEP
promotes the upskilling of employees to enhance their eligibility for higher wage positions, while
addressing workforce development and overcoming obstacles to employment and promotions.
By doing so, NHEP aims to build a skilled pipeline of qualified employees to meet the needs of
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businesses In New Hampshire, while fostering self-confidence and preparing participants to be
valued employees.

Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024, 2025, and
2026.

■The Department wiii monitor services by;
•  Participating in on-site monitoring conducted by the Department on an annual basis,

unless otherwise required by the Department for the purpose of ensuring
deliverables are met.

•  Completing on-site monitoring including, staff Interviews, participant reviews, review
of program curricula and assigned activities, as applicable, review of documentation
and data in the New HEIGHTS system.

The Department selected Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposal (RFP) that was re-posted on the Department's website from March 5, 2024
through March 29. 2024. The Department received four (4) responses that were received and
scored by a team of qualified individuals. This was not a low cost award; the selected Contractors
received the highest combined technical and cost score. The Scoring Sheets are attached.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, recipients of TANF
would not have Job Development Services available to them to gain support for their economic
independence and mobility and meet the needs of New Hampshire employers. The Department
would not be able to provide ongoing employment support to participants, which may result in an
increase In public benefrts and a reduction in the number of families that could be given
opportunities to achieve economic independence. .

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.
In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds

will not be requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted.

LoKh. Weaver
Commissioner

.WhjiU«

The Dtpartment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opporluniliea for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-45-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES-DEHS,

BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

State Fiscal

Year
Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Proqram Services TBD $  218.645.00 $  55,130.00 S  273,775.00

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Proqram Services TBD $ 1,382.895.00 $  670,120.00 $ 2,053,015.00

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Proqram Services TBD $ 1.497,002.00 $  704,003.00 $ 2,201,005.00

Sub Total $ 3,098,542.00 $ 1,429,253.00 $ 4,527,795.00

Manchester Communltv Resource Center. Inc.

State Fiscal

. Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Proqram Services TBD $  183,536.00 $  13,652.00 $  197.188.00

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Proqram Services TBD $  734,142.00 $  753,904.00 $ 1,488,046.00

2026 074-500589 Contracts for Proqram Serx^ces TBD S  907,669.00 $  739,676.00 $ 1,647,345.00

Sub Total $ 1.825,347.00 $ 1,507,232.00 $ 3,332,579.00

Overall Total; $ 4,923,889.00 $ 2.936,485.00 $ 7,860,374.00

fiscal Details Sheet

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Project ID # RFP-2024-DES-08.STREN

Project Title ;Strengthening_Citizens.and Businesses for Economic Mobili^

Berlin, Conway & Littleton Maximum Points Available Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Technical

01 • Implementation Plan 200 190 180
02 - Infrastructure Plan 100 85 85
03 • Capacity/Staffing Plan 100 85 87
04 - Experience - Population and Challenges 100 93 85
05 • Experience - Workforce Activities 100 100 90
06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 90 95

Subtotal • Technical 700 643 622

If a Vendor fall to achieve 350 minimum points In the preliminary scoring, It will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will
remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 116 150
Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 142 130

Subtotal - Cost 300 258 280

TOTAL POINTS 1000 901 902

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,848,837 $1.429.253
Reviewer Name Title

1 iGene Patnode

2iBriana Williamson

3'Joshua Kelly

4)Laura Ingram

SlVirginia Jones

■Workforce Development Administrator III
Program Specialist II • SNAP Employment & Training-.
Quality Assurance Specialist
Financial Manager
Program Specialist IV i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet •

Project ID #

Project Title

RFP-2024-DES-08-STREN

Strengthenlng Cltlzejis and Businesses for Economic Mobility.

Claremont & Keene
Maximum Points

Available
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Technical

01 - Implementation Plan 200 190 180

02 - Infrastructure Plan 100 85 85

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan - 100 85 87

04 - Experience - Population and Challenges 100 93 85

05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 100 90

06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement .100 90 95

0 0

Subtotal • Technical 700 643 622

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points In the preliminary scoring, It will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost
Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 129 150

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 142 130

Subtotal • Cost 300 271 280

TOTAL POINTS 1000 914 902

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,507.232 $1,295,162

Reviewer Name

11Gene Patnode

2iBriana Williamson

3'Joshua Kelly

4iLaura Ingram

SiVirginia Jones

Title

Workforce Development Administrator III .
Program Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training
■Quality Assurance'Specialist
iFinancial Manager
^Program Specialist IV j
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or
"Department") and Manchester Community Resource Center. Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement {the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 10, 2024 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,332,579

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services,
Subsection 1.2., to read:

The Contractor must ensure services are available and provided In the Claremont, Keene,
Manchester and Nashua Regions, as outlined in the Geographical Region Table, below.

Geographical Region Table:

1.2.

District Office City/Town

Claremont Region

17 Water Street, Suite 301

Claremont, NH 03743-2280

Phone: 603-542-9544 or

1-800-982-1001

Acworth, Canaan, Charlestpwn, Claremont,

Cornish, Croydon, Enfield, George's Mills,
Goshen, Grafton, Grantham, Guild, Hanover,

Langdon, Lebanon, Lempster, Lyme, Meriden,
Newport, Orange, Orford, Plainfield,
Springfield, Sunapee, Unity, Washington, and
West Lebanon.

Keene Region
111 Key Road,

Keene, NH 03431

Phone: 603-357-3510 or

1-800-624-9700

Alstead, Antrim, Ashuelot, Bennington,
Chesterfield, Deering, Drewville, Dublin,
Fitzwilliam, Francestowh, Gilsum, Greenfield,
Hancock, Harrisville, Hinsdale, Jaffrey, Keene.
Lyndeborough, Marlborough, Marlow, Nelson,
New Ipswich, Peterborough, Richmond,
Rindge, Roxbury, Sharon, Spoffard, Stoddard,
Sullivan, Surry, Swanzey, Temple, Troy,
Walpole, Westmoreland, Winchester, and
Windsor.

Manchester Region

1050 Perimeter Road, Suite 501

Manchester. NH 03102-3762

Phone: 603-668-2330 or

1-800^852-7493

Auburn, Bedford, Chester, Goffstown,
Manchester, New Boston, and Weare.

Nashua (Southern) Region
26 Whipple Street
Nashua, NH 03060-9311

Phone: 603-883-7726 or

1-800-852-0632

Amherst, Atkinson, Brookline, Danville, Derry,

Greenville, Hampstead, Hollis, Hudson,
Litchfield, Londonderry, Mason, Merrimack,
Milford, MontVernon, Nashua, Newtory—os
Pelham, Plaistow, Salem, Sandown, V ilh^.

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01-A01 Page 1 of4
v7,12.23

Contractor Initials

Date
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and Windham.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services,
Subsection 1.8., to read:

'1.8. The Contractor must provide Workforce Developers and Post TANF Program staff, as
indicated in the Staffing Table, below.

Staffing Table:

District Office
Services

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program

Claremont Region 1 1

Keene Region 1 1

Manchester Region 2-3 2-3

Nashua (Southern)
Region

2 2

Hours may be satisfied by multiple positions, with varying schedules, to meet the needs of
the participants. c

4. Modify Exhibit 0, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit 0-1, Budget through Exhibit C-2, Budget Sheet, Amendrnent #1.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 0-1, Budget Sheet.
Amendment #1. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit 0-2, Budget Sheet. Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Manchester Community Resource Center. Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01-A01 Page 2 of 4
v7.12.23

Contractor Initials

Date

r
4/Jb/2024
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as o^he date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/26/2024

Date

DocuSigrwd by:

awns4H>srgn«ai -

Name' santamei io

Title: Associate commissioner

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

4/25/2024

Date

^OocuSigned by:

Name: Reme oenton

Title: CEO, Manchester Community Resource Center, inc

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DES-07.STREN-01-A01 ̂  Page 3 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding.Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL .

-DocuSigrMd by:

4/29/2024
7^ft7-UAai041JAn

Date Name: Robyn Cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at.the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 -AOI Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-1. Budget SheH Amendment 01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Resource Center. Inc.

Budget Request for: Stren0hening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility - Manchester £ Nashua Region
Budget Period: Effective G&C approval through June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)9.50%

Line Item
Program Cost - Funded by OHHS - SFY Program Cost - Funded by DHHS - SFY Program Cost - Funded by DHHS - SFY

24 25 26
D

1. Salary & Wages $55,608 $422,539 $499,507
2. Fringe Benefits $13,902 $105,635 $124,877

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR $12,386 $1,358 $1,435
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $2,936 $5,743 $1,068
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0 ■  $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0 $0 $0
5.(e) Supplies • Office $2,821 $5,500 $5,500
6. Travel $100 $3,750 $4,250
7. Software $2,150 $10,750 $7,800
8. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications $2,364 $15,050 $12,255
8. (b)'Other - Education and Training $3,050 $10,350 $8,578
8. (c) Other - Other (specify belo\v) $0 $0 $0

Other (please speaty): Postage $73 $1,250 $640

Other (please specify): Printing $345 $2,685 $3,151
Other (please speaty): Faaiity $14,356 $53,136 $53,136

Other (please specify): ETS Funds $5,500 $74,500 $100,000
Other (please speaty): Insurance $1,125 $5,400 $5,725
Other (please speaty): ll Support $2,200 $1,500 $1,000
Other (please speaty) $0 $0 SO

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $118,916 $719,146 $828,922

Total Indirect Costs $11,297 $68,319 $78,748

Subtotals $130,213 $787,465 $907,669
lulAL 'Manchester & Nashua Kegion

•
$1,825,347

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01-A01

Contractor Initials;

Date:

OS

r

4/25/2024
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Exhibit C-2. Budget Street. Amendment

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:'Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

Budget Request for: Strengtfyening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility - Claremont 4 Keene Region

Budget Period: Effective G&C approval through June'30. 2026
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) :9.50%

Line Item
Program Cost ■ Funded by DHHS • SFY

24

Program Cost ■ Funded by DHHS ■ SFY

25

Program Cost • Funded by DHHS - SFY

26

1. Salary & Wages $47,479 $354,146 $366,722
2. Fringe Benefits $11,886 $88,659 $91,807

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $7,210 $7,210

5.(a) Supplies - Educational SO $6,100 $6,100

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0 $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

5.(d) SuppMies - Medical $0 $0 $0
S.(e) Supplies - Office $275 $6,500 $6,500
6. Travel $450 $13,521 $18,500
7. Software $0 $6,500 $6,500
8. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications $224 $8,955 $8,955
8. (b) Other • Education and Training $0 $10,000 $10,000
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below): $0 $0 $0

Other (please speaty): Insurance Liability $750 $5,625 $5,625

Other (please specify): Printing $0 $5,000 $5,000
Other (please specity): haality $0 $61,334 $61,334

Other (please specify): ETS Funds SO $65,000 $80,000
Other (please speaty): Hostage $100 $1,250 $1,250
Other (please speaty) $0 $0 $0
Other (please speaty) $0 SO $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0 SO

Total Direct Costs $61,164 $639,800 $675,503

Total Irtdirect Costs $5,811 $60,781 $64,173

Subtotals $66,975 $700,581 $739,676
|iotai - Claremont & Kecne Kegion - $1,507,232

RFP.2024^)ES-07-STREN-01-A01

Contractor Initials:

Date;

(7
4/25/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER COMMUNITY

RESOURCE CENTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
April 16, 2001.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in

good standing as fer as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 379869

Certificate Number 0006630583

4^

o
<5®

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNow Hampshire,

this 25th day of March A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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MCRCnh CBDO Special Activities
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc
Community Based Development Organization
434 Lake Avenue Manchester, NH 03103

603 647-8967 www.nicrcnh.org

RE: New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Economic Stability - Bureau of Employment Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Pat Long, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected Chairperson for the Board of Directors for the

Manchester Comrnunity Resource Center; Inc.

I certify that the following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. The Resolution was approved on March 13, 2024 by a
quorum of the Directors, the Resolution has not been amended or revoked and./emains in full force and
effect as of March 13, 2024 and will remain in effect until June 30, 2026. 1 further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that Renie Dentpn
has full authority to bind the corporation.

RESOLVED: That Renie Denton, Chief Executive Officer is herebyauthorized on behalfofthe Manchester

Community Resource Center, Inc to enter Into a contract v/ith the State of New Hampshire and any of its
agencies or departments and may execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments,

and any amendments, revisions, modifications, and/or extension thereto, as she may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate. The contract and any amendments will be effective on April 10,2024 ■
or immediately following dpproydi of the Governor and Executive Council; this contract will have q
Completion Date ofJune30, 2026 with options for mutually agreed upon extensions.

Pat Long, Chairperson - Board of Directors

Manchester Community Resource.Cehter, Inc

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough, Stale of N^^yv^Hampshire
The forgoing instrument G!t§^^rr\ to before me this 24'" day of April 2024
by Pat Long, Chairperson^ tpe^oardOTfi^ors for the Manchester Community Resource

■

ntotery PuBtic^—

CenteF, |nc

Commission Expires: December18, 2025
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/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
GATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

03/27/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAME^^^ LlndseyGoodrich
K f,,,: (603)669-3218 (603)645-1331
A^ESS- f"aoch.cefts@crossagency.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC 1

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18056

INSURED

Manchester Community Resource Center, inc

434 Lake Ave

Manchester NH 03103-4271

INSURERS Techndogy Ins. Co. 42376

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
pnjBC
MSQ.

POLICY EPF
{mm/oo/yyyyi

POLICY EXP -
(MtiVDO/YYYYITYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES fEa occutrerKet

PHPK2601148 11/01/2023 11/01/2024

MED EXP (Any cne pAfton)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

CENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY □ LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

Professional Liability

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000.000

2,000,000

s 1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea Bcdtfeni) $ 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X
X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2601143 11/01/2023 11/01/2024 BODILY INJURY (Par acdtfeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer acddann

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000,000

PHUBBei162 11/01/2023 11/01/2024 AGGREGATE 1.000,000

X RETENTIONS 10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- LUBILITY

ANY PROPRIETORTPARTNER/EXECUTtVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yaa. dascrlba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

TWC4325175 (3a.) NH 11/01/2023 11/01/2024 e.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

e.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

Renie Denton is excluded from workers
compensation.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS t VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Ramark* Schadula, may ba attachad If mora ipaca l» raqulrad)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1

■SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)
<D 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MCRCnh CBDO Special Activities
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

Community Based Development Organization
434 Lake Avenue Manchester, NH 03103

603 647-8967 www.incrcuh.org

Mission Statement:

The Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc (MCRC) is a multi-service, non-profit organization
with the goal of assisting residents of Manchester in attaining self-sufficiency by providing access to
employment, education, information, and referral services In a multi-cultural environment.

Programs are designed to promote the development of each Individuafs work-maturity competencies,
emotional growth and social development through the acquisition of appropriate skills, knowledge and
attitude.

Vision Statement

The Manchester Community Resource Center will provide appropriate employment and training
services to the underserved adult population of Manchester. The Center will maintain a safe, non-
threatening supportive environment that promotes stability and self-reliance. Through MCRC's
program, our clients will find resources to assist In overcoming their barriers and deficiencies. Our
clients will be offered the opportunity to obtain gainful employment regardless of age, race, color,
religion, gender, or national origin.

Values Statement

Our Board of Director, professional staff and dedicated volunteers are devoted to maintaining the
original spirit of MCRC. We believe that;

■ Employment provides opportunity for adults to develop themselves, their family, and their
community

• Every person deserves the opportunity for gainful employment
■ Gainful employment of all citizens Is the responsibility of all citizens
■ Everyone that shows the desire to improve their life, deserves the opportunity
■ We are committed to honesty, fairness, integrity, and social awareness in all relations, including pur
community, vendors, employees, clients, and sponsors. We will be fair and yet aggressive in our
pursuit to achieve excellence.

Diverse, Equitable, and Inclusive Statement

MCRC Is committed to providing residents of Manchester with effective, equitable, understandable, and

respectful quality of service that is representative of our cross-cultural populations, ethnic traditions,
preferred languages, personal obstacles, and other communication needs.
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INDEPENDENT AUPrrOR'S REPORT

March 13, 2023

To the Board of Directors of

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manchester Community Resource
Center, inc.,(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. In all material
respects, the financial position of Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, and the changes In Its net assets and Its cash flows for the years then ended In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described In

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be Independent of Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. and to

meet our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and

appropriate to provided basis for oiir audit opinion. . . - -

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design. Implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Manchester Community Resource Center, inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within
one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be Issued.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an
auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore Is not a guarantee that, an audit conducted In
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists. The risk of not detecting a , material misstatement resulting from
fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Mlsstatements
are considered material If there is a substantial likelihood that, Individually or In the
aggregate, they would ..Influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or eiror, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to

• those risks. Such procedures Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures In the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Manchester Community Resource Center,
Inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as " evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether. In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Manchester Community Resource Center,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
Internal control related matters that we Identified during the audit.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
March 13, 2023, on our consideration of Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.'s
Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.'s Internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Manchester
Community Resource Center, lnc.'s Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

prryfeiiirmrUAiiOctcUCaru
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

2022 2021

Assets

Cash $

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Fixed assets, net

Promises to give - future use of building

147,000

45,817

8,431

32,575

8,000

-  $ 134,304

23,038

7,964

65,266

20,000

TOTAL ASSETS $ 241,823 $ 250,572

UABIUTIESAND NET ASSETS

2022 2021

Uabllltles

Accounts payable $

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

599

9,074

20,000

$ 715

14,027

Total Liabilities 29,673 14,742

Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

204,150

8,000

215,830

20,000

Total Net Assets 212,150 235,830

TOTAL UABIUTIESAND NET ASSETS $ 241,823 s 250,572

See Notes to Financial Statements
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENTS OF AQIVITtES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRiaiONS

Support and Revenues

Grants from governmental agencies
Grants and contributions

Building management services

Rental income

Miscellaneous Income

Total Support and Revenues

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Support, Revenues and Reclassiflcatlons

Expense's

Program services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total Expenses

Change In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Change In Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Change In Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

834,468

12,155

16,000

3,999

105

866,727

12,000

878,727.

832,800

49,577

8,030

890,407

(11,680)

(12,000)

(12,000)

(23,680)

235.830

$  212,150 $

2021

769,606

41,496

16,000

3,999

831,101.

12,000

843,101

803,064

55,694

7,706

866,464

(23,363)

(12,000)

(12,000)

(35,363)

271,193

235,830

See Notes to Financial Statements

5



MANCHESTER COMMUNrTY RESOURCE CENTER, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

JUNE 30,2022

<6

O

o

Community Worlcfcrce Total Management Total Total
Support Development . Program and General Fundraising Support 2022

Federal Grant Subrecipients $  400,758 $ $ 400,758 S - S $ % 400,758
Salaries and Wages - . 235,588 235,588 19,986 4,376 24,362 259,950
Payroll Taxes ^ - 19,032 19,032 1,615 353 1,968 21,000
Employee Benefrts

- 35,084 35,084 3,014 ■ 757 3,771 38,855
Building Maintenance

- 2,574 2,574 229 57 286 2,860
Insurance

- 12,323 12,323 1,095 274 1,369 13,692
Office Supplies

- 11,114 11,114 943 206 1,149 12,263
Supplies

- 25,214 25,214 19 ' 19 25,233
Professional Services - - - 14,082 - 14,082 14,082
Rent

- 50,850 50,850 4,520 1,130 5,650 56,500
Transportation

- 568 568 - - - 568

Utilities
- 8,747 8,747 778 194 972 9,719

Depreciation - 30,723 30,723 2,731 683 3>14 34,137
Miscellaneous 225 225 565 - 565 790

Total Expenses $  400,758 $  432,042 $ 832,800 $ 49,577 $  8,030 $ 57,607 S 890,407

o

See Notes to Finandal Statements
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCnONAL EXPENSES

JUNE 30, 2021

p

-n
cn
CO
(D

O

Community Workforce Total Management Total Total

Support Development Program and General Fundraising Support 2021
Federal Grant Subrecipients S  365,453 S s 365,453 S - $ - $ _ S 365,453
Salaries and Wages

- ■ 244,719 244,719 23,191 4,311 27,502 272,221
Payroll Taxes

- 18,567 18,567 1,760 326 2,086 20,653
Employee Benefits

- 32,186 32,186 2,980 663 3,643 35,829
Building Maintenance

- 1,685 1,685 30 37 187 1,872
Insurance

- 11,340 11,340 1,008 252 1,260 12,600
Office Supplies

- 9,489 9,489 938 145 1,083 10,572
Supplies

- 27,613 27,63 319 - 319 27,932
Professional Services

- - - 16,862 - 16,862 16,862
Rent

- 50,850 50,850 4,520 1,30 5,650 56,500
Transportation

- 2,768 2,768 - - - 2,768
Utilities - 7,488 7,488 666 166 832 8,320
Depredation

- 30,428 30,428 2,705 676 3,381 33,809
Miscellaneous - 478 - 478 595 - 595 1,073
Total Expenses $  365,453 $  437,611 $ 803,064 $ 55,694 $ 7,706 s 63,400 $ 866,464

o>
0)

k
Ul

CO

2
s
w

o
o

See Notes to Financial Statements

7
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER; INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Change In net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets
to net cash provided by {used for) operating activities:

Depreciation

Noncash contribution of use of building
(Increase) decrease In accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease In prepaid expense
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) In accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) In deferred revenue

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows for Investing Activities

Payments for the purchase of equipment
Net cash used for Investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

2022 2021

$  (23,680)

34,137

12,000

(22,779)

(467)

(116)

(4,953)

20,000

37,822

14,142

(1,446)

(1,446)

12,696

134,304

147,000

$  (35,363)

33,809

12,000

7,248

4,211

222

3,679

61,169

25,806

(3,700)

(3,700)

22,106

112,198

134,304

See Notes to Financial Statements

8
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ^

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1: NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. (the Center) Is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation
organized under the laws of New Hampshire on April 16,2001. The Center opened its doors in October
1998 and became an Independent entity In 2003 with the goal of assisting residents of Manchester to
attain economic self-sufficiency and Improve the overall standard of living by providing access to

employment, education, Information and referral services In a multicultural environment. Programs are
designed to promote the development of each individual's work maturity competencies, emotional
growth and social development through the acquisition of appropriate skills, knowledge, and attitudes.

The Center also administers a HUD based Community Based Development Organization grant that
benefit 13 organizations this fiscal year.

The Board of Directors Is comprised of at least 51% membership from residents and/or business owners
from this community. The Board of Directors established a Resident Advisory Council, comprised of
100% residents and consumers of the services, to offer program recommendations.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation . ■ -"

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with standards of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations as promulgated by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. They are stated on the accrual basis and Include all material
accounts receivable and accounts payable.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Center follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards Board as applicable to
not-for-profit organizations. Under these standards, the Center Is required to report Information
regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets, as applicable: net
assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions.

Descrlptionsofthetwonetassetcategoriesareasfollows: •

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that Is subject to donor-Imposed restrictions (donors
Include,other types of contributors, Including makers of certain grants).

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that Is not subject to donor-Imposed restrictions
(donors include other types of contributors, including makers of certain grants).
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (continued)

A donor-Imposed restriction Is a donor stipulation (donors Include other types of contributors. Including
makers of certain grants) that specifies a use for a contributed asset that Is more specific than broad
limits resulting from the following:

a. The nature of the not-for-profit entity (NFP)

b. The environment In which It operates

c. The purposes specified In Its articles of Incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents for an
unincorporated association.

Expenses are reported as decreases In net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on
Investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as Increases or decreases.ln net assets without
donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of
temporary restrictions on net assets, that Is, the donor-litiposed stipulated purpose having been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period having lapsed, are recorded as reclassifications between
the applicable classes of net assets.

Use pf Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Center considers all unrestricted highly liquid
Investments with an Initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash
equivalents for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable from grants and contracts are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from outstanding balances. Accounts receivable do not Include an allowance for doubtful accounts since
the Center believes all amounts to be collectible.

Contributed Services and Items

The value of contributed services of volunteers is not reflected in these statements since the criteria for
recording was not met. Contributed items are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date
of donation.

10
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE SO, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(

Fixed Assets

Land, building and equipment is carried at cost or fair market value at the date of acquisition or

donation. Depreciation is recorded on building and equipment under the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives. Expenditures for additions, renewals and betterments of buildings and

equipment, unless of a relatively minor amount, are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and

repairs are expensed as Incurred.
V.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences Including vacation leave, personal/floating holidays and sick time are earned by
the number of years of service and employment status. Unused time cannot be carried from one year to

the next. Salaried employees receive payment for unused earned time up to 50% of their annual earned
allocation.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as without restrictions and with restrictions depending on the

existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor restricted support Is reported as an Increase in net assets with donor restrictions. When a

restriction expires (that Is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is

accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclasslfied to net assets without donor restrictions
and are reported in the statement of activities as net assets that are released from restrictions.

Functional Allocation of Exoenses

The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services are presented on a functional basis

in the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Expenses are directly charged to the appropriate activity,
where feasible. The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to

more than one program or function. Therefore, they may require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. This basis included building use percentage and personnel cost allocations.
Personnel costs are allocated based on the estimates of time and effort.

Adv€rtl?lng
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

. Advertising expenses for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 were $53 and $473, respectivefy.

Income Taxes

The Center Is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from Income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Organization has analyzed Its tax positions and has determined that there are no
unrecognized tax obligations to record.

11
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3: UQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Center's financial assets as of the statement of financial position date, reduced
by amounts not available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year. The Center's
working capital and cash flows have variations during the year primarily due to the timing of activities
and collections of accounts receivable. As part of the liquidity management plan, the Center produces an
annual budget that Is reviewed by the board, which outlines anticipated financial needs to support the
mission within the next fiscal year. To manage current cash needs, the budget Is analyzed and compared
to actual results throughout the year.

Current financial assets at year end:
Cash

Accounts receivable

Financial assets available to meet cash needs

for general expenditures within one year

2022 2021

$ 147,000 $ 134,304

45,817 23,038

$ 192,817 $ 157,342

NOTE 4: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The majority of the funding for the Center Is received directly or indirectly from the Federal Government.
Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from the State of New Hampshire..

NOTE 5: FIXED ASSETS

A summary of land, building and equipment follows:

Estimated

2022 2021 Useful Life

Leasehold Improvements $ 272,500 $ 272,500 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 66,054 64,608 5 years
Vehicles 22,534 22,534 5 years

361,088 359,642
Accumulated depreciation (328,513) (294,376)

$ 32,575 S 65,266

The depreciation-expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $34,137 and $33,809,
respectively.

12
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 6: PROMISES TO GIVE - FUTURE USE OF BUILDING

As discussed In Note 8, the City of Manchester provides use of the current facilities at a discounted rate.

The future value of this promise is $8,000. The promise will be depleted based on the passage of time.
The value for the term Is as follows:

Forthe year ended June 30: 2023 $ 8,000

NOTE 7: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRiaiONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consists of promises to give - future use of the building In the amount
of $8,000. These net assets with donor restrictions will be depleted by the paissage of time {see Note 6).

NOTES: BUILDING USE

On March 8,2013, the Center ehtered into a ten year operating lease with the City of Manchester for use
of office and classroom space. The fair market value of the rent for this space was estimated to be
$56,500 annually forthe years ended June 30,2022 and 2021. The lease calls for the Centerto pay
$28,500 annually to the City each year As a condition of the lease, the Center must provide
management services for the building. The Center has determined the value of these services to be
$16,000 annually for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021. The remaining value of the rent, $12,000,
represents a contribution from the Qty of Manchester. These annual figures are expected to remain
consistent for the duration of the lease term.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the contribution from the city for the ten
year period In the amount of $120,000 was recorded as Income for the year ended June 30,2013 (see
Notes 6 and 7).

A portion of the building was rented out under a month-to-month sublease agreement for a portion of
the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021. Income from that sublease totals $3,999 per year.

NOTE 9: RETIREMENT PLAN

Starting In October 2021, the Center sponsors a SIMPLE IRA plan and matches eligible employee
contributions up to 3%. The cost for the year ended June 30,2022 was $3,039.

13
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10: LEASE COMMITMENTS

In June 2018, the Center entered into a five year operating lease for a copy machine. The lease term

called for 60 monthly payments of $195. Payments under this agreement aggregated to $2,599 for the
year ended June 30,2022 and $2,602 for the year ended June 30,2021. .

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above lease are as follows:

For the year ending June 30: 2023 $ 2,145

NOTE 11: CONTINGENT UABILITV

The Center receives money from the Federal Government under various grants. Under the terms of
these grants, the Center Is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes specified In
the grant proposals. If the expenditures ofthe grant were found not to be in compliance with the
proposal, the Center might be required to repay the grantor's funds. Because specific amounts, if any,
have not been determined by grantor agency audits as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, no provisions have
been made for this contingency.

NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

. Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 13,2023, which Is the date the financial
statements were available to be Issued.

The COVID-19 virus Is still present In the United States; however, the future potential impact and
duration of the virus' impact on operations cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

14
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Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

Board of Director 2023-2024

BOARD CHAIR (4/2018)
Pat Long (2/2018)

State Representative & Alderman Ward 3

Manchester, New Hampshire

Anne-Marie Hafeman (6/2023)
Elliot Hospital

Director of Volunteer Resources & Community
Engagement

Manchester, New Hampshire

CT19/2

BOARD VICE CHAIR (12/2022)
Usa Walker (12/2017)

Self Employed - Attorney
Manchester, New Hampshire

John Rivera (8/2022)

Hope Tabernacle

Pastor

Manchester, New Hampshire

CT 15/3

BOARD SECRETARY (4/2019)

KelleyHobbs (12/2017)
Southern NH University

Associate Director ,

Manchester, New Hampshire

Scott Ardlta (12/2022)

AmerlHealth Carltas

FWA Coordlnator/SIU Manager
Manchester, New Hampshire

a 19/2

BOARD TREASURER VACANT Biram Saldybah (4/2023)

NRSA Eligible Resident

Manchester, New Hampshire

a 8/3

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

EX-OFFICIO MEMBER

Renie Denton (6/1999)

Chief Executive Officer

STAFF RESOURCE

Ryan Denton (S/2022)
Director of Operations

Board Members Must Meet the Following
Criteria:

•  Be an adult over the age of 18 years

•  Be a resident of or work In the City of Manchester

•  ̂Preference will be given to eligible

residents of Manchester's NRSA

•  Membership must maintain the 51%

NRSA Eligible Criteria

Terms of Board Members;
■  Terms shall run for four (4) years or until their

successors are elected and qualified.
■  Members shall not serve more than three

consecutive terms for a total of twelve (12) years,
■  Members may resign at will.

Term of Officers:

• The term of office shall be two (2) years.
• Any officer may be re-elected by the Board

Members to hold Office for three additional two

(2) year term.

Meeting Schedule:

1

Board Members do not receive compensation for their time. The Board Officers donates an average of 3 hours
per month. All other Board Members contribute an average of 1.5 hours per month.
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Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

RENIE DENTON
CAREER HIGHLIGHTS

Administrative: budget deveiopment and management, contract negotiation and monitoring, staff
development and supervision, development of federal reports, program evaluation, management of
community faciiity and staff resource to Board of Directors
Program Deveiopment: design, develop, implement, monitor, and evaluate a series of community-
based programs. Program deveiopment included: community policing, home based therapy & crisis
intervention, court advocacy, economic deveiopment and job training, educational and personal
development, prevention/safety programs, housing and homeiessness, food and nutrition programs,
alcohol and other drug prevention, adult services, youth services and family support services

Case Management: Coordinated complete case management for clients, conducted intake and
assessment process, determined client eligibility, developed individualized action plans to assist In'
overcoming barriers to employment, provided supportive services as required, worked with a diverse
population

Fund Deveiopment: worked with residents of underserved communities, local business, government
officials and service providers In the developrhent of numerous grant application and community
fundraistng events

Community Relations/Networking: developed a strong community network with service providers, local
and state government offices, volunteers, law enforcement agencies and merchants.

EXPERIENCE

1999 - PRESENT MANCHESTER COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER, inc. (MCRCnh)

434'Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire03103
Chief Executive Officer

Performs ail duties related to oversight of the operations and management of this multi-service non-profit
agency.

1993-1998 CONCORD HOUSING AUTHORITY

15 Pitman Street, Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Family Services Director

Designed and implemented a series of support services intended to promote the participants' intellectual,
physical, emotional, economic, and social deveiopment

1974-1992 MANCHESTER HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

199 Hanover Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03101
Youth Services Director

Developed Manchester's second largest afterschooi and summeryouth program. Performed ail duties
related to the operation of this youth program

Social Service Assistant

Provided temporary and seasonal assistance to all departments with the Soda) Service Division of the
Housing Authority

EDUCATION

Springfield College " New Hampshire College New Hampshire Technical College
School of Human Services . Business Administration Business Management
1986 1984 1979
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RYAN DENTON

DIRECTOR OF
OPERATIONS

Manchester Community

Resource Center, Inc

MCRCnh

PROFILE

Dynamic DirectorofOperationsskilled in agency-wide management,

program development, and community engagement at MCRCnh.

Expertise in cross-cultural environments, program evaluation, personnel
leadership, and strategic partnerships. Committed to enhancing

participant opportunities and community impact. Seeking to drive

MCRCnh's mission through innovative strategies and impactful

leadership.

SKILLS

Operations Management

Program Development and

Implementation

Team Leadership and

Management

Community Engagement

Career Development

Sales and Account

Management

Strategic Planning

EDUCATION

NCDA

Cert. Career Services

Provider

ACRE

Employment Services for

People with Disabilities

University of Southern ME

Business Management

EXPERIENCE

Director of Operations

2022-Present

As Director of Operations at MCRCnh, I assist with comprehensive

agency management, ensuring financial stability, guiding staff, and

driving impactful program development. Within a diverse setting, I lead

programs and staff to assess client needs, facilitating vital job readiness

opportunities. I excel In ensuring compliance, evaluating program

effectiveness, and driving continuous improvements. Known for

fostering robust partnerships, leading personnel, managing grants, and
upholding confidentiality. My focus is on representing MCRCnh

positively, advancing its mission while flexibly adapting to diverse

responsibilities to drive community empowerment.

Regional Account Manager

2012-2022 .

With a decade of experience as a Regional Account Manager in the •
wine and spirits industry, I excelled in driving sales and managing '

accounts across diverse regions. Skilled in building lasting client ' .'

relationships, I consistently surpassed sales targets'by .implementing

strategic marketing campaigns and expanding market share. My •
expertise lies in driving brand presence, executing successful

promotions, and delivering consistent revenue growth through targeted

sales strategies. ' " •'• •v '
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Renie Denton Chief Executive Office $36,534.00 $104,384.00

Ryna M. Denton Director of Operations $38,356.00 •  $85,235.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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Lerl A. Weaver

Commi**loner

Karen E. Hebcrt

Dlreclor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DSVmON OF ECOmMIC STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDDAccets: 1-800-735-2964 www.(Uib>4ih.£o.v

March 26, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Han^pshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic Stability,
to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exce^ $4,923,889
to provide workforce development services focused on assisting current, transltiohing, and fornier
New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) participants in obtaining career advancement support services and opportunities that will
assist them In achieving continued upward economic mobility, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance, with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional
years, effective upon Govemor and Council approval through June 30.2026. 83% Federal Funds.
17% General Furlds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount
Manchester Community
Re^urce Center, Inc.
(Manchftstftr NHl

#153471
Manchester &

Nashua Region $1,825,347

Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc.

(Manchester. NH)

#177198

Concord & Laconia
Region and
Rochester &

Seacoast Region

$3,098,542

Total: $4,923,889

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of furids in the future operatirig budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
with[n the price limitation and encumbrance's between slate fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this r^uest is to provide workforce development services focused oh
assisting .current, transitionlrig, and former New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP),
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) participants In obtaining career advancement
support servicesiand opportunities that will assist them in achieving continued upward economic
mobility.
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His Excellency, Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The Department seeks to support individuals in gaining skills, education, and workplace
experience to continue their career exploration and success, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance.

The workforce development services include:

• Workforce Development Services to assist current NHEP/TANF participants, In
obtaining career advancement, job development and opportunities that will assist
them In achieving continued upward economic mobility.

•  Post TANF Services for participants who closed TANF cash assistance, and
,■ NHEP due to earnings, from the timle of cash closure for a one (1) year period and

those participating in the Earned Income Disregard pilot program, to Increase
ernployment retention, reduce recidivism, support ongoing training and learning
opportunities that will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction
of obstacles to gaining and retaining employment in efforts to avoid employment
loss.

•  Pilot Disregard Services for those actively participating in the 75% or 100%
earned income disregard, and for participants who remain eligible for TANF cash.
The disregard pilot is planned to end September 30, 2024, at which point, when
participants are no longer eligible for TANF cash, they will be eligible for Post TANF
Services.

Direct services are provided to, participants .by offering services in a family-friendly office
or meeting space in the geographical region for which the participant resides, including the"
Contractor's office, local libraries, community colleges, community resources centers, One Stop
Centers, and other establishments that are convenient to the participants. Services may be
delivered individually, in a group setting, via remote workshops, by telephone, and using eniail
and other technologies, including video conferencing.

f

NHEP focuses on closing skill gaps by ensuring job seekers gain and increase
competencies, earning the credentials that'businesses seek of employees. Additionally. NHEP
promotes the upskllling of employees to enhance their eligibility for.higher wage positions, while
addressing workforce development and overcoming obstacles to employment and promotions.
By doing so, NHEP aims to build a skilled pipeline of qualified employees to meet the needs of
businesses in New Hampshire, while fostering self-confidence and preparing participants to be
valued employees.

Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024, 2025, and
2026.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Participating in on-site monitoring conducted by the Department on an annual basis,
unless otherwise required'by the Department for the purpose of ensuring
deliverables-are met.

. • Completing onsite monitoring including, staff interviews, participant reviews, review
of program curricula and assigned activities as applicable, review of documentation
and data in the New HEIGHTS system.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website" from .December 18,
2023 through Janua^ 31, 2024. The,Department received nine (9) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheets are attached. The Department
did not receive any qualified bids -for two (2) regions (Ciaremont/Keene and Conway/
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3 i

Littleton/Berlin). The Department re-posted a Request for Proposals to resollcit services for these
regions on March 5. ,2024.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, recipients of TANF would not
have Job Development Services available to them to gain support for their economic
independence and mobility, and meet the needs of New Hampshire employers. The Department
would not be able to provide ongoing employment support to participants, which may result in an
increase in public benefits and a reduction in the number of families that could be given
opportunities to achieve economic independence.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

In the event that the Federal .Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not'be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

aU/o

for:

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner •

The Deportment of HeaUh and Human Services'Miesion is to join communilies and families
in providing opportunities for ciliiens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-95-45^50010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES-DEHS, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT ' .

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $216,645

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $1,382,895

.2026 074-500589' Coniracls for Program Services TBD $1.497.002-

Sub Total $3,098,542

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.

State Fiscal

. Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $183,536

2025 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $734,142

2026 074-50,0589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $907,669
'

Sub Total $1,825,347

Overall Totall $4,923,869

Fiscal Oetaiis Sheet

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project lb #
Project Title

{RFP-2024-DES.07-STREN —
[Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Manchester & Nashua
Maximum

Points

Available

HMCNH - Health

Market Connect NH

MCRCnh - Manchester

Community Resources
Center, Inc.

SNHS — Southern NH

Services, Inc.

Technical
'

01 - Implementation Plan • . 200 60 .-i 185 180
02 - Infrastructure Plan 100 20 90 80
03 - Capacity/Stafflnq Plan 100 15 90 80
04 - Experience • Population and Challenges 100 30 90 85
05 - Experience - Workforce Activities t- 100 5 95 90
06 • Oualitv Assurance & Improvement '-v 100 10 95 90

0 0 0
Subtotal - Technical 700 140 . 645 605

It a vendor tail to achieve 350 minimum points In the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further cc
evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

>nsideratlon from the

Cost '
•

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150. 86
Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX 135 1.10

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 285 196
TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 930 801

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1.825,347 $3,199,345

Reviewer Name Title

1 (Gene Patnode

2|Briana Williamson

3 {Joshua Kelly

4|Laura Ingram
SiVirginia Jones

iWofkforce Development Administrator III •
{Program Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training
lOuality Assurance Specialist
(Financial Manager
(Program Specialist IV
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# |RFP-2024«DES-07-STREfr
Project Title iStrengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Concord 8i Laconia
Maximum Points

Available

HMCNH-Health Market

Connect NH

• SNHS-Southem NH

Services, Inc..
Technical

01 - Implementation Plan 200 60 180

02 - Infrastructure Plan .  100 20 80

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan 100 15 80 •:

04 • Experience - Population and

Challenges 100 - 30 85

05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5 90

06 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 10 90

0 0

Subtotal - Technical 700 140 605

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points in the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration
from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost ;•

Vendor Cost 150 xxx 150

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX . 100

Subtotal - Cost 300 0 250

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 855

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,565,857

Reviewer Name

1 (Gene Patnode

2 IBriana Wliliamson

3IJoshua Kelly

4|Laura ingram

SlVirgtnia.Jones

Title

4Workforce Development Administrator III '
IProgram Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training
iOuality Assurance Specialist
IFinancial Manager
{Prograrh Specialist IV
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# 1RFP-2024-DES-07-STREKr
Project Title jStrengthening Citizens and.Businesses for Economic Mobility

Rochester & Seacoast

fVlaxImum^
. Points

Available

HMCNH - Health Market

Connect NH

.SNHS-Soulhem NH

Services. Inc.

Technical

Q1-.Implementation Plan 200 60 170
Q2-.Infrastructure Plan- 100 20 75
Q3 - Capacity/Staffing Plan 100 15 60
Q4.- Experience - Population and Challenges 100 30. 85 .
05 - Experience - Workforce Activities ' 100 5 80
Q6 - Quality Assurance & Improvement 100 10 • 85

I.-. 0 0

Subtotal - Technical .700 140 575

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points in the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration
from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150
Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX 130

Subtotal - Cost 300 0 280

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 855

Reviewer Name

1 jGene Patnode

2l6riana Williamson'

3 (Joshua Kelly
4 (Laura Ingram
5 (Virginia Jones

Title

iWorkforce Development Administrator ill
[Program Specialist II»SNAP Employment'& Training j
(Quality Assurance Specialist • )
[Financial Manager- {
iProgram Specialist IV' j
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# |RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN .
Project Title jstrengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Berlin, Conway & Littleton Maximum Points Available HMCNH - Health Market Connect NH

Technical. •

Ql - Implementallon Plan 200 60
- Infrastructure Plan ■ * 100 20

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan -  - rv. 100 15
U4 • bxperience - Population and Challenges *  .1.00 30
05 • fcxperience - Workforce Activities 100 5

U6 - Ouality Assurance & Improvement ■  100 10

-r 0  .

Subtotal - Technical 700 140

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points In the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team
and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost.

Vendor Cost..... 150 XXX
Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 \
TOTAL POINTS 1000 140

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST im
Reviewer Name

1 {Gene Patnode (

2i6riana Wtiiiamson •  1
3iJoshua Kelly

4|Laura Ingram t

SIVirginia Jones =.• . |;

Title

jWorkiorce Developinent Administrator III j
jProgram Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training i
iQuality Assurance Specialist ^ ;
iFinanctal Manager ^ j
jProgram Specialist IV \
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New'Hampshjre Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID #
Project Title

IRFP-2024-DES-0.7-STREN

IStrcngthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Claremont & Keene Maximum Points Available HMCNH— Health Market Connect NH

Technical

Q1. - Implementation Plan 200 -■ 60
02 • Infrastructure Plan ICQ 20

Q3 - Capacity/Staffing Plan • 100 1S
Q4 - Experience - Population, and Challenges 100 30
05 - Experience - Workforce Activities 100 5  ■
Q6 - Quality Assurance & Improvement •  100 10

0
Subtotal - Technical 700 140

If a Vendor fall to achieve 350 minimum'points in the prelirhlnary scoring, it will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team
and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost ■*
Vendor Cost 150 XXX
Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX

Subtotal - Cost 300 0

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST N7A

Reviewer Name.

11Gene Patnode
2|Briana Williamson
SlJoshua Kelly
4|l-aura Ingram
SjVtctoria Jones

Title

{Workforce Development Administrator III ;
{Program Specialist II • SNAP Employment & Training;
iQuality Assurance Specialist \
jFlnancial Manager
jpfogram SpecialisI IV
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DocuSIgn Envelope ID: AOOl7BCA-FC51-46B9-BEn-36FBCFA7ei4B FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)
Subj«l: RFP-2024-DeS-07-STREN-0l / Strengthening Citizens end Businesses for Economic Mobility

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachmenls shall become public upon subntission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in Nvriling prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

• The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street ,
Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Manchester Cominunily Resource Center, jnc.
1.4 Contracior Address

434 Lake Avenue

Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-361-3038

1.6 Account Unit and.Ctass

05-95-45.450010-61270000-

074-500589

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2026
1

1.8 Price Limitation

Si,825,347

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Dontracior Signature
Ooeu9l0n*d by.

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory '
Renie Denton

CEO, Manchester Community Resource center,

1.13 State Agency Signature
/""OecuSloncd br: . ..

.. ^ , O».e:3/26/2024

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory ;•
„ . Ka^en Hebert

Division Director
/

1.15 Approval by"tKe'lf^.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Aliomey General (Fomt, Substance and Exccuiion) (ifapplicable)

1.17 Ap^vaV6y*'i^'C'd"vcni6r and E.xecutivc Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: C&C Mceling Date:

nc

Page I of 4
Contractor inliinlcX, ^
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OocuSlgn Envelope ID: A0D17BCA-FC51-4689-BE11-36FBCFA7814B

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaie of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
(■'State"), engages comroctor idcntined in block 1.3 ("Contractor'')
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference

. ("Services").'

3. EFFECTIVE DATEyCOMPLETiON OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become efTcctive on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
(''Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences (he Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Scn'iccs perfonncd by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that (his Agreement docs not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Ser\'ices performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in'excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any slate or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8, in whole or in part,"
the State shall have the right to withhold paynienf until sucli funds
become ovailable,-lf ever, arid shall have the"right to reduce or
tcmtinate the Services under (his Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tennination. The^
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable. ;

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provLsion in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth- in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the pcrfominnce

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation lo the
Contractor for the Serx'ices.
5.3 The State 'reser\'es the right to ofTsc'l from ony amounts
othenvise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or penniited by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
ajgrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the Slate and hereby waives any right to specific
perfomtance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITV.
6.1 In connection wiih the pcrfominnce of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, .state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or" duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any ntles,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement.these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws. .

,6.2 During the temi of this Agreement, the Contractor .shall not
discriminnie against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, ond .will take affinnativc
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payment.s or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the "purpose or effect of public or coinmcrcial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records ond accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations ond orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perfonn the
Ser\'ices, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so .under all applicable laws. ^ ^ '
7.2 The Contracting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the Stale's point of contact |)cr(aining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of Ihc following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall consliiuie an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule:
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take anyone, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Eveni of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving (he Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would oihcAvise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice.until such lime as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give thc Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, icnninate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early Icnnination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not .later than fifteen (15) calendar days aficr the date of
termination, a' report C'Tcrinlnalion Report") describing in detail
all Services'performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of tcnnination. in addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifleeii (15) calendar days
of notice of early lemiinalion, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Sendees under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTV OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property", shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during (he
pcrfonnancc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, suA'cys, maps,- charts, sound recordings, -video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
Slate, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose undcr.ihis
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon temiinaiion of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
govemed by N.H. RSA chapter 91 -A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall hove authority to bind the State or receive
any bcnefns, workers" compensation or olhcr cmofunicnis
provided by ihe Suite to iis employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifleen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
Ihc written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect ou'ner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

,12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of (he State.
12.4 The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Controcior shall, indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the Stale, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or olhcr claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, it.s
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for ony costs incurred by the Conlracicr arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding Ihe foregoing, nothing- herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the Stale's
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the tcnnination
ofthis Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The ConirQCior shall, ot its sole expense, obtain and
cominuously maintain in force, and shall require any subconlraclor
or assignee lo obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comniercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
SI,000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on ̂
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Coniraclor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a ccrtificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide cenificatc(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The ccniricatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incoqporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("H'orkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
.N.H. RSA chapter'281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in conneciion-with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall fiimish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9,,or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.M. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewals) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference; The State shall-not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for nity other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee' of
Contractor, which might.arise under applicable Slate of New
Hampshire Workers'.Compensation laws in comteciion with the
pcrfonnancc of the Scr\'ices under this Agreement.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only afier approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Govemor and' Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
•circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Slate of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule of constniction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Coun of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a connici between

the icmts of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement includitig any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

.21. THIRD PARTIES: Tliis Agreement is being entered into for
the sole bcncfii of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upoit any other person,

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall In
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AddiiionnI or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at Its own cost and expense, e.xecutc any.
additional documents and take such further actions as, may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give efTect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights 25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agrce'mcnt Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State lo later enforce any- contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach. this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime of executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
mailing by certified moil, postage prepaid, in a United Stales Post deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
Office addressed to (he parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
and 1.4, herein. agreements and understandings with respect to (he subject matter

hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by .deleting
subparagraph 3.3 In Its entirety and replacing it as follows;

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the.Completion Date specified
In block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4)

■  additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council. ■

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability, and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing

*  basis and take corrective.action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
sul:>conlractor performance.

FRFP-2024-0£S-07-$TREN-01 A-1.2 Contraclor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1, Statement of Work • Applicable to ALL Services

1.1. The Contractor must provide services to assist Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families (TANF)/New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) participants in
obtaining career advancement, support services and opportunities to achieve
continued upward economic mobility. The Contractor must provide the services
outlined below:

1.1.1. Workforce Development Services, for all TANF/NHEP participants.

1.1.2. Post TANF Services, for participants who closed TANF cash
assistance, and NHEP due to earnings, from the time of cash closure
for a one (1) year period and those participating in the Earned Income
Disregard pilot program, to increase employment retention, reduce
recidivism, support ongoing training and learning opportunities that
will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction of
obstacles to employment in efforts to avoid employment loss.

1.1.3. Pilot Disregard Services (for those actively participating in the
75% or 100% earned, income disregard), for participants who
remain eligible for TANF cash, will receive services as described in
Section 2.3.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available and provided in the
Manchester and Nashua Regions, as outlined in Geographic Region Table
below.

Geographic Region Table:

District Office City/Town
Manchester Region
1050 Perimeter Road, Suite 501

Manchester. NH 03102-3762

Phone: 603-668-2330 or

1-800-852-7493

Auburn. Bedford, Chester, Goffstown,
Manchester. New Boston," and Weare.

Nashua (Southern) Region
26 Whipple Street
Nashua, NH 03060-9311

Phone: 603-883-7726 or

1-800-852-0632

Amherst, Atkinson. Brookline,
Danville. Derry, Greenville.
Hampstead. Hollis, Hudson. Litchfield,
Londonderry, Mason, Merrirnack;
Milford. Mont Vernon, Nashua,
Newton. Pelham, Plaistow, Salem,
Sandown, Wilton, and Windham.

1.3. The Contractor must provide direct services to participants by offering services
: • in a client-friendly office or meeting space in the Geographical Region fcrWhich'

t  .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

the participant is located.

1.3.1. ,.The Contractor must have an office space in each Geographical
Region where services are provided, and must also travel to
comrriunity locations including, but not limited to;

1.3.1.1. Local libraries;

1.3.1.2. Community colleges;
1.3:1.3. Community resources centers;
1.3.1.4. ■ One Stop Centers; and
1.3.1.5. Other state-acceptable establishments that are

convenient to the participants.

1.3.2. The Contractor must ensure participants work toward achieving
identified goals in an individualized manner. Providing services in a
work simulated environment with Identified structured curricula will be
used cautiously and minimally in this service delivery model.

1.3.3. The Contractor must deliver services individually, in a group setting in
which ail participants have "a vested interest or need, in person, via
remote workshops, by telephone, and using email and' other
technologies, including video conferencing. Individualized services
are crucial to the service delivery model and must focus on the six (6)
areas of workforce development.ideritified by the Department; which
are as follows:

1.3.3.1. -High School Credential Attainment.-
1.3.3.2. Career Exploration and Identification..
1.3.3.3. Training/Credential Attainment-Licensures and/or

Apprenticeship Program.
1.3.3.4. Completion of an Employment Portfolio.
1.3.3.5. Participation in a Work Experience or On-the-Job Training

(OJT).
'1.3.3.6. Career Ladder Employment.

1.4. The Contractor must actively participate in monthly meetings with the
Department. Meetings will address enhancing service delivery, ensuring
accountability for specified deliverables, fostering collaboration on training
needs, promptly addressing .issues, engaging in discussions about
policy/protocol changes, and providing updates on the Contractor's progress.'

^ Other ̂meetings-with the Department may be required for a variety of other
topics that include, but are not limited to:

1.4.1. . District Office meetings;

1.4.2. NH Works Partner meetings;

1.4.3. Community stakeholder meetings; and

F
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens arid Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

1.4.4. dther meetirigs, as requested by the Department.

1.5. The Contractor must provide program information to the NHEP participants to
share the supports that are available to them.

1.6. The Contractor must ensure that their Wor1<force Developers complete. Job
Developer Training, either within the initial year of the contract or within the
Initial year of employment with the Contractor. This obligation can be fulfilled
by providirig proof of current certification.

1.7. The Contractor must participate in on-site monitoring, conducted by the
Department on an annual basis, or as otherwise required by the Department,
to ensure services are being provided in accordance with this Contract. The
on-site monitoring includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.1. Staff interviews.

1.7.2. Participant interviews.

1.7.3. Review of program curricula and assigned activities, as applicable..

1.7.4. Review of documentation and data in the Department's IT systems.

1.8. The Contractor must provide Workforce Developers and Post TANF Program
staff, as indicated in the Staffing Table, below.

Staffing Table:

District Office
Services

Workforce Developer Post TANF.Program
Manchester Region 2-3 2-3
Nashua Region 2  V 2

•  Hours may be satisfied by multiple positions, with varying schedules, to
meet the needs of the participants.

1.9. The Contractor.must provide the following staff to participant ratios in the
Staffing Ratio Table, below.

Staffing Ratio Table: .

Timeframes
Ratios

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program
Effective upon G&C
approval through 6/30/2025

25: 1 30 : 1

7/1/2025-6/30/2026 25:1 35: 1

RFP-2024-OES-07-STREN^l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

1,10. Scope of Services - Workforce Development Services

1.10.1. The Contractor must provide service to participants that are in
alignment with the Department Career Counselor's completed
assessment and employment plan, which includes Immediate, near
term and long-term needs, and goals of the participant.

1.10.2. The Contractor must ensure that individualized, quality and equitable
services are provided to participants that are aligned with and follow
the workforce development areas which Include, but are not limited
to:

1.10.2.1. Expanded Career Exploration. The Contractor must
provide training and support on:

1.10.2.1.1. Labor market tools, utilization and
information including: Occupational
Information Network (0*NET), Bureau of
Labor Statistics, Ecoiiomic Labor Market
Information and other state and federal

assistance resources:
1.10.2.1.2. Career opportunities that are identified as in-

demand with salary range increases and
opportunities for upward career

.  advancement;
1.10.2.1.3. Wage projections related to specific

industries and sector partner initiative
evolvement;

1.10.2.1.4. Employment trends;
1.10.2.1.5. Working .with employers to set up job

shadows and job tours; and
1.10.2:1.6. Administering and working, with skills and

interest assessments.

1.10.2.2. Training and Credentialing Attainment. The Contractor
must support and assist NHEP participants with:

1.10.2.2.1. Working with employers to identify the
training necessary to fill open positions to
address their employee shortages;.

1.10.2.2.2. Collaborating with employers.and training
providers, such as the Community College
System and other educational programs, to
develop customized trainings to address the
employee shortage needs of New
Hampshire businesses; and

.  ■ r
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT 8

1.1.0.2.2.3. . Navigating available opportunities
connected to apprenticeships.

1.10.2.3. Employablllty Skills Training, Community Service, and
Employment Portfolio Development. The Contractor
-must provide training and development on:

1.10.2.3.1. Resumes: Update to address specific
occupational/industry language.

1.10.2.3.2. Cover Letters.

1.10.2.3.3. Employment applications.
1.10.2.3.4. interview skills and preparedness.
1.10.2.3.5. Utilizing existing labor market tools and

information.

1.10.2.3.6. Utilizing variousjob search training methods.
1.10.2.3.7. Interpersonal soft skills.
1.10.2.3.8." Collaborating and partnering with

community service agencies to increase
work readiness skills.

1.10.2.4. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must:

■1.10.2.4.1. Develop work experience/intemship
opportunities that are in line with participant
career goals.

1.10.2.4.2. Ensure work experience/internship
opportunities are no longer than 240 hours

. and do not exceed 16 weeks in duration.
1.10.2.4.3. Monitor participant progress at the work

experience/internship site on a bi-weekly
basis..

1.10.2.4.4. Monitor participant progress at the work'
experience/internship site on a monthly
basis with the employer partner.

1.10.2.4.5. Develop and execute work experience
agreements with both, employers and"
participants.

1.10.2.4.6. Work with participants in cbllaboratioh with
businesses through the on-boarding '
process.

1.10.2.5. Career Ladder Employment and/or On-The-Job
Training (OJT) Support. The Contractor must assist and
support participants' in ail areas of their employment,
including but not "limited to:

(7
lalsv^—RFP-2024-DES-07-STR8N'01 B-2.0 ' Conlrsctor initials

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. Page 5 of 25 ' Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1F599D88-7527-45CD-B46B-AC5BEA0B32C0

OocuSlgn Envelope ID: ADD17BCA-FC51-46B9-BE11-36FBCFA781<B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Econpmic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

1.10.2.5.1. The on-boarding process.
1.10.2.5.2. Job retention.

1.T0.2.5.3. Workforce development training and other
services related to employment stabilization.

1.10.2.5.4. Career development and advancement.
1.10.2.5.5. Wage progression.,
1.10.2.5.6. Re-employment supports and services.

1.10.3. The Contractor must berame familiar with and have a strong working
knowledge and understanding of the" New Hampshire's Work
Verification Plan and how that plan guides service delivery based on
the twelve (12) allowable federal TANF activities located on the
Federal Register 45 CFR Parts 261, 262, 263, and 265.
https://www.qovinfo.aov/content/Dka/FR-20Q8-02-05/pdf/08-455.Ddf.

1.10.4. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must provide
support services, as referenced in Attachment 1 - NHEP Employment
& Training Support (ETS) Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS &
Bridges and direct navigation with participants to address and/or
remove challenges to employment, including but not limited to: ■

1,10.4.1. Transportation.
. 1.10.4.2, Child care.

1.10.4.3. Family and work balance.
1.10.4.4. Other challenges to employment that may include, but are

not limited to:
.1..

1.10.4.4.1. Mitigating obstacles while employed;
1.10.4.4.2. Assistance with new employee acclimation

to the workplace;
1.10.4.4.3. Conflict resolution; and
1.10.4.4.4. Assistance with unforeseen challenges,

including but not limited to:

1.10.4.4.4.1. Car repairs;
1.10.4.4.4.2. Necessary tools of the

trade; and

1.10.4.4.4.3. Workplace uniforms and
_ clothing.

1.10.5. The Contractor must collaborate with all State of New Hampshire
Workforce partners to broaden opportunities available to participants,
which includes, but is noflimited to;

1.10.5.1. Agencies funded by the Workforce Innovation Opportunity
Act(WIOA).

1.10.5.2. NH Department of Education, Vocational RehabiKTatf&n.

RFP.2024^3ES<J7-STREN.01 ' 8-2.0, Contraclor InlllalslT
Monchostof CommunilyResourc©Center. Inc. Page6of25
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1.10.5.3- NH Employment Security, One Stop Centers.
1.10.5.4. Family Resource Centers.
1.10.5.5. Other community partners approved by the Department.

1.10.6. The Contractor must collaborate with other .workforce agencies and
partners to coordinate and/or blend multiple funding streams
necessary to support the NHEP/TANF population with tuition,
reduction in challenges to employment, and employment needs, in
order to prepare participants to transition from public assistance.

1.10.7. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce and training
providers to maintain current knowledge of the various credentialing,
training, on-the-job training (OJt), apprenticeship and direct
employment opportunities that are available, in order to offer those
opportunities to NHEP participants.

1.10.6. The Contractor must work in collaboration with employers,
Department Career Counselors, and participants to ensure that all
parties are communicating appropriately and timely.

1.10.9. The Contractor must report all participant changes, including changes
in employment status, to the Department Career Counselors within
two (2) business days.

1.10.10. Reporting Requirernents.

1.10.10.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data into
the Department's New HEIGHTS system at least monthly,
that includes but is not limited to:

1.'10.10.1.1. Employment data.
1.10.10.1.2. Service delivery data,.
1.10.10.1.3. Any required documents.
1.10.10.1.4.^ Updates to participant contact information.

1.10.10.2. The Contractor must report to the Department's Bureau
Chief of Employment Supports or designee by the tenth
(10^) calendar day following the end of the reporting
period of each month, that includes but is not limited to:

1.10.10.2.1. Number of participants referred for:

1.10.10.2.1.1. Work Experience.
1.10.10.2.1.2. Community Service.
1.10.10.2.1.3. On-the-job Training (OJT).
1.10.10.2.1.4. Apprenticeship.
1.10.10.2.1.5. Unsubsidized employment.

1.10.10.2.2. Nuniber of participants that started iQ^
Experience/Community Service.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Contractor
'3/26/2024
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1.10.10.2.3. Number of participants that started an
.  OJT/Apprenticeship/Unsubsldized

employment.
1.10.10.2.4. Number of Work Experience/Community

>  '■ Service agreements developed.
1.10.10.2.5. Number of Work Experience/Community

Services agreements, actually started.
1.10.10.2.6. Total number of participants in Work

Experiences.
•  1.10.10.2.7. Nurpber of participants in Work Experience

that led to Ojt.
1.10.10.2.8. Numberof participants in a Work Experience

that led to direct employment.
1.10.10.2.9. Number of participants in an OJT. ,
1.10.10.2.10.Number of OJT's that led to direct,

employment.
r  1.10.10.2.11. Number of referrals received from

Department Career Counselors in the
month.

1.10.10.2.12. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.10.10.2.13.Number of contacts with participants made
in the month, broken down by the following
contact methods, that include but are not
limited to:

1.10.10.2.13.1. Phone contact.
1.10.10.2.13.2. Email and other

technologies.
"" . 1.10.10.2.13.3. Videoconferencing.

1.10.10.2.13.4. In-person.
1.10.10.2.13.5. In a group setting, including

workshops and job fairs.
1.10.10.2.14. Number of participants who entered

■■■ employment."
.  1.10.10.2.15. Number of job losses in the month.

1.10.10.2.16. Any other data requested .by the
Department. "

1.10.11. Performance Measures.

1.10.11.1. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must ensure:

(TRFP-2024-OES-07-STREN-01 8-2.0 Contraclor Intlials^^—^
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1.10.11.1.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
in a Work Experience/Internship within 60
days of referrai date.

1.10.11.1.2. Minimum of 70% of participants transition
from their Work Experience into either OJT,
Apprenticeship or Unsubsidized
Employment after completion of either 16
weeks or 240 hours in the Work Experience.

1.10.11.1.3. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
^  reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the

Work Experience is progressing.
1.10.11.1.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will

receive monthly communication in order to
assess participants progress, and to gather
information regarding transitioning
participants from their Work Experience to

r. OJT or Unsubsidized Employment. Each
. monthly comrnunication will be documented

within the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.2. On-the-Job Training (OJT). The Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11:2.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
In an OJT within 60 days of referral date.

1.10.11.2.2. Minimum of 90% of ail participants will enter
into '.Unsubsidized Employment upon the
completion of the OJT.

1.10.11.2.3.' Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
'  reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the

OJT is progressing.
1.10.11.2.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will

receive monthly communication, in order to
assess participant progress as well as
gather information regarding transitioning
participants from their Work Experience to
OJT to unsubsidized employment. Each
monthly communication will be .documented,
within the New HEIGHTS system,

1.10.11.3. Apprenticeships. The Contractor must ensure:

i.10.11.3.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to monthly to discuss how the
Apprenticeship, is progressing, including
progressive wage gains.

\t
RFP-2024-OES-07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Conlractor Inittals^-
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1.10.11.3.2. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
supported through all training aspects of the
apprenticeship and all credentials, training,
.post-secondary educational achievements
will be captured.

. 1.10.11.3.3. Minimum of 95% ongoing communication
with apprenticeship partners. Each monthly
comrhunication will be documented-within

the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.4., Unsubsidized Employment for those in NHEP, the
Disregard Pilot and the Post TANF Program , (as
appropriate for individual situations and needs). The
Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.4.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
,  fi reached out to monthly, to discuss how the

job is progressing, including a focus on the
-  following (as appropriate):

1.10.11.4.1.1. . Workforce development
;• ■ - training. including

credentials, upskilling,
-  employer provided training

opportunities, etc.
1.10.11.4.1.2. Career development and

advancement including,"

,y high demand industries.
1.10.11.4.1.3. Wage progression.
1.10.11.4.1.4. Job retention, related to

employment stabilization.
'  ■ ' 1.10.11.4.1.5. Re-employment supports

and services.

1.10.11.4.1.6. Mitigating obstacles to
■employment.

■1.10.11.4.1.7. Employment and training
.  assistance services.

1.10.11.4.2. Each monthly communication will be
documented within the New HEIGHTS

-  sysleni.

1.11. Scope of Services- Post TANF Program Services for NHEP
1.11.1. The Contractor must make and document at least three (3) contact

attempts to successfully engage each individual offered services in
the Post TANF Program within ten (10) business days of re£^ of a

RFP.2024-OES-07-STREN-01 " 8-2.0 . ConlracloMniliais^
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referral from the Department, which will include the NHEP participant
contact information.

'  1.11.1.1. Phone contact.

1.11.1.2. Email and other technologies.

1.11.1.3. Video conferencing.

1.11.1.4. In-person. '

1.11.1.6. In a group setting, including workshops and job fairs.

1.11.2. The Contractor must utilize the Department's New HEIGHTS system
to document all contact and activities with participants in the Post •
TANF Program.

1.11.3. The Contractor must ensure that different contact methods are

utilized, in efforts to reach Post TANF participants and/or participants
in the Disregard Pilot Program, including in-person, at the home of the

,  participant (with their verbal permission), and/or in-person in the
community, when necessary and appropriate. Contact and/or
services should be provided no less than twice per month.

1.11.4. The Contractor must provide resource and services to meet the
individual needs of the participant to assist the participant in meeting
employment goals which may include, but are not limited to:

1.11.4.1. Referrals for services;

1.11.4.2. Direct delivery of services; and

1.11.4.3. Authorization of payrnent for services.

1.11.5. Transitional Workforce Services:

1.11.5.1:The Contractor must ensure that individuals "receive

transitional .workforce services to assist them in transitioning
from one job to another or from one career area to another,
on an as needed basis, in the following areas:

1.11.5.1.1. Career counseling;
1.11.5.1.2. Workforce development training and other

services related to employment stabilization; .
1:11.5.1.3. Job retention; and '

1.11.5.1.4. Post TANF employment.

1.11.6. Stabilization and Support Services:

'1.11.6.1. The Contractor must approve and, provide payment for
stabilization and support services', as referenced in

<5l^port

RFP-2024-OES-07-STREN^)1 B-2.0 Conlraclof InHlals^"^
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(ETS) Activities interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges, on an
as heeded basis in the following areas:

.11.6.1.1. Transportation allowances;

.11.6.1.2. Auto repairs;

.11.6.1.3. Dental care;

.11.6.1.4. Uniforms and tools;

.11.6.1.5. Eyeglasses:

.11.6.1.6. Childcare;

.11.6.1.7. Tuition assistance;

.11.6.1.8. Technology and access to technology; and

.11.6.1.9. Other items approved by the Department.

1.11.6.2. The Contractor must provide supporting documentation
upon the, Department's request for all supportive services, in
accordance with Exhibit C.

1.11.6.3. The .Contractor must coordinate with appropriate local
resources to connect participants, on an as needed basis to
the services and assistance that will support them in their
progression toward upward economic mobility.

1.11.7. High School Credential Attainment. The Contractor must:

1.11.7.1. Have a working knowledge of the Adult Educatiori system in
New Hampshire and support participants in navigating the
services required to work toward the obtainment of their
High School Credential. .

1.11.7.2. Provide assistance and support to participants in all aspects
■ of the attainment of a secondary school' diploma. High
School (HS) or High School Equivalency Test (HiSet).

1.11.8. Job Retention/Post-Employment Services:

1.11.8.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that participants
receive the following job retention and post-employment

. - services, on an as needed basis, in the followirig areas:

1.11.8.1.1. Ongoing communication;
1.11.8.1.2. Support with employment issues;
1.11.8.1.3. Interpersonal skllls;
1.11.8.1.4. Workplace mentoring;
1.11.8.1.5. Crisis prevention and resolution;
1.11.-8.1.6. Linkages with job training; and
i.11.8.1.7. Occupational skills training to obtain, maintain

and upgrade employment.

t  ■
1.11.9. Vyage Progression:

RFP-2024-DES-07.STREN-01 8-2.0 Contractor Initials
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1.11.9.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive wage progression services, in the
following areas, as needed;

1.11.9.1.1. Self-advocacy and leadership skills;
1.11.9.1.2. Occupation and wage information;
1.11.9.1.3. Financial literacy training, including;

1.11.9.1.3.1. Household budgeting:.
1.11.9.1.3.2. Methods to increase ©f—credit

scores;

1.11.9.1.3.3. Banking, including checking and
. saving accounts: and

1.11.9.1.3.4. Interestrates.

1.11.9.1.4. Federal Earned Income Tax Credit and Child

Tax Credit counseling; and
^  1.11.9.1.5. Work Opportunity Tax Credits.

1.11.10. Re-Employment Services:

1.11.10.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive the following re-employment services.to
reach their desired career goals:

1.11.10.1.1. Comprehensive workforce development and
'  job search skills; ■

1.11.10.1.2. Job leads and introductions to employers; and
1.11.10.1.3. Assistance with reactivating available benefits

during re-employment search phase and/or
during occupational training. ...

1.11.11.Reporting Requirements;

1.11.11.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data and
updates into the Department's New HEIGHTS system on
the day that contact is made with the participant and/or
services are delivered. Updated contact/service data must
include, but Is not limited to:

1.11.11.1.1. Employment data.
1.11.11.1.2. Post-Secondary enroilment/achievement

data.

1.11.11.1.3. Client demographics.
1.11.11.1.4. Service delivery data.
1.11.11:1.5. Any required documents. .
1.11.11.1.6. Participant's contact data.

/—w1.11.11.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly programmalSc^porl,
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 . B-2.0 ^ Contractof Initials^
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.  to the Department's Bureau Chief of Employment Supports-
or designee by the tenth (10^.) day of each month, to the
Department, monthly and year to date totals of the following;

1.11.11.2.1. Number of referrals from Department Career
•  Counselors in the month.

1.11.11.2.2. Number of individuals that became active

participants 'from referrals received in the
month.

1.11.11.2.3. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.11.11.2.4.: Number, of cumulative active participants to
date in the contract year (non-duplicative
count).

1.11.11.2.5. Number of contacts in the month, to include
•  , contact type.

1.11.11.2.6. Number of participants who- entered
•  . employment.

^  1.11.11.2.7. Numberof job losses in the month.
'  " 1.11.11.2.8. Numberof participants enrolled in education.

1.11.11.2.9., Number of .participants who discontinued
education prior to completion.

1.11.11.2.10. Number of "participants who completed
education.

1.11.12. Performance Measures. The Contractor must ensure:

1.11.12.1. Minimum of 80% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program complete an up-to-date employment portfolio;

1.11.12.2. Minimum of 75% of participants, enrolled in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program, receive

:*■ .financial literary "services based on the strengths and needs of
the participant identified on their financial literacy assessment,
completed at the time they started with NHEP, including
subsequent training in this area to date.

1.11.12.3. Minimum of 80% of participants who enroll in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilo't Program, receive
contact and services from their Career Counselor on a bi-weekly
basis; or at a minimum of monthly.

1.11.12.4. Minimum of 70% of Post TANF Program participants maintaining
employment. Second Quarter after exit from NHEP;

1.11.12.5. Minimum of 70% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program maintain employment for the Post TANF Program year, .
Fourth Quarter after exit from NHEP.

y—DS

'  t
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1.11.12.6. Rate of TANF program recidivism of Post TANF Program
participants is 20% or less.

1.11.12.7. Minimum of 10% of participants who enter Post TANF Program
without an occupational skills training credential/post-secondary
degree/license will obtain an occupatiorial skills training

•  credential/post-secondary degree/license while in the program.

1.12. Background Checks /

1.12.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has
undergone: * ,

1.12.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's
expense, and has no convictions for crimes that
represent evidence of behavior that couid endanger
individuals served under this Agreement;

1.12.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to
RSA 161-F:49, with results indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under

■  this Agreement; and

1.12.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to
RSA 169-C:35, with results indicating ho evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement.

1.13. Confidential Data

1.13.1. The Contractor must meet all infprmati'on security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the

" Department's . Information Security ■ Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below.

1.13.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
;  .seivices through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing

to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state taws and regulations and the Department's

'  Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable-business heed to 'access
'confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request. ' j.

1.14. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.14.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Del
RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 B-lO „ Conlractor JnJlials^
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in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (PI!) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access to. applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1.14.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

1.14.1.2. Whowill have access to Pll;

>'■ 1.14.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

1.14.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked;
and ,

1.14.1.5. ■ Privacy practices.

1.14.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

1'.15. Department Owned "Devices, Systems and Network Usage '
1.15.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information

Security Requirements Exhibit that . is incorporated into this
Agreement, authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network in the fulfilment
of this Agreement, must: . -

1.15.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department arid New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH

,  DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedures
■ ' and guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as

required;

1.15.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access
solely for conducting official Department business and

-■ . agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including, but not limited, to personal or other private and
non-Department use, and that at no time shall they
access or attempt to access information without having,
the .express authority of the Department to do so;

08
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1.15.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information In a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures,
and/or agreement relating to system entry/access;

,  1.15.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, "developed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and at all times must
use utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreerrient executed by the Department;

1.15.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s)
authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office or designee;

1.15.1.6. Not install non-standard, software on any Department
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office or designee;

1.15.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-
issued email system are the property of the Department
of New,Hampshire and to be used for business purposes
only. Email is defined as "internal email systems" or
"Department-funded email systems." . -•

'

"1.15.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH
DolT policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.15.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.15.1.9.1.To only use a Department emaif address
assigned to " them with a
affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov";

=" 1.15.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information
identifying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member; and

1.15.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
,  . * embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message
may contain information that is privileged and
confidential' and is intended only for the use of
the individuals) to whom it is addressed. If you
receive this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately and delete this iejjB^pnic

RFP-2024-OES-07-STREN.01 B-2.0 . Conlractor Initials
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message and any attachments from your
system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.15.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email.
access or potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a
workspace in a Department building/facility, must:

1.15.1.10.1. Complete the Department's. Annual
Information .Security & Compliance
Awareness Training prior to accessing,"
viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting

'■ Department Data or Confidential Data.

1.15.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
... ■ Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use

Agreement and the NH DoIT Department
wide Computer. Use Agreement upon
execution of the Agreement and annually
thereafter.

1.15.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures

•  and Information Security webpages.

1.15..1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in
violation of any of the,above terms and conditions, sajd
End User may face removal from the Agreement, and/or

^ criminal and/or civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a
violation of law.

1.15.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of
three business days prior to any upcoming transfers or
terminations of End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges.
If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees
to notify the Department's Information Security Office or
designee immediately.

1.15.2. Workspace Requirement •

1.15.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to
determine requirements for providing necessary.
workspace and State equipment for its End Users..

;

1.5.2 The Contractor must utilize the Department's State-owned loaned.assels to
expand upon their personnel's ability to perform the scope of w/df^rnfflined

-  VJTv .
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in Exhibit B - Scope of Services. The loaned assets are outlined in Exhibit
B-1 Department Loaned Asset. Inventory, which, is attached hereto and
incorporated'by reference herein. The Contractor agrees to the following
terms regarding the use of loaned assets; '■

1.5.2.1 Assets to be Used bv User: Subject to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, the Department agrees to provide to User
with the Assets listed on Exhibit B-1 Department Loaned Asset
Inventory, which is attached hereto and. incorporated by
reference herein. This is a non-transferable right for the User to
use the Assets. The type of asset and quantity deployed will be
determined jointly by the Contractor and the Department. An
Asset inventory reflecting the deployed Assets will be .managed
by the Department with, input and validation by the Contractor
and will be updated as needed for asset management for the
duration of this Agreement.

1.5.2.2 The Contractor agrees to use and operate the assets only in
conjunction with the business use stated herein for
adrtiinistration of the Exhibit B - Scope of Services, unless
othenvlse agreed upon by mutual written consent, and with

.  written exception approval by the Department's Informatiori
Security or Deputy Information Security Officer.

1.5.2.3 -The Contractor agrees the terms and conditions of the entire
Agreement apply to the loaned assets as well.

1.5.2.4 The Contractor agrees the-loaned assets will not be taken out of
the contiguous United States nor will remote software be used
to remote into the device frorh outside, the contiguous United
States.

>

,1.5.2.5 The Contractor acknowledges the assets will be provided with
specific standard f/icrosoft software identified on Exhibit B-1
Department Loaned Asset Inventory. The Contractor agrees it

■ will not purchase for or install software in the loaned aisset. If
non-standard software is required, the Contractor and the
Department's Division of Economic Stability's Information
Services Lead will work with the'Department's Security Office to
obtain appropriate approvals and security reviews prior to
softvi/are/application procurement and installation.

1.5.2..6 The Contractor acknowledges the Department's Security Office
and NH DolT will provide technical assistance or IT support in
association with the use of the assets. New HEIGHTS System
technical team, the system contractor, and/or NH Departrntent of

t
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Information Technology (Dolt) will provide technical assistance
or IT support for the use of the system as applicable.

1.5.2.7 The Contractor understands the loaned assets may be replaced
by the Department or NH DolT over the life of the Agreement
and agrees to comply with requirements to return and receive
new devices as directed by the Department and/or NH DolT.

1.5.2.8 The Contractor understands and agrees that the Department
retains ovynership of the loaned assets and will return them to
the Departmenfin good working condition within thirty (30) days
of contract termination, inclusive of any amendments to extend
the contract terrh.

1.16. Upon termination of the Agreement the assets will be returned to the
Department's Information Security Office and the data preserved per the terms
and conditions of the Agreement and, if applicable,-the Contract End-of-Life
Transition plan. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.16.1. General Requirements

1.16.1.1. If applicable, upon termination' or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from

the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department,to assume the.
Services previously performed by the Contractor for this
section the new Contractor shall be known as

"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the
■contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data
Trarisition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the
DTP template to the Contractor.

1.16.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in connection with the transition from the

•: '' performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the perforrnance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records
(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data

.  '(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such
Service from the hardware, software, netwoi1< and
telecommunicatiohs equipment and. internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT

■ Systems") of Gontractof to the Internal IT Systems-of the

FRFP-2024-DES'07-STREN-01 B-2.0 Coniractor InlHals
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Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.

1.16.1.3. If a systern, database, hardware, software, and/or
software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to

■  manage, track, and/or store Department Data in
relationship to this cpntract said Tools will be inventoried
and returned to the Department, along with the Inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is
complete. •

■.1.16.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in a timely
manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1.16.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements, and if applicable, the
Department's Business Associate Agreement terrtis and
conditioris remain in effect until-the Data Transition Is

accepted as complete by the Department.

1.16.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled
'  ̂ Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said

data is not feasible; the Department and Contractor will
■  jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for

retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.16.2.1. Each service- or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the.
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service', is delivered to the- Department and/or the
Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product.

1.16.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has'been migrated the
Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the

RFP-2024-DES-07-STReN-01 B.2.0 Conlraclor Inllials
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terms and conditions of the Department's information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.16.3.1. In the event the Department Is not satisfied with the
results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason, for the
lack of satisfaction within 15 lousiness days of the final
product or at any time during the data Transition process.
The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken to
resolve ihe disagreement or issue. If an agreement Is not

■  ̂ reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to
initiate actions in accordance with the Agreement.

1.17. Website arid Social Media

1.17.1.. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications
Bureau to ensure that any social media or website designed,
created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets ail

■  Department and NH DoiT website and social media-requirements
and policies.

1.17.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health information (PHI),
Personally identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of
PHI, Pll, or other Confidential information is subject to the terms of
the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the
Business Associate Agreement signed by the parties, and all
applicable Department and federal law, rules, and agreements.
Unless specifically required by .the Agreement and unless clear

^  notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the
Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked, disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

1.17.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

T.I 7.3.1. Ail right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including
copyright to ail Data and information, shall remain with the
State of New Hampshire. The State of New Hampshire
shall also retain ail right, title .and interest in any user
interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. Ail WWW pages and any other Data or

:  information shall, where applicable, .display the. State of
New Hampshire's copyright.

t
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2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, wtiich
are attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E.. DHHS .Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor rhust use and disclose Protected Health Information in
:■ compliance with the. Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and. 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

3. Additional Terms

3.1,. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or.federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit:

3.2.1.1. A detailed description of the language assistance
services, within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of the
Agreement, to be.provided-to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or services' to individuals with limited
English proficiency;' individuals who are deaf or have
hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have low
vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.2.1.2. --A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date
of the Agreement and annually thereafter, that all
personnel involved the provision of services to

•  individuals under this Agreement have completed,
within the last 12 months, the Contractor Required
Training Video on Civil Rjghts-related Provisions in;
DHHS Procurement Processes, which is accessible on
the Department's ^ei)site

t
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(https://www.dhhs.nh.goy/doing-business-dhh^civil- ,
right-compllance-dhhs-vendors): and

3.2.1.3. The Department's Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of
the Agreement. The Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist must have been completed within the last 12
months and is accessible on the Department's website
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civll-

.  right-compliance-dhhs-vendors).

3.1 Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases," research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreemerit must Include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) vyas financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services', with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services." . .

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures. .

3.3.3.2. .Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. , Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with l-aws and Regulatioris

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, slate,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which'must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the f^ifety-of

||T "
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the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental
license or permit must be.required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said'services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be In
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and. other expenses Incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

-  4.1.2. All records must be rfiaintaln'ed in accordance with' accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which, are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,

,  requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
jabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. v;

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallovved or to recover such sums from the Contractor..

^  f—OS
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Employment & Training Support (ETS) Services

The following information is intended for use by the NHEP Employment Counselors when authorizing ETS
services for eligible clients, using New HEIGHTS and Bridges systems-for active participants.

If ETS services are funded by the Contractor for the Post TANF Program, adhere to the foilowing guidelines.

Bridges/New HEIGHTS Activities Interface

, New HEIGHTS'SYSTEM 'h : BRIDGES
ACTfVITY • CODE- "ACTIVITY • CODE ALLOWABLE '

,  SERVICE

ABE/GED Contract AB Education 02 01-17

ABE/GED Non-Contract GE Education 02 01-17

AWEP AW AWEP ■- 08 01-07, 10-18
AWEP Concurrent A! AWEP 08 01-07. 10-18.
Barrier Resolution BR Barrier Resolution 10 01,06, 07. 16. 17, 19
CWEP (Community Service) CS CWEP 13 01-07, 10-18
CWEP Concurrent Ci CWEP. .  13 01-07, 10-18
Employment ■  EM Employment 01 01-07, 10-17
Employment Isl Concurrent El Employmenl 01 01-07, 10-17
Employmenl 2nd Concurrent E2 Employmenl 01 01-07, 10-17-
English as a Second language EN Education 02 01-17 . ' ■

English as a Second language Concurrent N1 Education 02 . 01-17

Family intervenlion Fl Job Readiness 10 01,06,07-16. 17. 19
High School HS" Education 02 01-17

HomcCarc Works HC OJT 07 .01-17

Job Readiness JR Job Readiness 04 01-07, 10-17
Job Search -• JS Job Search 06 01-07,10:17
OJT OJ . OJT' 07 01-17

Post-Secondary Education PS |Post-Secondar>' 05 01-17 ■ ■
Self-Employment SE y Employment 01 01-07, 10-17
Self-Employment Concurrent SA 1 Employmenl 0) 01-07, 10-17
Single Course SC Single Course 09 01-17

Single Course Concurreni SI Single Couiie . 09 01-17
Vocational Educational Training ■  CT Vocational Skills

Training
03 01-17

Workplace Success (CWEP) , JC CWEP 13 01-07, 10-17.
Workplace Training-Secondary activity offered at
the Workplace Success OR any other secondary
training program.

TO Single Course- 0? 01.17
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• TANF Cash must be open, client must be enrolled in the Work Program, and meeting participation to receive ETS services
• All requests for ETS services must be preapproved by the ECS
• Ail ETS services must be authorized in the activity requiring the service ;
• Providers must submit bill no more than 90 days after ETS Service end date
•" Transportation is the only ETS that can span two fiscal years

Ser>icc Code and Type
Payment Method
Form#

Req.uirements Service Codes Group
General Limits

Time Limits
01 Child Care Registration
PROVIDER

255;.

• Authorize undcr.case head RID.'# • .

*• .Cannot be used for fifsi-wcck of CQ-' . - . Vb-
•.One-time payment per child.per provider per SFY

,  . 01-05

: Combfned- $500 SF.V
Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFV
■ 02" Education/Training
iPROVIDER
'255

•* ' V,-

01-05

.Combined- $500 SFV
Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFV
03 Books & Supplies.
PROVIDER

255

01-05

Combined-$500 SFV

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFY
04 Uniforms

PROVIDER

255

• Must be used for uniforms only
• Must complete Clothing Request ApproyahForm 274T

01-05

Conibincd- $500 SFY

Individual- None

. 2 month, 1 SFY
05 Tools of the Trade

PRQVIDER
255'.

01-05

Combined- $50.0 SFY
Individual- None

f  2'month; I'SFY
06 Auto Repair
BOTH

255'

• Must be determined the auto is necessary to participate in NHEP
• Copy of valid driver's license/auto registration must be on file
• Review written estimate of the cost of repairs from an auto repair

business to include:

Name, address and phone # of the business
Itemized list of repairs Including parts, labor, and associated costs
necessary to make the vehicle functional and safe
NHEP Roadworthy Statement indicating the vehicle is worth repairing

• Vehicle must be registered to client, other parent in 2-parent case,
or dependent child
(Written estimate must be submitted In ndvnncc of service being provided except
In nn emergency where the vchleic requires lowing.)

06

$500 SFY

2 month, 1 SFV

07 Transportalion
CLIENT

256

07&17

Cornblned- $160/mo.

12 month, 2 SFY
17 Public/Private Carrier

PROVIDER

:256A

.••'Can be mullirfidc or monthly,pas.s

«• 1 i

07&17

Combined- $160/fho.

4 month, i SFY
08 Tuition

PROVIDER

257"

• Used for; Post-Secondary Education, or Vocational Training
• Before authorizing, The ECS must receive:

the name of the program,
proof of enrollment,

$1,575 SF.V
6 month, 1 SFV
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08 Tuition (cont.)
PROVIDER

25?

the class schedule, and
v' the expected start and end dates.

• Education & Training Assessment Checklist must be completed

• Vocational assessment must have been completed and
.  program match career goals
• Ail other sources of funding (PELL Grants, WlOA funding etc.)
. must have been exhausted .

$1575 SPY

6 month, 1 SPY

10 Auto Insurance

BOTH

"255 !

• 'May be billed prior to service provided

• Auto insurance for only the usual "and customary rates, not for
higher'rates due to accidents, \'iolatipns,'etc. ...

•'A staiemern of coverage & charges from the provider is needed
> Must provide a minimum'pf 12 months ofcoverage
•'May,only.be used If auto'insurahce Is a condition of employment

10-12,.14-16
Combined: $750

IndiWd.ual- None
■  2lmonthi 1 SPY

11 Auto Registration
CLIENT

255

{

• May be billed prior to service provided
•'Client provides current registration as'an estimate of
cost or an estimatc from the cit)' clerk's office

• Client pr.ovides copy of valid driver's license

•"Cannot be used for vanity plates

•' Vehicle miist be registered to clicnl, other-parent in 2-parent case, or
•  deperidem child

10-12,14.16
Combined- $750

Individual- $350

2'nionth, 1 SPY

V

;12 Driver's License Fees
CLIENT

255

• May be billed prior to service provided
• Recipient must provide^copy.of the new license

10-12,14-16
Combined- $750

Individual- $90'

.  2 month,tl SPY

MWork/Cfnce clothing

BOTH

'255-

' • "Not' for- uni fornis

• Must be approved'for aciiviiy appropriate clothing only.
.•'Musi-coinpieie Clothing Request Approval Form 274T

1.0-12,14-16
Comblncd-.S750

Inidividual- $200
2 month, TSFY

i 15 Personal Care

BOTH

.255

• Used for haircuts, and pcraonal. care items
(Topihpaste/iobilibrush, deodorant,- etc.).

I0-12„I4-I6
- Combined- $750 •

'individual- $25.
•. 2 month, 1 SPV

.16 E/0 Other ,

'BOTH

255

• Requires-RSM approval if:
>Auto repair exceeds $30p' » "
> incidentals (CBC; clothing, etc.)cxceeds.$60

• All o.tlier-rcsources must be exhausted

■ 10-12,;I4-I6
Combined- $750

Individual- None

2'month, 1 SPY

13 Dental

PROVIDER

255

• RequiresFSM approval ifover$200'
• All other resources' must be exhausted

• Cannot be approved for Prophylaxis or Orthodontics
• Surgery covered under Medicaid

■ \ 13
$1500 SPY

4 month, 1 SPY

18 Mentor Program
(CC Solutions)
PROVIDER

255

*

18

S800/Providcr

$1000 SPY

2 month, 1 SPY

19 Assessment

PROVIDER

255
-  '

19

$800 SPY

2 month,! SPY
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Exhibit B-1
Department Loaned Asset inventory

Contractor Company Name:

Full Name of Primary Contractor Point-of-Contact (POC) for Assets:

Full Name of Department POC for Assets:

Contractor POC Email Address: Department POC Email Address:

.Contractor POC Phone Number Department POC Phone Number:

Contractor POC Office Address: Department POC Office Address:

beil Latitude 5310J5,16GB DDR4 RAM, 256 SSD, LTE'
(Includes power, adapter/cord, .Windows 10)

Dell W019 Docking Station (includes power .

adapter/cord) ]
••

Dell P2217 Monitor (Includes power cable, VGA.

cable; DisplayPort cable)

Dell Pro Briefcase

Dell KBl Wired KeySoard . . ,

Dell MSI Wired Mouse

Microsoft Office Professional

Manchester Community Resource Center. Inc.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 Page l of l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms
I

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 83% Federal funds, Administration for Children and Families, as
awarded on February 7. 2024. by the Department of Health and Human
Services, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program, AI.N
#93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

1.2. ' 17% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with,2 CFR.§200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget.

4. The.Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
■Department no later than the fifteenth (.15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The.Contractor shall ensure,
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted In a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
• Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the ■
previous month. . . ^

■" 4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs including, time
sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of

■  expenditures, as applicable. The Contract shall provide the supporting
documentation: .v .

4.4.1. With each invoice unless otherwise determined by the
Department. „ ' ' .

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
. documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to besinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

y

'RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01 C-2.1 ' Coniractor Initials

Manchester Convnunily Resource Center, Inc. Page 1 of 3 •* Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

.  EXHIBIT C

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrance's between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may .be made by written agreement of both parties, without

. obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs-.act@dhhs.nh.gpv if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
V  federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

.8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Cornmission (SEC) regulations to
.submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, -the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close Of the
Contractor's fiscal year, "conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of

•  implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall, submit an
■ • annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120

" days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.
t

RFP-2024-DES-07-STR6N-01 C-2.1 Contracior Initials

^  3/26/2024
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. Page 2 of 3 . Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and.Businesses for Economic Mobility .

EXHIBIT C

8.4. . Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
■ $250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum,- to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA upon request.

B.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall retum to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

>—09

RFP.2024.DES-07-STREN-01 C-2.1 Conlractor Iniiials V—i
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Exhibit C-1 Budget

New Hampshire Odpartmcnt of Health and Hurnan Services
Contractor Name: Afanchesler Cofnmt/n»(y^so(/rce Cen'fe/; inc.

Btidgei RequtiX lor. Strtngthening CAJzens and Businesses for Economic MotnTify • Mancttester i Nashua Region ■

Budget Period: Effective GiC approve! tlvoogh Jurte 30. 2026
Indirect Cost Rate (il. applicable) 9-50% t

Lino Item
Program Cost • Funded by OHHS.-.SFY
'  ' ' " 24

Program Cost • Funded by OHMS rSFY

..25

Program Cost • Fur>ded by OHHS • SFY

.26 ■ , ■

1. Salary & wages $92,940 .  $426,611 $534,839
2. Fringe Benefits $23,267 $106,798 $110,736
3. Consultants $0 SO $0
4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 ar>d Appendix tV to 2 CFR 200.

$7,042 $1,358 $1,435

5.{a) Supplies • Edtjcalionai $2,936 $5,744 $10,068
5.{b) Supplies • l.ab $0 $0 $0
5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy 50 .r $0 SO
5.(d) Supplies-Medical $0 SO SO
5.(e) Supplies • Ottice $2,821 $4,285 $6 090
6. I ravel '! $860 $3,440 $3,640
7. Software $2,150 $7,800 $7,8008. (a) 6ther • Markeiing/Commurtications $2,364 $11,420 $12,255
8. (b) Other • Educaiiort and Training $6,476 •  $6,932 $7 000
8. (c) Other • Other (specify t>elowi') ^ i $0 SO $0

Other (ptease speaty): f^stage $264 $1,001 $1,050
Other (please specify): Printing $834 $2,424 .  $3,151
Other (please speaty): h.eauty

$6,534 • $26,136 $26,131
Other (please specify): ETS Funds $18,000 $62,000 $100,000Other (phase specrfyj; insurance

.$1,125 K500 $4,725
utner (please specny;

$0 $0 $0
$0 SO SO

9. Subrecipiem Contracts $0 $0 SO

Total Direct Costs $167 613 $670 449 $828927

Total Indirect Costs ^  I $15,923 • $63,693 $78,748

Subtotals $183,536 $734 147 $907,669

$1,825,347

RFP-2024-0ES-07^TREN^1

CentTBCtor WtUsv

Date:
3/26/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements -

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule.thefollovving Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION-CONTRACTORS • •

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and put)lished as Part' II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed wheri the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the

- certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should'send it to:

Commissioner >

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street .•
Conco^d, NH 03301-6505 .

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1:1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition: • - -

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the "*
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement; the employee will

1.4.1 . • Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1..4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimina|jjlrug,
statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days ~ 's after sucfT^nvlction;

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date^776776CT
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point'for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement:

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as
amended; or

1 •6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3. 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

I

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

6/23 ^ ■' Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
•  . : ' . Federal Requirements Dale?ZZ5Z^^'^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contraclof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Ainendment (31 U.S.C! 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12.of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRAC'TORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX ...
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1.- No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
.any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or ernployee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by '
•specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an ernployee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
T' document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and

cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

vl 6/23 Exhibit D • Contractor's initials
Federal Requirements Date^^^^TTO^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of 'Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions.execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

-1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)

'  . determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanatiori shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction. • .

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
. when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction.. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, iri addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its ~
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. , . - •

5. The terms "covered transaction.' "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." 'person.' "primary covered transaction." "principal.' 'proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/detaits/CFR-2OO4-titl045-vol1/CFR-2OO4-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary'participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the'
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
'transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is hot debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals, Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
htlps;//www.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapier-V/partT513.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials

Federal Requirements Date5Z5Z5^

Page 4 of 10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1F599D88.7527-45CD-B46B-AC5BEA0B32C0

DocuSlgn Envelope 10: AODl7eCA-FC51-46B9-BE11-36FBCFA7814B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of '
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lovyer tier covered transaction with a person who is
' suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its
principals:
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsirtcatlon or
destruction of records, rnaking false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. • Are not preseritly indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

'12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LO.IA/ER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By, signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier'

participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals: ' , ■
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

.voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency. • .

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it -
vyill include this clause entitled XertiHcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the'
Contractor's representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal •
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2CFR200).

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to.produce an Equal Employment Opportunity

.Plan; -

■  3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under

-  this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Acl includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; -

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity); ^

5., The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance fro.m discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery oif services or benefits, in any program or activity;

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and
local government.servlces. public accommodations, commercial'facilities. and transportation;

■ 7. The Education Amendments of 1972 {20^U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

•8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations Nondiscrimination; Equa|Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The Clean Air Acl (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
sufiace waters.

I

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) )^ich establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate'.' , , ^

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a. provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
-  the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit

organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that 'funding agreement,' the recipient .or subrecipient must
comply .with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit •
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Governrhent Grants. Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
.  . agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for

suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment. " '

'  C-. .

In the event a Federal or State' court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of ■
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natiorial origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds," the recipient will fonward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in .Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification: , ,

;.i 1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

•v16/23 I ^ Exhibit D '* Contractor's Initials S
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law .103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, ' )
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by'signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.

...)
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SECTION F: CERTIFtCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data relate to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is t>elow $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reportirtg requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity -

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those •

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following "Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

v16/23 .. Exhibit 0 Contractor's
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FORMA ^ -

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the.
below listed questions are true and accurate.

X6R6VRK2VBD4
1. The UEI {SAM.gov) number for your entity Is: .

/

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans', grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants. $ut>grants.
and/or cooperative agreements? .

• NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES,.please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (16 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?.

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
.  If the answer .to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as.follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount: _

Amount: _

Amount: _

Amount: _

Amount:

3/26/2024

Date:

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Resource center, inc

— DMuSlgncd bjr: * y

Name. R^ie Oenton
Title: Manchester.community Resource..Cisn;ter, Inc

v1 6/23 Exhibit D

Federal Requirements
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to .personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. Wdh regard to Protected Health Information," Breach"
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. •

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" rneans all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and perspiial Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and ,
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the; State of NH -created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by state or

,• federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSt^), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" rrieans anyperson or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations prom'ulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and-changes to system hardware,
firmware, or-software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the' loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

Contractorlnliials
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction^

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is not
designated by the Slate of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
Slate, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R.-Part 164, Subparl C, and amendments
thereto. ..

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Iriformation" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard, that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

■A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information;

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
- except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,

including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule. ■ ■

Conlractor Initials d
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• 2. The Contractor-must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
' for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,

without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End-
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data oljtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliarice with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF.DATA

1. Application Encryption.Hf End User Is transmitting .DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the .Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS.
data.- ..

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses- of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers.(SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site. •

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. . Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Contractor InitialsE
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
.  or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End.

User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP)' also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will structure the
Folder and access, privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form.it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention"

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer .or process data collected in
connection with the sendees rendered under this Contract, outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential .security events that can impact-State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential informatior» for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section Iv. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,

.  antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and -firewall protection.

Coniraclof IrdtialsE
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infra.slructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing Slate of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via" a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and- media
sanitization, or othenwise physically destroying the media (for-example. degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unle'ss otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination .of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor -agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to "protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential.
information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmlt.,or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
■potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5." The Contractor will provldei regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information. '

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification, requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access formsi and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and rnaintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed"
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sul>-c6ntractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
• Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may-
occur over the life of the "Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New'Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Infoirnatipn Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
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_ future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the'Contractor all costs of response and recovery from '

the breach, including but not "limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach. .

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable health Information and as applicable
under State law. ,

✓

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to.protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department-of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology -policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors. •:

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the State's Security

. Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidentiarinformation breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire netwo^.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who heed such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to.protect Confidential I nformation that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract

•  from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. .;

Conlr8clor Initials
T
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

'  d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent

to and being received byemail addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually Identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as npn-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when, stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other.instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight an'd compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security'requirements provided in herein, HIPAA., and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING ^

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI. -

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification

•  procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and

notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents; '

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Contractor Initiats 2'
V5. Last update 10/09/18, ■ 3/26/2024

vJ: PageSoTd Pats



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1F599D88-7527-45CD-B46B-AC5BEA0B32C0

OocuSIgn Envelc^ ID: ADD17BCA-FC51-46B9-BE11-36F8CFA7814B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

DHHS Information Security Requirements

4. .Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
'  determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI .must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: ' "

DHHSPrivacybfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 8.

DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformalionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Contractor InlDals F'
V5. Last update 10/09/18 3/26/2024
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the AgreementVorTi P-37)
("Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the "Business Associate." The State

■ of New Harnpshire; Department of Health and Human Services. "Department" shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity." The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties." '

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and -Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162. and 164 (HIPAA). provisions of the HITECH Act. Title XIII,
Subtitle D. Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records. 42 USC s. 290 dd-2,42 CFR Part
2. (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Definitions , '

a". The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2. as they may be amended from time to time: ,

"Breach;" "Designated Record Set." "Data Aggregation." Designated Record
Set," "Health Care Operations." "HITECH Act." "Individual." "Privacy Rule,"
"Required by law." "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

c. "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could l>e used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify'an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected'health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient," and "Patient
Identifying Information." as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accreclited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected'
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but^t

Bus

Exhibit F '
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2. and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI. as applicable;

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:

II. As required by law. according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

- V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third parly or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. -The Business Associate shall not, disclose, any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it

• is required by law. without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to. best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI. and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to.Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) Oblioations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer, at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer(5>dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspect^ privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures.or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

c.. In the event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate' Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected priv^tor

ExhiWi F
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

). . The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the.
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

II. The unauthorized .person who accessed,-used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information;

III. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
hasbeen mitigated. > .

The Business Associiate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of,its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services.for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive,, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere, to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

Wrthin ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
iail records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling'Cbvered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement.

-Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
•the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a. record about ah individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendrnent and incorporate any such amendment to enable. Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Busirtess Associate shall document any disclosures ofPHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request'
by an individual for an accounting ofdisclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a.written request from Covered Entity.for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to 'h

ExhlbilF I p
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. In the event any individuai requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business

-  Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate In connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI In any
form or platform.

VI. If return or destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to In the Agreement, or if retentlori is governed by state
or.federal law, Business-Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall.certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
■  on the Covered Entity's website;

-  https:/Avww.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaa/publicatlons.htm In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

■ c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45

,  CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI:

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

a. In additlon to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide ar»
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified t)y Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. 'All laws and regulations fuse3.
ExhlbllF
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business" Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b.

C;'.

d.

e.

Change in law • Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

Segregation • If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be.given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

Survival - Provisions In this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the.BAA in section (3) g. and
(3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the. parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement. v

Department of Heallh and Human Services

The State

—OmuSigned

-t3fCICgQ18"<A«Uni

Signature of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert

Name of Authorized Representative

Manchester cofliraunity Resource Center, inc

Name of the Contractor

—DocuSion*4by;

-immfwtftAym I I I—

Signature of Authorized Representative

Renie oenton

Name of Authorized Representative

Division Director

Title of Authorized Representative

ceo, Manchester community Resource Center, inc

Title of Authorized Representative

3/26/2024

Date

3/26/2024

Date

Exhibit F
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Arnendment #1

This Amendment to the Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 10, 2024 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree.to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,527,795

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services,
Subsection 1.2., to read:

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available and provided In the Berlin, Concord,
Conway, Laconia, Littleton, Rochester, and Seacoast Regions, as outlined in the
Geographical Region Table, below.

Geographical Region Table:

District Office

Berlin Region

650 Main Street, Suite 200
Berlin, NH 03570-2431

Phone: 603-752-7800 or

1-800-972-6111

Concord Region
40 Terrill Park Drive

Concord. NH 03301-9955

Phone: 603-271-6201 or

1-800-322-9191

Conway Region
73 Hobbs Street

Conway, NH 03818-6188
Phone: 603-447-3841 or

1-800-552-4628

City/Town

Berlin, Clarksville, Colebrook, Columbia,
Dixville, Dummer, Errol, Gorham, Groveton,
Milan, Millsfield, N. Stratford, Northumberland,

Percy, Pittsburg, Randolph, Shelburne, Stark,
Stewartstown, Stratford, Wentworth's
Location, and W.
Stewartstown.

Allenstown, Andover, Boscawen,
Bow, Bradford, Canterbury, Chichester,
Concord, Contoocook, Danbury, Dunbarton,
Elkins, Epsom, Franklin, Henniker, Hill,
Hillsboro, Hooksett, Hopkinton, Loudon, New
London, Newbury,.Northfield, Pembroke,
Penacook, Pittsfield, Salisbury, Suncook, Sutton
Warner, Webster, and Wilmot.
Albany, Bartlett, Brookfield, Chatham,
Chocorua, Conway, Eaton, Effingham,
Freedom, Glen, Hale's Location, Hart's

Location, Intervale, Jackson, Kearsarge,
Madison, Melvin Village, Moultonborough, N.
Conway, Ossipee, Sanbornville,
Sandwich, Snowville, Tamworth, Tufto|^o'-g'>
Wakefield, ̂ Wolfeboro.

a
Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02-A01
v7.12.23

A-S-1.3
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Laconia Region

65 Beacon Street

West Laconia, NH 03246-9988

Phone: 603-524-4485 or

1-800-322-2121

Alexandria, Alton, Ashland, Barnstead, Belmont,
Bridgewater, Bristol, Campton, Center Harbor,
Dorchester, Ellsworth, Gilford, Gilmanton,
Groton, Hebron, Holderness, Laconia, Lakeport,
Meredith, New Hampton, Plymouth, Rumney,
Sanbornton, Silver Lake. Thornton, Tilton,
Waterville Valley, Wentworth, and Winnisquam.

Littleton Region
80 North Littleton Road

Littleton,. NH 03561-3841

Phone: 603-444-6786 or

1-800-552-8959

Bath, Benton, Bethlehem, Carroll, Dalton,
Easton, Franconia, Glencliff, Haverhill,
Jefferson, Lancaster, Landaff, Lincoln, Lisbon,
Littleton, Livermore, Lyman, Monroe, Piermont,
Pike, Sugar Hill, Twin Mountain, Warren,
Whitefield. Woodstock, and
Woodsville.

Rochester Region
150 Wakefield Street., Ste 22

Rochester, NH 03867-1309

Phone: 603-332-9120 or

1-800-862-5300

Barrington, Dover, Durham, Farmington, Gonic,
Lee, Madbury, Middleton, Milton, New Durham,
Rochester, Rollinsford, Somersworth, Strafford,
and Union.

Seacoast Region
19 Rye Street
Portsmouth. NH 03801

Phone: 603-433-8300 or

1-800-821-0326 (

Brentwood, Candia, Deerfield, East Kingston,
Epping, Exebr, Fremont, Greenland, Hampton,
Hampton Falls, Kensington, Kingston, New
Castle, Newfields, Newington, Newmarket, North
Hampton, Northwood, Nottingham, Portsmouth,
Raymond, Rye, Seabrook, South Hampton, and
Stratham.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services,
Subsection 1.8., to read:

1.8. The Contractor must provide Workforce Developers and Post TANF Program staff, as
indicated in the Staffing Table, below.

Staffing Table:

District Office
Services

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program

- Berlin Region 1 1

Concord Region 2 2

Conway Region 1 1

Laconia Region 1 1

Littleton Region 1 1

Rochester Region 2 2

Seacoast Region 1 1

Hours may be satisfied by multiple positions, with varying schedules, to meet the needs of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02-A01

v7.12.23

A-S-1.3
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the participants.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet, Amendment #1.

5. Add Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

91.Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-02-A01 • Page 3 of 5 Date 4/25/2024
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/26/2024

Date

> ' '■ L>MusiQf>fto Dy:

B0605iFF£CE04a4...

Name' Christine Santame I lo
Title. Commissioner

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

4/25/2024

Date

-OoeuSigned by;

-OOQ36F61f0814Cl...

Name: Ponnalee Lozeau
Title: ^

chief Executive officer

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01-A01 Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

y'—^OocuSlgntd by:

4/29/2024 .

.7487348f4a4U$0_.^ -

Date Namei^^y" cuanno
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2024-DES-07-STREN-01-A01 Page 5 of 5
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Exhibit C-3. Budg«t Sh«*l, Ameodnwnt > I

New Hempehire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; SMthem New Hampahira Satvkaa, Inc.

Budget Request for: 'strengtfienrng CHizens and Busintssas (or Economic MobiSty • Berlin, Conway & Littleton Region
Budget Period: 'Elective GtC approval through June 30. 2026'

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) _ « - . ,

Line Item
Program Cost • Funded by OHHS • SFY

24

Program Cost • Furrded by DHHS • SFY
2$

Program Cost • Funded by DHHS • SFY
26

1. Salary & Wages
2, Fringe Bwtef'ts

$17,763 $327,411 $336,965

$6.359 $147,730 $153,861

3. Consultants

.  Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannol be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 end Appendix IVto2CFR200-

SO $0 so

so se.eoo so

5,(a) Supplies ■ Educational
5

SO SO SO

.(b) Supplies • Lab SO SO SO

5,(c) Supplies - Pharmacy
5

SO $0 $0

.(0) Supplies • MedicJ
5

SO $0 SO

.(e) Supplies ■ Office
6. Travel

$2,000 S2.000 $4,000

$633 $22,815 $22,615

7. Software ~
8, (a) (ither ■ Maffceimg/Communicatlons

SO $0 so

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000

8. (b) Other • Education and Trajring

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)
Uccupa/Ky

$0 $6,000 so

$0 $0 so

$11,121 $57,629 $57.629

Empbymeni Training Services $11,500 S34.S00 $65,000

LiaPiity Insurance $340 $340 $340

fefapfione $484 $5,230 $4,630

n/a SO SO SO

n/a SO $0 SO

n/a

9. Subreciplent Contracts
SO SO SO

$0 so so

'Total Direct <3osts $51,200 $613,655 $646,440

Total Indirect Costs $3,930 $56,465 $57.563

Subtolals

lui AL- uenin. t;onway a Littleton Kegion
$55,130 $670,120 $704,003

RFP.2024.0ES^7-STREN4)2-A01

Contractor Inlliais

a
4/25/2024
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State of New Hampshire
S

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.

1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTlcc have been received and is in good standing

as fur as this office is concerned.

/

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0006209491

Urn

3^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

(

Orvllle Kerr hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vole taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 11 , 2023 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnaleelozeau. CEO. Rvan Clouthier. COO: James Chaisson. CFO. and Cara Alibertl.
Financial Analyst (may list more than one person )is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hamoshire
Services. Inc. to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posilion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in cpntfacte with the State of New Hampshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: ̂  I'^S /^ ̂
lature of Elected Officer

Name: Orvllle Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
PATE (MM/OOrYYYY)

03/25/2024 -

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED'AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Sireel

Manchester NH 03101

NAMEt^^ Dianne Solo
Kf,,. (603)669-3218 (603)645-4331
AOORESS' niafich.ceris@crossagency.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

PO Box 5040

Manchester NH 03108-5040

INSURER B Mldwesl Employers Casualty Corp 23612

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

OTDC
IN80

[SDBTT

ms
TYPE OF INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
lMM/DomnrYi

POLICY EXP
(MMfDDAYrYYl LIMITS.

INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS^OE X OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO REJ^TEB
PREMISES (E« octufTtnMl

PHPK2670953

MED EXP (Any Ofx pf*on)

04/01/2024 04/01/2025
PERSONAL e AOV INJURY

GEN\ AGGREGATE UMIT APPUES PER

PRO
JECTPOUCY LOC

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • C0MPA3PAGG

1,000,000

100,000

5.000

1.000,000

2.000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea acodwm

S 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par parton)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2670952 04/01/2024' 04/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per aeeWant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acckleftt)

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

PHUB905859 04/01/2024 04/01/2025
AGGREGATE

5,000,000

DED X RETENTION S
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABtUTY

ANY PR0PRIET0R4'ARTNER/EKECLfTIVe

OFFICERAJEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
llyat, daacriba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS batew

STATUTE
OTH
ER

HCHS20240000534 (3a • NH) 01/01/2024 01/01/2025
E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT 1,000,000

Professional Liability
PHPK2670953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Each Prof incident

Aggregate

51,000,000

52,000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonal Ramarha SchaduM, may ba aitachad H mora tpaca la raqulrad)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Slate of NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord . NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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rh^Cmmmtrny i

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES
The Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

Helping People, Changing Lives,

IVIJSSION STATEMENT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is a private non-profii corporation chartered in the State of New
Hampshire, May 21, 1965 to serve as the Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough County in compliance
with the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. From 1965 through 1969, SNHS was known as the Community
Action Agency for Hillsborough County and ser\'ed the City of Nashua and the twenty-nine towns. In 1969 SNHS
became the Comrnunity Action Partnership for the City of Manchester as well. In 1974 the agency's name was
changed to Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. In July 201 1, Rockingham Community Action (RCA), the
Community Action Agency serving Rockingham County, was merged with Southern New Hampshire Scr\'iccs. As
a result of this merger, SNHS now provides sei-vices to residents of the 65 towns and 3 cities in Hillsborough and
Rockingham Counties. ^

The Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 and subsequent federal legislation establishing the Community Ser\'ices
Block Grant define our basic mission. Under these provisions the fundamental mission of SNHS is:

A. To provide a ,range of scr\'ices and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on causes of
poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly acute problem.

B. To provide activities designed to assist low-income participants including homeless individuals and
families, migrants, and the elderly poor to:

1. Secure and retain meaningfiil employment
2. Attain an adequate education
3. Make better use of available income

4. Obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living environment
5. Obtain emergency assistance through loans or grants to meet immediate and urgent individual and

family needs, including the need for health services, nutritious food, housing, and employment related
assistance

6. Remove obstacles and solve problems which block the achievement of self-sufficiency
7. Achieve greater participation in the affairs of the community, and
8. Make more effective use of other programs related to the piiiposes of the enabling

federal legislation.

.  ' C. To provide on an emergency basis for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foodstuffs, and
related ser\'iccs, as may be necessary to counteract conditions of star\'ation and malnutrition among the
poor.

p. To coordinate and establish linkages between governmental and other social service programs to assure the
effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals.

E. To encourage the use of entities in the private sector of the community in efforts to ameliorate poverty in
the community. -

49
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Financial Statements

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. ING
AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED FiNANCJAL STATEMENTS AND
' SUPPliEMTARYINFORMATloN

FOR THE ¥E^S ENDEdi JtiLY 31, 2023 AND 2022
-  , ■■ AND

ilNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT AND"
Reports ON compliAncE^nd internal
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. southern NEW

<  rGOMBINED^RNAkGIAU- S I
FOR tHE YEARS ENDED July 31; 2023 AND
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INDEPENDENT

Leorie,

;UO\^-:WOLF^i^O'
";nOrtH:&}Way'. "

4,

[SoutfiemjNew^ Inc.^ and Affiliate-'

;. ■
)• . f

*1 4, fc-, . ••-r £w'' ■ •- -fi

/actlyities^ahd Change's ̂ flpws^foj the y^^^
iJ' 1.l1 1 _A ̂  li' ~ —^- ^ •• .-f'- ^ X - ^

'C'"' ^•
; .x.-j .•"•

ilnxpur p^jnipn, 'th^..cprti|^ ;financ(aj:istatements .pres.ent;.fairl^^ respects,;'the}
i^^itipn^f & and/AffiliiaWil^^pKj^ '

fand^Q22;3apd ;the
...at..— Ifi tfle.Unlted/S'tate^^^ ' .

%asis for Pplhibh ?

jGpye^/^eh^uMlpgSia^nMrds^^^^^
;respdhsibilitiesVonbeKthdse*:sta^

ib'elieye-iih'atfthP^.aUd^ .eVidenPe' We.^ha is^'suffibieht aVd:;apprbpfiate'*t'6iprovid^,^
ibasis foriounaudit opinions.r '" - - - _

« .'x - » ■• » «x . . x- -« ,'•

i

(
•i;
IMariagerheht(

i.t

is;^:rg|^Pbs[bt^^''fp^^
'ifihandai.statemehts^ accbtihtina prlncibies-aefiefaiiv'acceb^^ ,i'n the'Linlted; .

trnaterial irti isstAtementr

A
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'Southern If^Jew.Harrf^ and Affiliate's.ability;,to^,continue
■within 6neyearafter theldate:that^thdifinancial statements:are available toibe Issued:"

'f . ' •

^ AM^dltQtsVRospohsibilities'fprthe.Audit of the F
p

Tpur/6bje^^^ :ta{6Btajn/eVspha^^^^ whethe);, ^the. .
, statements, as a: whole ate.^ree^Wni material misstaternent, whether due to fraud pr;efror;/and'
^tbJssu4pn''auditprs/fefepdjhatiiri,cludelp.unopin
tass'uranc8r^)Ut-/i JriOt ,absp|ut^^ therefpreOs not -a; 'guarahtee:!that^ 'ah''';audit.
pbhducte3^i'n,accordanee*'vvitK!generaliY;accepte'd auditingiStandards .and;Gov^
ySfa/idirbs yyiil always- detect'a nhatefial misstaternent when, it,'ex[sts.' The' fisK of hot detecting ■

matefjaj/.mjsstatemen^^^ frprh. ■fraud'--is.%1gher:than%r tbne .resulting ■from ierrgr; ;as>
fraud,,mbyinyblvb'cpliusjod^:forgefV/inte j
'Of tihternal/cohtrofy .(^isstatemertfs if;there: is/a^yubstahtia[;^^^
,ilhat{ indiyid^ualiy'ofiin'the.^aggreg'aie, they.wpLjld^^^
'^Use^'baVed:o^the'cdmbinedfinahdal■statemd^^^ ' '

«, « ^7". - • W- - S it 4 ^ ■ _ • <. 1, >44 . I*.- -- fcl . 4

'l,lh/rp.effprmilng.';;ani-pud^^^^ ■With;':gpn.era!i^ .;ah.djting''St^^^^^

.. ■ ^ 'EkOrcis.e '.bjof^sdpriaJ judgeniprit'^ahd Irtiajntaia profespidnaf skepticisjri't^

TpspohsiypV.tp;\th6sp^risks'.^^ examinihg>;dh'"a^Jes^^^^^^ v
-jevidehc^regdfdingtHe'arn6unts?ahd!ldisclo'sufes'ifrthe'''c6hibihed:fiharfcia

. lexbfessihp^Jphfpbihipni bhithp-e

T ¥»■

jmtexhaUcpntrpbfplpted,.fhatter.S'that:iWe;^^^
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•S . . • . , . ^

ilp'ur audit was 'cbnci^ '■thd-'purpose: of forming ah -bp'inicrri ^pn ^the icqmbinedyfiQa^^^^^
;:sf0tements, as b .wKoll: Jhe accbmpanyihg schedule of bxpenditujes .of federal awat;ds...;as'

■ ,required by,Titfe2;y:S.*CpdeVMbe/3/'/?egty/a(/dns
yReqUimrhefiWr&WPr{ncipks}'Bf\^
j;pOrppsesbfbdditlopahdhalysjs ahdi iSLnot a fequjrebipart pf'the^d^
^A.dditipbaily,; cprnbfriing :,sche^^^^ po^itiph, and ^dornbiriing 'Sph^^
ibctivitiP.b breVpresbnted for;add^ -an'd ;a/e hot a required ;partbf the c^mbjhed,
Cfipbhcial' ̂ stbtemehts.r :_Ad'diti6hblty'|' ith'e v^Upplehi'entdry .iirifdrthation 'as .fdqbired by;* .ijjbw'
'Hahlpshire, HpM^ 'isvpresehted Jpr.additidrial^arialys and is not b requiredt^part^ofithie
:cdmblhed finahcial;statemehts; Sucl;i, ln'f6rmation-.is'the. responsibility',of :mahagement;and,'was;.

^! derived -'froni ' and "relates' directly- tpvthei'uhde/lyihg' accounting and -otheh repbrds used to
'i prepareihecom^^^^ finahcjal statembhts; Theiinformatipnb^as been'subjected^^^
j'pfpcedures.-applied ih(the/audif .6f financial staternents,'and'certain" additlonaii
iprpcedurepi Iricludlhg /cbmpafihg'an'd, feGpnciting'euch infdr^^
:aPcbuhting;,;and;»btheY fe^rds iused. tb' prepare,;the:.cbmbihe or/'tp ' the.

fGUier Reporting Required'by.'Gp^^^^
V "" V" V^": « I 7* '* T. ' ■**.■ '- 7'.. ~X <t - ' • ,

. in bcpdrdance' witft Gc?y^bnime^ 'Sfartdarc/s'^Ve,^ 'sbued' du/, report ';'dafed: '
; Mbrchrt;1,^2024l(ph{pu of SpuJheVh ;N^

/■Interhallcpntrel iover ifinanciai,,:fep;orting;-a^^ noqij-ptir/ tests '-of •■{its '-ipoi^plian'rel with:;'.^rtbin^ ■
'?pTpv1sidnb \bf fegulatiohb.^^ffcohtfabt^^^^^ JahdiigYantVagYpenie
i:purpos'e'.bl'th|f.rep6iiC':spielyVloJde^
vfinanci^ andpbrnpjlan.ce^and.theVesute
;,'-on'-*thb'bffeGtiVenes"§ bf^Sgutbern^ ^jfiliate's'intere^^ bpntrpH'
1  brtjcpmpjiahde^jrhayrep^^^^

"-4

/DbverVNe\^'Harhl3s ; l

A:



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3.01B3E14245F0

SbUtHERN NEW 'NC ■AND AFFILIATE
COMBINED isfATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

^ .JULY-ai: 2023'AND 2022

t ASSETS'

.-CURRENT:ASSCTS>
''■■Cash^>

•''Investments), . -
;Griants receivable,
■'Accbunts receivable'
'Prepaid expep^s. -

' Tptal'turrenLlsseta. <

;PRPPERTY.
'r[.and/' ^ _
f\Bu'lldings;.ahe Mproy
»'tVe|ijcles''.iand equipment

'TotaVproper^V
'!jLese^accuniu[ated

»_T

,;R7operty!*ndt

f OTHER ASSETS'!
•^^estricteb )cash ̂ "

•TPJfftb ASSETS;,
*' »v .

teljRRENt'Li^k'BILmES i ^ v,
rrent pdrtlohjof long, ten)h''bebt[ f

'^^Accouhts^payabie:' ^ r:-

faABiUlflESANb NET-ASSETS
u » . .. .

r

* • Apbrued co'mpen^ed absehcest:'^';
".tjOther liabijities)!^
1 Rejuhdeble.bdyahce^^
^fenant^se'cOnty')dep -

- ""iJtbklaufrenrilabilliiesV

rLbNoVbRM mA'BILlTIES.
.V- - A.

•Total liabilities.'

<^NET'i^SSETS, .
Ti'Witbout dbnd'f rdstribilbniB.i•  ■»••• •• ,.v -v ;-, ,

I'liTpj4l;

wrf at'

v;2023 12022'; '

;$ M 0.382.755 ;$ 1-1.44i;623;-
'  10.b89;9i8> ;9.696.836,

<4^657.945' • • !4.458."963 •
1;075.68'8 ^ .•949:902 •

■  311.983, 'T29.2lb

-- 26.517:689 ^ -.26.6'76:534''

4,bfe6:674,-. < 3.575;086;
•  -'14;624,467r 43.'936.225 f

: 1.748:567 '4'.470:617.
■' .20,433,608, ^  :i8i98.1;922,

-  f6;392.579- .-5"6?7id:657'.''

- ■14.b41-!029' .  T2'26'l'.b65,'
ef' ...r r."

- sobtTTOi: _

:$.:^"l.d59;488.. ' :$ 39,45b7365i,

- ^87.597''.
;2';053,767y

.  ■fi;952,-567
42i;706-.

" 235,052 r
.  •- <2i209'.6l8' ;

81007'

'^'BS'.eSO't
'  ■ /99fs02^j

^•.Y-646\'168^:
,f^'67;;12'5;4

^'•222{b^r'i
^ 4-396.64b'.>

-770^2^74? ^v7.836,46b'

,LM^blOTE.S..AND.NET,^
^  *0 * •TV' ' »"■

, . : jT.^B9:230. -
.:6;431.564

X  • • ''x y *

.  ft; .

>3'2;627.984'!

:4V;b59:488'

.g:9Q5.793.>

«'9,742;t56'-

.,.'29y,baTibt.

^^|^>il)|QteS;td'Cprribjned^FinancLaJ Statements^

■4'
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SQutHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFRUiATE'

.'FOR THE YEARS ENDED'JULY 31 .-2023 AND 2022
v.>--

f.

;REyENUp,-9AiNS;A^
/"drant/feveriVo.v : ' "" ' ''
^Program. seryjce fees!'
■'^Lqcaifundln^^" ^
iRentel Yncom^' ^. -tt.

and!otheyrcphjrib •
^^Ihterest an'djilvjdehd Income;
YOnfealfeedilosV^ iOVqitirrierite-'

-> yMls^iranebus Y" . ' ^
•V|h-Kln'C^ntnb\ftipo^.
'IFprgiyeness.bf clefe _
• (3 a i n 'on d Isqpsal. of' qrp pe >

"'Total tdvenues;;;^^

>EJ(BENSES.,.
•  ■PfpgramYaeWlces

^ Chjib Peyelbpnien

. «.^Landubg^^nd'lltefacy • ■
*:Hpusingiand_:homeless.;

«<^Nuirltroh;and Heajth^
':.'Speciarp,r6]e^8-
^ Vpjunteertse)yi.^^ ^ ^ ^
»''^'iSNrt§rManagemejlYc6f^^

V  " -f-'-' -j ■■■' i •' ■ ■•'

^r.^iifp/p'^ram" seW^ :
.r , i*., ...V _

:Sjippprtng^ ^ _
''^Mana'de^e^t addgeji^^

^^\f6tal'expensfei;t
■* -K.il ' •'V*-

vlCHANGfeVN NEX,AsSETs1 :
.-t-, .-I?. V-:/V-» - - • n . '

ir »

ASSETS,IBEGJNNI^

'' [NETAsSiTS^tNDJbf:^ ,

2023

:$' il0r665;844^
-804,'331'
192.419,

vi;13'4',2i29 ^
",286V97S^.

463.096'
'■(60,ISO)' ,,
160.034' ■

''*1.406;827..'
•-■445,606:

-  ::495.109:'

"2022:

•$-.131i,l572.939,
'930,848:

■  .4'62'.i45;;.
\i,^48;788'-

'' 375;23'1 ^
'.4d3'.230

i(i;,>i6i;686)V
'  .5;l62,'42'9 v

■992:197'
,  /906,060"

J8i646

1^5^988,726:^ . -{i3'5.654.46l:'

^  ;i0,'344',0501
h,38b.3'9'9.<
,5.576;36>

'2l".055;660'
«  I217;448"f
"65.'332.498'.'

/2i03Y;56o:
-v'.iH9.'653"7

■ - -?2.726.636'...

Vi:i5y'990^7|t

.  i.,'2.078.577..''

■]9f7Cj9;703>
. 1;365;889 .
'4;855.488.

s15.5817785:'
-  '355';546;

i94.232.589
'':2,'f92',705'.
il/7'98.98t

. ■Ai69;"4oV
. A:: t2.458.985 ■■

'^32^6631572^

_.\i,9^7fe^
Y34f63:8,788»

•  ,->2;gi9,8755
' r.'

-  ..,29,708:109

-!!$--^2'jS27;9^',

'i";6l5:6n

j-V28;^.436:'

'^::-29i7b8:iQ5i
. 4 . .. n -

. : », ■piA'-."' -j. - ^ ■
\j- 4^. 'n •

(V , V -- -T '

5 '



0»«UI»n (<!•«»• IO.«(B*«O-7ie>«kCMaO>«ISXI4]4V0
. new HAMPSHlRg SgRVICgS IWC AMD APFILIATP-

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

■ • FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

Program 8«rvic«s

'EXPENSE'
' PayroJ.

t^ayroR taxM
Frtnaabenifiu',, _ ,
'Workers competwatipn intutarm
Un^phr^ienl .
Relirwnem benefits,

-'Cone^ni and contraouar,
Traveland.transportation *
Conferencea and rrteett^
Occupan^^

. MvartisJn'e
iSuppHes. , s , ' . V,
Equipment rentals'and.maimanance
' inturanca

Telephone' -
.Poetape.^',
'Printing ark) pub^tlons
' Si^criplions'
'  .'Program
' Intarest • _ ^
• Deprecialion . .
.. resistance to ̂lents-
'Otfier experae
iMisceRanobus
lirvMnd eiiperiM.

'SUBtpTAL'
' I "• ' ■ '

Elimlnslions

"i'TOTALKPENSES %

^Commuiiity
Economic and • -  - - ■ - Nutrition,

. •. ChOd Workforce. Language srid' Housing' and

PfY»l«nn>tnt Se'tvleee Dovelootnenl Energy Llleracv •" , and Homeleee ■ Health

4.S87.626. s: sdiieso- • i ■■.2.009.063 rS 1.938,066 5  -203.503 $  "1.43^041 ' $  857.455
■" .349.470 •40,180 • 151.587 146,475 '14.563'. • ''• 108,338. • 64.713

i;443.635 88,342. 440.413 603.989 20.634 /295.713 ,-210.743-
■ 82.817 '  5.684 "3.854 JO,384 .4,371 • .2,874 ' :'2i;i43

,13.237 1.219 ' 5.089 .  '5,495. . ' 549 < ' '2.892 '■ 2.398 •
342.791. •■48.717,. 153,650 ■i 19.927 • 1789 • •'67.638 '-58.764
' 50.990 •:274,726 , 300.288 .1,347.342- ■  878 ■ 1,154:158 ■ -12.482,
92,430. •18.212 .48,501 '46,755- <168 "2.811 32,89V

'• .  14,430 . 9.638 -  -; '830
706,464 ,153,012 "508.763 130,509,' 30,171. .  -iw.ise 71,981

134 5,915 8,628 25" '.75 .
303.547 ,'22,767 16,280 ■ 130^317 4.592 •71,748' '2M,941
;  .3.605 911 ';8,6'10 '  <31.905 ■ 443 ;589' '27,842
23.033 45.759 • ■  2.720 22.872 •  8,572' 4,317
.86.950 ••17.736 < ;37,596' :36,512- .4.W1 •  '46.272 ':70.40l'
•■1.402 , • • 1.010 36.476 •16,742 - 2.468 .
'3.0287 5;272 . '" . '  '• . ■

- .  ;696' ' t'-

/6.016' •110.075 1 29.632 .1
-

i 6.411 "• '•
182.997 •  •• .:26;64i' . 43,484. ■ 8.534" 6.627' 'i2'9e3
349,924 ■11.366 1.737,805 i16;521.-194 '6i.'950.040. 521,950
316,567- : 2,113 .  108.073 •26.625.' ■' .< ■ 2,503. 2,379 .

. •14.710 .1.003' •1.183' -4:215 .'25:' f 1.879- ' 2.527
.  '1,406.827; ■  •!. j'.

■ ;.l6r474.72"i' '  1.418,60:6" 5.586,497. r2M13.876. 292.240: 65,357.221- 2'.^2J93;
• 1130.671) •137:661) 110.136) • •158.316) (74.702) - .  /(24.723)' • . - .155';430l''

•'$••1^344.050, ',8 /i.mig'g ' $. :5;676.367 ■ i 21.055.566- $1 .-217,440 ,.•$-65,332,498"-. '■$. - 2:206.763' »
.... . _

i  . • ■ ..i-

•  • t , \-r; -J " t -

—' . ^ . -1 i- i
■ See Notee to Combined Financial Statements'
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CwvUen tmebe* 10: MCBOWOTWV<<CXWPO<»»m4g0
I NEW HAMPSHIRE SERYICEallWC. ANDAFhUATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (ConUnuMi)

FOR THE YEAN ENDED JULY 31. 2023

•EXPENSES

■ Psyrol
• Payroltam
•FrlngAt«(>eW« ..
) y/orkert cornpsriHtloh insurai^. *

UneniployrnenI' "
'Rstktiiiwht bmenis

' ConiiunvMand.contncnisI
'Traiwlahd Inntportatlon.''
' CcnfWnMS sivi meMinQs >
•'Owpsn^-

Adverliting
J&jpplie# .
.EquiprTwnl ronuls and malntanarwai
Mnsuranw' •• •
;Tetopho'n«,,
..Po^age _

Pfinting a^ publication •
_<Subscnptions

•_ Pft^ram jupport'
Mntwost .
■ peprodation, ^ .
Aulsiahce Ip clients

t Other expense '
'MlsceioVeous-
'in>Mnd expenm).

iSUBTpfAl.

■ ElinjlnU^'^
.TOTAL EXPOSES

—Proarim Servlcea

Support'.'' ■>,
ServtcM'

.  SNHS ■ Managamanf
''Social ' Volunteer 'Managmant [Total Program ■  and. " 2023-

'
'Proiecta • Servlcea ' Corooration Servlcae Oanoral ' To^aj

■'$ *M.'3»7 < S > 78.5«3 " i  701M9 S  '12.504,066 S  1,320.2»} i '13.833.316''
•4.773 5,550 51.177 936,804 •  :95.465 1.032.269
2.651' 25,583- .211,953 • 3.243,450 • :i7e.241 3.419.697;
:-306 ■'•,146 •  -10.911 .142,769 ' 4.432 -147,201

135 233- 1,392 ■  <32,439 . "2.684 .35,323"
,5.715 •6,920 ••53,840. '883.771' 130.495' '994.266'-.

.1,882:405 .'336 •137.435 .5,181.030. <205,722 , 5.366.761
3.096 •' '3.910 .■40.033- •:296.010 4,803 300.(X)3 '
•5.972 .i ■34.047. ■' W.91S • 1.074 '65.M9

<12.000 , ■ 689.228 .2,493.254 1 <'69,745 1557,090'
-1.047 • 1.574 -'17.308 ..' 25 17,423

284 .3.041- • 19.953 856.450 '<21581 >860,031
.22,835. ,  -.13' 18.642 115,605 5,989 0.121,584,

2,244 . '1.762 '.51.158 • ,160,437. .10,498 •170,035
2,750 3.751 31.762 337,390.i 17.787" '355.157

'668 •718 . •-59,481 .11.475 -70,956
; < 8,298 , -  ,8,208 ,

.  . • •1,199- -ri,895. -129 -2,024,
1,143 ■ ' 69,936 •237,102 ■ ,  ;237,102:

, ■<•-1 •  '45,072/ '51,463 ; 51.483
:.^3,940 ' .. 393,865 '715.039 • '4,114',- .'719,153"

•3,500 . 35,401 81,13i;200 .  r..- ,61,131,200
.  .11,879'. 424 •'12,233. 482,796 . •itOO' '483.196-,

' 252. ■<3.328 .  ',06;s50V . -125,081 •86' 126,047
.  -• - .1.406.827. -  ' • 1.406.827.-

•• «

. 2.070;7M.

..-('39.2^1 '

i 2,031.^

1.35.270

(15.617)

•i __:ii9.e5r

.2,740",057'
(14.0211,

•j -2,720.036 .

111,450,915'«

^(4OT,84ir.

$'11CI,99(),'274'.

•'2.084,225-. <113.535,140

.  ''(5.648r .(4^.280)'

• s .2.078.W-"S -lis.oei'osi

T;Sm Nptae to Cornblr>ed Financial Statarnants <
■  ' 7 '



'COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
•  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 3i. 20?2 ,

Pronram Sarvic—

.EXPENSES
■Pa^l ■
Payrol tax«.
Trl^ benefits t . .
,Wortienc^pensalion insurencec
^ReUrwnent ^nefits ^ i
'CbhsullBnt ^ ̂tnctual'

' 'I'Travel and Mnaporution'
'Co^wenMS and meetinBS '

'Occupancy '
-:M>^slng '
• SuppilM
iEquipmeM ranlab'and m^lonai^^
Insurance

■' TolephofM^
•  'Postage .
- iprlrtlirg'and pubUcsUons

: SubscrtpUons;
.Program support. '
InteiMl '

' OeV^bw
Assistant to clients'

•'•■Other expew'
-  vMisc^neous

. . 'lr>-kindwperises'

.-SUBTOT^ ,
'' Ellmlriations

"  r ■
'  . "TOTAll EXPENSES

Economic snd' , Nutrition

, " Child Community' .Worliforce, Languagesnd Housing, ' and
.•navalnnmant '.SeivicM OevaloDrneht ' Errarov Uterscv and Homeless Hestth

< S ''41662.859 .$' 556.156 S  1,890,9S\ .1,547,109 . S  •,236,667« • ••$■•"'2,616,252 864.^.
-  348,302 *  '42,274 ' ,149,819 117.947 17,294. ' -  153,374 65,249

<'.1,503,660 ' •-07,032 <429,280 421,614 ■ ' •26.12'3 %3,041 241,067 i
'-'•97.375 • " 7,094- <336 '11,681 5,631 -' ' 4,375 :-24.217

343,^2 .'51.651 '.166,504 - • : 114.842 9.313' ' ,;'59,816 64.339:
i'52,542 289,776 '309,531 1,922.755 . .1.017 , > 927,682. "•/10.004'.
;.7p,049 ' 14,684 * .37,686 • 42,224 ■',461 ■  1,628' •16,486 •

. 10,660 •  ; 5.378 .. . ••'■' . 1,016. ./825
034.228 147,065 -  '.'664:837 .129.718 * 29.924 •,62,641' 56,192-

• 1.188 *.1,680 13,322 *  100! ' '50 • '150
2ro.441 24,289 15,592 -105.361 ;i2.i22 * 81,566. 254,026.
':17.789 13,090 •5,139 •12.244 10,403 ■. -18,919 10,377
•'19,076' •-47,482- <5,982 23,078 -.1 2,483 4,717
71,694 17,062 37,827 40,509 - -•3,114'- 24,751' 79,5'10-

k  1.628 '  7 i;432 29.767 ■ 246 .25,363- 3,753 '
M,4e8 ■ 4.568 '•,16,531 645-
„ " i .  •- ■. }704 •; -

.  '.li^973 . ,i'26.345. , 20,585 . t  . ' 4,617
•■7,811 r . 1 - -  .. '  .-i

133,424 .19,673 • 44,630 -  ',8,533 • 2,^ ■13,778'
238,519 ^ •a,297 . .1.107,003 :i1,032,470 > 96,w.6ib • -486.684.'
346,271 ••2.816 -  '4,642 ' 101508 «• ' 31203 4,744 •

■ ll952 -44,69l-, 1,036 1,596 • 'ISO.- 2,088'. '  •.i.eaj!^
.. . . 0«;i97 . \' . ■- ■ '-f

■.9,830.267 i,625,612 -'4;868.667 15,628,616 > •'356,^ * M,24l2-49.', • .;2,206,243;

.% '(1201504) ' •'.^(1S9.7'23)- -•■ '■(h.579\^ •.(4<^)'
-

. "' (10-^) 1 ;'(13l5M)/

■•J • B.709703 S_ 1*385,889". ■ i'' 4.85S;4^ S^IS,581.765 t- 35S:S46 » ,5'&4.2'32.5B9 S. -jislTOS



DMuSl«n ID. nCMafrnAMXCMKXMISK ■'WgWHAMPSHtREfigRVICES. I^C. AWO AFFILIATg ■

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Contlnuvd)
■ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

•' Program 8«rvtce«
Support
Strvlet*

-EXPENSES
'.Payrol 7,

Payrol taim '
•' Frtnge bcr^s ;
■ - Workart eoiripentation kwjnneo •

Ratirerrani bemru \ .
■  Conaunanl ihd mtrecMaU >

^'Trav^and trant^atlcm |
' Confewcat and --
• Ooipa'ncy ' '*•••- •
'AdyM'tIng .
SuppiM*' • , ^

. Equipment rentals and rhaintenanca -
lnwfan»
Talephom.

-"Pojlaoo"
' Prlttling and pub^tlons <
Subs^iiortt. > . ^
Piogi^ sup{^ .''

• Inierm'.
Depreciation _

■ AssItianM U dients
.O.lherex^rtM
'MlscalaneoiA \
' li>lund expenses j

. EHmlhatiohs'

.SNHS Managament •■
s

iSpecial ■Volunteer Management Total Program and •2022'
Prelects Services CorodmUon ■"iftArvlres General ■Total.

. "j . 70,027 8  iS8.286 $. '680.95t ,8 12.693,150' 1.258.823 '8 ',13,951,973'
5.334 ■ ■4.777' 51,276 '• 955.648'- • 91.302' '1.046.948

.  8.4)5 17.932 ,124,330 3,230,574 ■ .172.052 - 3,402,628
■Ml 146' 12,7M ' 186,249 4.0M '173.213'

5.851 . ''5,739 51.873 • 875,273 -123.402 - 998.676;
(■i,576.097 2,790. 154,643 .G,246;e37' , -181.115 .5:427.952.

;  2,535 '1,W7 ■ 43,639 ■*.229,969 6,137 '■•'238,106
•1,867. - '36,679. 56,425' ' - 2:276 .  58.701 •

- . 20,274 653,118 2,277.997 -44,863 ' 2.322.860 >
■ 25 500 1,641 "18,636 . • 338 " : 18,974

9,^ 3,099 22,434 797,224 ^ 44,635 ,'841.859
■•5,673 .21 10,928 ■ 94.583 ■'1,052. : 05,835
1706' 1.762- 48.929 . 155.174 16,931 '172.105'
2,776> 3.137 ,24,285 •304.959*' -14.673 - 319.632,

7.. ■'752 •  ■786 63,721 '  - -.*,1.1,966. . '75,887 •
. ■i.477 '24.729 . ■^24,720
. •900 ■ 665 n 2,260- . id29 ^ ■„3,29Bt

'  3,336, . .  '.73.105 • 223,861 ; 223.681 ■
- • 47.746 55,557 55,557.

■48.2M 395.803 .  667,333 u:ii4 •- 671.447
<•41.099' ,24,779 '  • 103,457,e78- ' > • <; 'v163;467.878 "

r  • . , • 7,175. '  ■ .379,359 1 ' 1.539" - " 386.898
126' 2i3' .. 68,702 • .131,370" • ..209 . ,131,579

I 992.197 ■  •: : 092:197
>- « ■. "

)ri'35.11,802,317

',-(3,338)

M08,40) • '2.533.713

'(74,728),

•-133,102,670:

(441,868)'

•;i,881,420.

. :(3.704):

.Cl84,300

■ (445.602)1

'•$ "'I.TM.Cei' , '$■ ••iiw.401 * 8 2!4M.885- S 132''.66Co7l, ] VJJZLI22' ' S 134.638>68 '

■ See Nptet to Combined Financial State'meiito'
'  " r -- - . '



DocuSign Envelope 10: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-B8D3-01B3E14245F0-

SdUtHE^N HAmipSHi^ SERiijlCES::iNC: AND-AFFILIATE
'CpMBINED STATEMENTS OFCASH FLOWS
FOR^THE YEARS ENDED JULY 3i;2023 AND 2022, ■

->;cl^"HVtbws;F|^p^ Acti\nfiES^ -
^Ghangeinhet'assets. - ^ ̂
•Adjus^'enlfto r^h'dje.^*angi^.|n ndassets tp''
;;hetcastrfTOm['operating'a{^ *;
' Depi^aUbn^ ^ vv* • ^ ;
^Gain pn;disposal^o'f property"," -
^Unreajlied lowjarflm^stmen^ -

• LpssonconsthJcttofi' - .
Decrease (increase)'jn/a^tV

Grants receivable • '
\ AC^unts re'ceivabte
.PrepaW^ex^n^s., ,

increase (deaease) InJiabilUies^ ^
OAccpun^ payable _
. Accrued payroll and .relaied.expense '
Awfuyd^Mmpensated, a^^

'btherliabiillies"'
\ Refundable :advances ^
c'Tefiant sMudty deppslts-^u

•  "*•»* 'iK ~ •' *=«• TOtf t C -S

!. NEtCASH PWVloib by OPiPA^ iiSlVITIES: •
» ^ • -V ■ • . O / • .-•fe" •

-JcSSHyLOyySf ROM INV
^ r.Pui^ase of property", ̂
rPn^edf ̂ni djsFW.M^^^ . • . .:

. ''Purchaseyfjnyestfneniy'relnyestedd^

'TJET.CASH U^EpiN lNVEStlN^^^^^
^cAs.h^flows.fr4m;finan

sRepaymertiofIpn5tenfi

t -N|t cASH ysgD;iN fif/ANClNG Act!vm^ ,

•»* ■

tiNETtlNCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH,

".CCASH ANp^RESTRICTEp^C^^^ BEGINNING OF'Y^.

Ic^SHAN^
'-L -'T.-t" t >: 'i --

t ;%upp1EiyfENTj^{bfsc^^^
''^Qash p'aidyudng'tye'yeaT^for^^^ ■ ' -* -

•ls'UP&LEMENf/W.'DISbL6SURES:0ENbNCASH;R^^
"* ̂ uildlhgJrnprbv^menls; In tHe^wn:ent yea!;4n;ac^ "
.  -1 .' ! L.: '. '.» ' i • .r.

'I-CASHANDRESTO ^
irfflcfiy-s'r>- ' *•'^Casff ^
j,Restflcted:Msh' r

■♦Total cash-and restrlcted,cash''t

•"I" •

2023 ; • .. 202g '

;f. 2V919'875' 'VS' j;(^5^7f ••

■719.153 ■■ '
,'?495.'109)?

,  ,60,130
j(440.0bd)
/" "i"

7z '

*  •>

?i87i,447.-
'(8;545)''

"1,101;886 ,
•;(9bO.OOOV

'"70;044'.

(100.982),
;(125;i86)'
..(182.77.3V-

{1-.007,'324),
;(171'.292V

7.482

495-,206'
,306.419

:i4,581''
.  ̂ 12.958-/

,;(2;181.022)i
-(13.750)

- 299,328
■458,824:
'■'(17,372) >

V'(21.028),
2.966i502 •

— .'v6i525 '

";89'i.56o. :-4.472;i5d.

,(2;144,9pi) V
.'709.1,71"

-,{453,212/:

{1.058;436)"
■•45.428:

.  '■(402.006) •

^(,i:888;w2)V
jf.'"-. ■- .

/ 1.(i:415;014V*

^  ■■ ■ .  . . -{681765)'

,  - M72:622j;- .  '-(M.TBSV.

i.(i:o7Q.0iM)r -i2;9S8;;37j;
•11.953.589. •

>  , .. . . .

i-8.9^.218'

fS-ld;883;525 ;S:iri."95i3.5"89\

X.r. *'5ir483Lt"
V

A  .X •

t„j55;557V
^  .^=. ,,

•  . - t

f\ V.

,$• 10;3B2,755:^' ■
/  ' ^500.770'.:..

^ :.S-Mi;44t,S3 ^

16:883":525'^w"
• r - -S-5. ^

■ ';$^11C96'3".589 .

ISee.Notos to Corhblne'd Financial Statement '
'f •- - 1 vj— , • ,1. *'ml.'- W-' ^11 •, W • » -V*

11,a-:



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3.01B3E14245F0

AND AFFILIATE-

I NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STAtEMENtS
< FOR THE YEARS ENDED'JULY 31. 2023 AND 202^

. NOTE ;i ORGANIZATION'AND SUIVIMARY OR SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

iGeribral' . _ ^ .
■SGUthfejfv'tjIew' and; affiliate, (the'oVganl^ i
no'hpfofit umbreila ■ ebrpo that .bfferejin ..a/ra'y v6f servlbek To. /the, elderly^,

<disabfeB,«and Ipy/ringpmeihbgseholds' in tjiewVHampJshife^^'^^^
:anB RoqkinghamVCpunjy-The'^^ pfograiris provide assiM'ance Jh; the
rareas bTeducaTiqn,. child deyelopmeTit;'erhp^^^ anBots-.con.se'ivatlbn
fftousingr'and rhorheless^ The prganizatipn' is- committed' to'
^rpVidingrirespectful^euppprl se assisting iridiyiduals-arid
^adhievirig self-sufficiency by heipi.ng;'them" q pbvei^. The
Jphma^/sQu^ :reVeriues Is Behved'frpm^gpyernrne Services, are.
yprovid^ed. Through iSoutherri'^ ^ .Hampshire . !s^ and, "''SNHS;;
•MahageipepTCorp ' - • ■ r ■

V  - ' .
.  .j;>5Basis"of Acco'iihtind

''The-.Qfgahizatipn '■pr^pafee jts;lc6riribihed fi nancial 'statemehtVutilizing the";accfuaf
_^asis pfiaccbpriting"in''accb'rdance;wiffi accpu^^ accepted'
'In-trie .United .States of Amenca-• - •• ^ .'V ^ f ^ ' y ' T . I

Basis of Presentation . . , . .
-•A::--!'.Jri'b;cplhbihJe'd>finari■cial^^tatemehts^pf/the'^ in!;'

accbTdahqe with^y^/generaliyaccep'fe
;re9uiceThe^Orgariizatio!ri,1^ .it's-firiahcili'^positipn arid/
iictivitTes,.a^^^ tp^trie'tollowirig^het^-^a^^^ classes pt net'
^asW^are'deterolmed.by.'the.presericrebr-abeenSe'pfBbridr-impdse^^^

-1

reay.:ibe';used;at/fe
l^Bdafdpf pjfe.ctdfse;!

; Net -assets'*;with bohof Testrictions ;.- ..Net 'assets sut)^ /tc^istipulatipnS\
i.impo^d by :'dprioYsV and :g
tnaTuje ■ 'those jrestncti^^^^ ' be tfutfilled- and "Tempvedi ,by .actibris'?6f!tfo^ ,

PF'SManX-tp/jtripsb ■
:BbrVbrifes.tri^idris ;are;per^^^^ l

-feclassified''^fj[pre ;het'assels!with :ddnpr;^^
•dd'nbDfB'etrictiohsJriMe'statehibrii^^^^ '' ■""" "

'ITf



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

S0UTl4ERhi NEW Hampshire sEftviCES.^
-

:notesto combined financial statements;

• IF0R>THEVeARS ENDED JULY-3T 2023 AND 2022

As,'6fyLJl^' 3lS':2023 ;ahd.'2d22r." the Organization Ihad-no* net assets with Qonor
restrictions? ■

Gombined Firianctal Statements: . • . .
^I| .signifiMn|1hte?cpmp tfans'actions. have/beeri Plirtiinate'd frdti ihfe.
basic :Mnibihed financial /state The 'comblned financial tetatehi'ehis, include
jhe accounts* tpf?'SNHS sMariagement !Cprpdratjdn 'because Southerm NeWv ̂
^H,ampshjre(5Cwices,;Jnc/cdntro|s more th^^ powers -

So.uVferri,New^Ra^ 'Inc and ■SNHS/Maha Cbfppration 'ar^
gpyernted, by' sppafate^ bbaf^^^^ each Organization fi les its own fprth.
^99b.with the IRS^See'^^ dg'phges 25'ahd*26 pffheseifi^^^
staterijehts.^ " "'■/' ' ^-r

festimafed, r\. . • . h .
'XheTpfeparafiph;^^ ofihar^cia^^^,atenrlents^jn. 'pPhfb^hity^/w^^
,ac^"pted arcountiii^^ requires imanbge^^ mhke :estimates ahd/
ass'umptiphs.'thataffect{certaih^r^^^^ jlabiiitieS ahheldate-

^pf the finari.ciai^stateihbh^^^^ and thg^repprted amounts of, feyehues:■and^texpCnSes^^
'during thereportbd pehpdvActuaii resuitsmay diffeY frbm/the'seanhou^^^^^^ -

.£ash andfeash iduivaiehfe'. ^ ^
/For,Yheypufphse"'^of;:,the^ : ofj ^sti. flows, ' tftb ©rgahizMioa ■
"Trrtnislripr?; all I inrisctnrtoH'hinhlv/ .llni"iiH ^ohf inieinjminnfe'Ki "<5 iri+n '/n/^

•  • • . ;» % ' \ . f, * *

'CurrehfVulnerabifities D\ie!fe ConcehUations:^ _
Jhe Or^ahizafibh is 6perated;in e

; the" Orghh.izatwn 'are s^ thb adihihistfatiye d iregulatipns ofj
_fede/aji^:^tate:;^^^^ iigMlatCiV/^spencibsl^Such/adjdihis^^
"anH('rarii ilafirtiSe ara^ei I ^ 'o.'

:cjbsf.iin/^udjhg^the'addjtibh^ a change.;
t  ... !"* , »- •• ^ '->•

•A- ' -

Cohcehtratioh of GfeditiRisk- . ^ ^
■.^He;5!:'C)rd"f|mzatiQ"nyfTfalhtaln^flfe:^c^s^^^^
JoMtp^in/N^ewi'l^a^ Ihd, ;iyiaihe.' . Jheihalahces/arb jns^ by'Mfie'"JFedbra^^^ f
, peppsit Ins^rahce^:Ofgahl^^^ ' rnstitution. In f

there ,iend sig^ theWhepVsits at either July .
■;2'02.2i :.v"

* /

n124
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMp-SHIRE'siEi^N/iCES.lNC:^

'NOTES fo COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' FOR THE YEARiS ENDED.JULY 31 2023 AND 2022

*  . ^

'Accounts and 'Grante Receivabie -
AI| :,acMunts^'ahd; g^^^ at..the ambunt management
;bxpects:'tb.^ -libutstahdin^ at :yebr-;fehd.^ Rbceiyabjes .are '
tecorde'd;oh Jhe: /pnrnarily :basbd bh lrei^h^
contracts; grants, .and.;agfee^ "after.managenierit.H^
used reasonable^^ are ;\(yritten off through, a charge to had' dbbt
expense .and a/c^^ the applicable .accounts receivable/Management dbW
not -b^lieye- an aliowahce^^^^^ uncollectible ̂ accounts receivable is'.necessary at ̂
■j.uly..31/2p23\and20^^^ " " ■ : / ; ' = • '

', *■ r <4 ti

^upport andiRevenue Recoqriition
■ddhtracts Customers- ^ \ , . .. .. . ^ .
■Rrogfanf .fees are. rbported.at:the:-am
the^.Organizatipn .expebts,ito^'jbe" 'entitledjfor';prbviding'-childcare 'sbrvicei- toVits-

,Generally,* the.'p custbmera' and thjrd-par^.payofs aeyefal days.
'aflef/^^theVsery^ ^;are performed ; _Reyehue/;i^ . recoghized/as 'perf6rmahce*<
Qbllgatioris'a'ce satisfied,'Rerfprmah^ afe/deteri^lhed'baSed'PhJ
nibti iro rha''can/iAioc .n'r/^V/iWA/-l*Ki/ Tl.m

pbligatjpnj.i '

p/byide-additib^^^
''' 1 . .. »■- V • \ ' • . • . . j;---
BaSed bfi the;hatufb':6f:seiViceipf6vided'iby fhe Ordahlzbtlbh

IC^UMCU: ly uto.yi.uac a«»c ayyicydiCt^jnuUMl Ul .-'UIC lloJiaaCUU priCe . aHOCa(eP; lO
^peHofrnan|^.'^oblJgatibh£:thatar:e^
fhVreportihgpbfio^ 'o' . - ''- .rv" ' y '

^ j

,r..

peRartmef^,/pf^i.yealth' :;and/i.t^urhari: "Sew
Ivai'mKi rre'am'o'nt

^ feviews'-and audits.

■t-r
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFlLiAtE^:

NOtES to COMBINER FINANeiAL STATEWIENtS
■ FbRlTHE-YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

TlterOrgarilzation-has^'ele^^^ practical-.expedient^allow
* FASB^Asfr )606-10-^10^^. for ' "ap^lyihg, the - rey^nua standard to ''a,';fDortfqlic) -ipf
l:dhtracts:with>similar\charactenstics;^
•■WithiKeach pbr^olio ,as a ;49llecti'ye :gfpupi , ratfier than^ in'diyiduai cdniracts; 'ba^
ph the paVrnent.patt'em: e_xpeM^^ in each: pprtfpllo cat'egbry and the :sjrtiilar nature
and characterlstics/pf ;the within'''each:: portfolior The pprtfolipg;"consist :pt.
major "paypr'dassb^^ sen/ices. Based on historical collection trehds'
and Vother: .anajysis, the- Organizatigh tha's ■ cbhcluded^ that revenue Tpr *a given
pbi^olip would' npt^'fevroatehally'different than if accounting for revenue ph a
dbntract-by^^^^

thel 6/gah|zatiph|ha^ also,- elected 'tp/apply .the Tpracticai expedient; allqj^ed
under FASB/ASC"6p'6;10^32-^8 ifbrthe:financing' compphent, as'the-pen
tlme^betweeri .;thV sewice jbeihg jprpyided'and {the time; that" the .client or tHirdr

Rays:fPr{the,sem . ^
Pn'^ai^ GraniRevenue^an'd Cdhthbutions-
.PnvVte 'grant^bbhtributibns afe^'teb^^^ cash;; securities or pther
Issets'.an/uncbndjtioliai pfdmis bf .nbhficatioh'of abeheficiajjnt^

^received! ppnditidhaf promises to^give are hbt'recoghized'uhtil t^
^^jiyhicljithey'depe hayVbeeh, sObstahtially met'Support that is restricted^by'Tbe
"donor is rep6rted';as ah JhcrPase inr het-assets without dbnor restrictions/'if the '

JdonprirestrictidhSndepehdihg on:the.;natUre pf.theTrestrictipn. -When^aT^
e:!cpires: {thatis.Svheh .'a: stipulated tjiTi

"accomplished), ;net;assetswrt^ reclassified^tp :he^^^
'without dphbrrestrictibhs.'and'report^^ statemerits'of.aCTvitiesv

' aS:hetessetsU#leasedifrpm^^^ .
'  *• -;»- V ,s ' V" ' ikv 1V

Gmhts'an'dSuDDoH', ^ J ^ _ ... ,
{Grant, revenu^'1s^clenVed;fVorh/:yaVj&^^^
s.tate^and'pfiyafe^
,fundin§ i-supp.oij:.pf; the^

that', the: {grant ^'agfeements{:qfe<-q^ '(rionreqprpcal; {transactjph);
cohditiohed' >upon i certaih 'berfofmanVS.' fTequiremehts,' ;ahd/br; 'JricurrenceTof' '
a owahe oua ifvina- exoenses'.j'Amounts:received'iare- recoonized -as.-rev

■'proyjsjpns 'of the grant agreennejits.

Alii
iC- t



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4ACfl-BBD3-01B3E14245F0 ''
;S01ITHERN'NEW;H services, inc. and AFFlLlATiE

'NOTESTO.COMBINED FJNANblAL STATEMENTS
Pok TRE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Jefgridabje 'adyahQes result from urVeXpended da'ance frOm .these cdoditiohal'
^'confributi6ns,|ihd,Will,bd;su,bsequentlyTe,c.6griized;as ̂
7don9r'''cbriditipns'' are, ^Federal " and. state'.: granl Ireyenue/bpmprisad
lappro^rrhately^'^S .'reyepue^ihVth'pJfiscai'years
'^623and,^622;'respective(^^^^^^ " ̂  ' ' '.

■ Ih'Kiha^Donatidns\ . ^
-The^^Organifab^ -Various ;types ̂'pf in-kind suppo'rt jricluding; pVofessi^^^ v
^seryi(^s;yand 'imaterials.'' ;ContnbutPd prpfessi'onal i.services a^re VecPgriized "'if' the
'seiyice' reqeiyed, creates-or eiihan^^ or requires speciairz^^^^
^areVproyided, Py. individuals possessing those skills, and y/6uld. typically need .to .be

'.(See. Note.'I?).,

.Inveitrnente;^^
•l^heV'Orgaiilzatipn> carries - linyestmentsVinr mar^^ securities: .vy'ith teadjly..
deteifhihable^airfVafuesanCall Jnyeatirre^^^

'In :the co^rhbined-statem pdsition';, Unfe^lized^gaiha'and !Jdsses;^^
iafe- inciuded the'Change 'inshet. assets 'In.'the''accompanyingVddmbin^
Statements of- activities".

:pr6be"rtvV ̂
] Rxppe(iy;acduired^',b'yfthe-OfqCnizati# .1^
*yalMe:ifdGnated^ltis<the;Qrgahizatibb'&pQ
^Jtems/ih a'ndirenewaisiare bapj^^^^^
J^repairsr'andxrfialntenance^afeiexpehSedjasU^^^ calculated';

. 31r^20?3:;an*d,-2p?^^ :44^,.J^spbctively;

'-i'V • -J'" • J "il -Ti •" ^ L.-i"'-. •?•

'PJ
well'

las'the'oymership'oiany.proceeds iSsubjeH
* ̂

.^AdyeftiSmg', .
fTii|'.pig¥riizaji6n^use|.,,advertising
seiyei!:;th'e<pr6.duc"tibnvcpS^^^^^ ' \v

■  - 3! - • '<J, y t j. " s.- . '

5161'"
j-*.
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SObTHiRNjNEWhiAMPSHiRE^^^^^

:N0TES'JO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR JHE YEARS ENDED JULY 31 2023 AND 2022

Income Taxes'.

R^ven'uiel'P.Q^leJ.?^ npt privatejQuhdatio^^ As such,/they are/e^empt;frbm .
ipcpme'^ax bn ;their exenjpt

^Tutictibh'al 'i^lio'catibn of ̂xbenses . .
The/0rganizati6h,allbcates, its. experises.oh ,ay,functiohbr bails/among its yanoUs;
program's^and suppoH sejyices. Expenses that-ca'ri'be identified'with aTspecific.
^^prbgrafh'and xsuppgrt ;sbry!^s,,are!'ajlbcate
expbhditurb classificalibh; Othe/ expenses,.that arb bornmoh
are. ailpcated. by^ mana^^^ 'on effort. Supposing seiViceV are;
related:^tQ-6perating .ahd man^^^
'day^basisvSuppbftihg s"e^ ' ' ̂

Ihcludes /all ,act[y!lies ■ relat'e^^ to /the/prganjzati^^
InterhaVmariagernenU' " •

New Accountind 'Rrbnbuncemerit

[nfbrrnatJbn;'.a.bout'leasihg/arra JeiseeS ,and. lessors../The ./stabdard^^^
/^ppljes ajfigh't pf usb'rnbdel-Ihiitjbquirbi^allilea^ Wifh.ia leas.e/terip-pf^ffip^^^^

NOTE?? RESt'RlCTEpl^CAS '

'The>iOrganikatibn;^as;stjpulatb^ pQreerhents'associate^
Jhe^hduslhg7pf6jeb^s1hpluded• l^'SNI^S'^)IVna■gb^ required tb
.mQlnTOm CAnorota 'AnOAIir*TO * Or>/n •rV%oi/A t'«Ar\TKIvj'

funds/can pqcqn
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SOUljHERh^NEWhAM^SHiR^S^
^ :NOfES TO'COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
■FORVrHE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

:NOtE i^ jMlR value MEASUREMENt-

OnobseWabJei inpyts/(Leyel 3 ii^easurements), Valuation techniques maximize tnO
use of releVahj'obs^ and minimize the ise of unobservable Inputs.

:• "1. . V '
The^thjee .leyels of the. fair value hierarchy .under Financial Accpunting Stahdafds
Board Accouhtrng Standards 'Cpdificatipn 820, Fair; Value'Measu^merits;'are ■

"described as'follows:'"" ' " • - , -
•V ,--w

XLevel 1.; 'inputsjd'tlTe'.vaiuatidri;!^^ unadjusted;quoted p^
identical '.assets; of liabilities ih actiyejmarkets that' the-prganizatlbn'.has the ■aUil^',.

jtoacce^s.'attliemea^ ^ V . ' >! ■
J,;eVeT;2:;ln'putA6ther'than;qupted;pricesjncru.ded.Wim
jprthejdssetofli^jjity;eitherdired^^ " * " ' ' •f "'

'  ~ ' "1'X ' ^ ^ ^
■V'VQuPted pdces:fd.i:simn^^ or Jiabilif'ieA in actiye:mdrirets

:vQ'uoted;phces tor*identicaror:similariassets;:or\liabilities'Tn.'ihactive
.<ma|kets:;S-,' " ' ' -

'^vJhputs':btheV;thah;qubted [prices^that^aYe obseIvable'for^fhe;asset b'r >
I'tjabilityf V
''"•^Inpuis-^th.ai.'aref^Yien^ pi; .corroborated;'by/.
^ bBsphyable marketidata'bV correlation'or ether'means'.'-- ' • ' '.  -pV- - ' --V^ ;V-

-> »-i' - ^ * »" .T" • j'
If the;b^sset or ;l|abi|ityihas;a;spec[fied;(cohtractualftefm, tbe L^ye);
,pb&eryabld;T6r'substantla'l|y the'fu|lt^ * '

•>

Leyeli 3: Jhput|^that;-arb unobsen/able for-the^assPt or.hability.^-

VisXa^deschptiphVpflth.eyyatuatipm
^heasurediat^fairry^lue.rThere'hayejbeen'ho^changei iri the" methodbibgie^

July 3i;,2023:^d:a)2i~ ^ ; .v v v r v .'V. f.r V ; V

ilnfe etthe, 'netibsset^ pf ̂ shares/heldi on' "the ■ '
t i last'tradingday(oftthe (fiscal year;; which is the/babis f6f,tfansactioris'^atYHal:da&^^^ . ... . r - v

ThejifbiipWihg^t^^^ .within.^the;-;fa1r-..yaiue;lhle^^ ^
prgahizati6n!s;assets%TlfaifvPlu^

'  I*. I-. ♦. '> • •. ■« •

>n .* .
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

.Total mutual ^
atfairvaiuo

fdlal mujiial Yunds
at fair value "

.202^

Levelt

'$10:089.918 . •

TotalLevel 2 Leve 3

2022

Leve) i

9.696.:836

Level 2 ' 'Level 3 ' Total

I.

INVESTMENTS
—

- r ^

TKeVOrganizatipii's lnyestmehts';afe";d^^^ iri .IheVfihahcja!' statefnepta^^ 'thp •
aggt^gafeatTair value\and:cdhsisted df^he following'as - :

^2023; .2022

;'iMarkdt
' 'ValLle:^

'MarkeT
Value: "Gost

'f^ut'uaLF,und$i
-.5 • , • V j

The /Organjzatipri'1Md TunVea

#he^:actiyitie^^ ^Or^anlzatipn's^^ <a6cpunt!-,afe::"sp)Trhafi^^^
''f/SllniAic*. .V \ - - ;r ,

»  A.-"

2023

. Fiair-valUeV b.^'rtplng'dt.ye^:'
•  <• %.„ ■< .■ .f ' A * '• -.i-l

f:2022 J

'  .*;Diyl*dends.ahdlcap^^
•  iOrirealized.TossN'''''-'"- '* ■ ■

' -"V 7** 1 ''y* " . %

f^M:ya|ue.%eodiPTy^

'9;696;^$'
-Z'1' ''it *: -j-n'' -s* o

i'4M;2n2:'" . '46^506^.;
-•(6d.'i3o? . yiiSssy::"

m
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SOUTHERN NEW HAIViPS SERVICES.-INC. AND AFFILIATE

^ NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOfrTHE VfARS ENDED JULY 3l. 2023 AND 2022.

:note 5>
1  rf:

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

-Jhe:Orgariizatibn's financial assets available.fdr expenditure, ̂that is^^^
•orLptHerTest^ Withih. bneyeaV of the,statemfehj of fin'ancial^^^
positlph date cbmfinse the • " "

:2023 >2022:

Cash'

Inyestrnef^ts..
G/arits recefvabie.
Accounts: fecayabt^

$10:382.755 .;$1i.44i:623:
'■10,089.918 :9,696.836»

'4;657,945 :4;458.963
:^ 075:088v " ■'949.902'

.TbtaJ firianbjaiassete^ . ■ $26.265.706 j !$26.547:324 *

, J^one of %e 'financi^^^ are subject, tb;'ddnbf orbtberbbbtfactuai.Testfic^
.fAcGprdingly, a|l sucb^funds are available the. needs of the OrgantzatioQ^^ ^
the he)rt '12 .m6hths:Jn addltiph, the OrgahjzatioK maintains several reserve fun
for propetty taxes; ;inSu/an6e expenses, and repajf and feplacemerit or emergency.

; heeds which'afeifequifed by fin TbeseTuhds :may be .withdrawn
•brily.'with"the app'rbyali^pf the; financing authority,, and^"are "'hpt .cbnsidered/byjthe
p'rgahizationJ.p have don ' '

jhe;tOi^anlzatibp; :rba.hages^itb:iiiguidity,' by-'devdlppih^ ^and-adopting, .ahhua^ .
operating (budgets that pfoy^ genefal expehditii'res
lts'|iabjlitiesandjpther;pbligatipns asth'ey becom^^ ^

,  ■ e "1- .. . 4 > ' >

iNOTE.e; LONdtERMDEBt^

ThbjIphg^efmVdeb^at'y uly 4^^
^ i"-". BtT - . "*«' „ . . t. W- ■^'Tc. ■4»~. >• . <A . s-~. H " r • ■

.  - , ^ . ;26^ ;i :2622:
'SNfrs;.lhc.v ' ^

■  ,y. J". , fc .. r- .
„ (Vlgrtgage: payable tp.bgnK.-secured dy-'real estate; '
, (o&ted/'Jjh'iTemple/St/,
"^ohthjy/ihstairm'ents:"6fl$2,1827plus-j^
26joyjrtteVe'silis* '&V>4:'00%v'aFldU^^^^ - ' -
72022^ ^ " " •• • %' •!i62:6i5-4 # '182,389\'

i
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SOUTHERN NEW

NOTES'TO'COMBINED^FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. ̂ 023 AND 2022

*'2022

.SNHS'Manadement Corpora

.«• • u '• A . •

-i. 1

-Mortgage .payable td- C .pf,\M.a nbh^este r.^ isecQred..

(Interest''Is :at., ;SNHS;, Mhcu ■ is^ .currently
"negotiating: iWltrtitie -Gity^bf Manchester-td-'obta ■ • r

j^ortgage. :payab[e-^Jd^^New Hampshire" Housing,
■se.cwred'i6y;feal estatef located^'pn- Pleasant 'StV=
iEppjng;.i![^JH;^.;dayable Jn ^^nonthl^^^^^
-••fl-;d'M.OInbludlng;^ntefe'st' ttirdugfr^^O^i": :rnterest' Is. • , . ^
iat'3,^^ " — - ■ -lyAibbpt fl8i;;56d'

*' f- « 4 *> f

■'Mortga§e; payablei^tSitheX^^^^ Nashua ^lecured; by
fXei['.'estate-' "lPp"ate.dXpb.^yinV 'NH,-
iMprtgage;,wi]lr;bd&,rglyen'^^
'Ipy^rijbpme ^'hdusjhgy''f^^^^
';ld'00%'i.^anhuajly' ifxegu^
^bafrje'rvvvas-^rhe^ ■ the' yfeaK;.epded\\dU^
/.2b23^aQd,^.iKe- m,^^^^^ ffulf-and ,
^.rdbpgHize^^^^ ' ' ^'2p;.QQp

Mortgage ̂ vyas^forgiye;n!lin^.ful!,'•and XP
'ihcPmd'(Sed;NbtedOj: '' ' " ' ' " ' .?• '^250;0Cj0.'-v. •- ,» -•-V- ,-■■{/'• " T. v-v-,;

f  ̂ j
i

Jricbme^bp.ujsirigtfbx'iip'y^^^^

^ecQghize'd lihtp'inq^ djoTobo;'
'if'-J v.*,-:

;20>
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES: INC. AND AFFILIATE

. NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE-YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

.2023 52022 i
T^pftgage•.^'pay^b^ iParsbns; ;ahd "Sons
^5tu}nber,^se6'ured^by^ oaC^staT

'of >

■■p?7.15 -indUdihg. interest jthrbugh '2031r Interest, is/
vf^5.5Q%r ' ^ ^ ^ 2?5,423 . - c|22^03"
jMortgage/,payable ^to .-New Hamp$hife Housing
secured :by':real estate ioMted.^ln peierfield, NH.
payablein^rriqnthly-lnstanm^^
interest .through. 2Q3^ Is; at;7.p0%/ ^ .'289',789 ' >308."698^
y  . ,v ' -' ; . ^ ' i"
Mortgage?;payabla^ ReWi Hamp'shife; 'yogsing"

/secured b*^real esteteJocate :NH^vyjth. ■
.eiinual;princip¥l Tdp^ym^ ... . ...
•^Orpius; due.thro.uglT^^^^^ at plOp.%^ - /392;925 ̂  3.92v9i5;.
.vMortgage//payab|e: 'vto' '"Newi Hempshire 'ypusihg
isecured byjeaf estateJocated'ih ,Deerfie1d, .Nrt with
annual iprihdpal xe^^ tp 25%;;pf/cash ■
sdiplus due through';2d32./lnterVst-is atp.OO®^^^^ —^50.000 ^ISQrbod '

Les^pufre.ht^^ . ■87.597;' ,-.*83-'656..'
;£ i-^.793u

-The/schedule.^ ofjpng'rterm-.de^^^^ is ̂ s:fblloWs:l _
► V

U^YearEriding;
i^Artiount -

;:'2624:-
'  180.491 N

.^2b'26^ ;34;8^9'
•:'2027/, ..89;564'k

~:#28;_ .Jp4;498T
Thereaftei; <> T'639.778^

"S

215..V'
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SEf^VrCES.'INC. AND AFFILIATE

; , NOtES TO COMBINEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUilY 31'. 2023 AND 2022

: NOtE 7. lDPEf^tlNle;LJEA^S;

jheC%gahizatl6n"le'ases^fVarious^^ leaseVr'Tpt^l-^'
Jease^paymenfeT9^jthe y.ears;ended^^^ and 2022 equaled)^$923,323'
.'anB,-^8.64,P53/^ jhe^ ledses expire ;at'■vario^us tlmeS; throogh .2025>'
'Sdl^e''6f;tK§^leases-/cohta^h' r0newal;dptiohs/^t^ "are .Gohtlngent: Updn^^ >

eljrhinated- in.the. qprnbjp^d-iRn^ncjai "s.taT^rrientS:

""the ■schedule pT'Tuture; m payrpents" at\/July:*5'1,';2p^^^
operating tjea^ ' ' '

^YjeafEndlng^
/wUiily 31 *

iT2624'
;>2025

'/Ambuntf

'78;i6T
^2.524.

90 685-^

?' note^b.:; ^Accrued COMPENSATED balances

jforfeited?^

d N
4-*" r +
OTEiS; ^ IRETIREMENTBENEFITS'

cvyagesf wnne^tnerurganizaiipn 'ppntriDutes :Tuyo\qT Tne)/-,vwages;:;i ne;rej!re.rneni^
\benefi,t'^e^penspTpVVthe7yfeare^
;.$P9,8i&75j;Yei^^ . V -is- ■ ' v v" V

.04' ^o'Afid" Vuii-At;;

'Tbej r'01.V^state:^!ldca^ m -.Nasbu'^^'l^ew rernajned,^ as^lowjihcprne >

'^20
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_SOUTHER'nVNEW.HA^

• NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL.STATEMENTS'
TORTrtE YEARS ENDED JULY 3i: 2023 AND 2022

During Jhe'YOar-ended July 3j',.'2022; the Ofgahizatioh realizedMfofgiveness*of ~
■ debt income- rn'*cpnnect!ori'.with^ a'mbrtga^e. payeible' to. Jhe City-of. Nas)iua, the
teaLestate^^^^^ S.t. Jh Nashua. -New Harnpshire Temained^ '
'income bpusing for-SO y^ satisfied.the,crite(laTpr debtfoV^iveWss from -
'theVCI^ of Nashuia.^Fp^glyeness.,of .debt Income-totaled $900,000 forth©
ended 'J.ujy',31;-2022'6ri .the accompanying conibihed statement of activities:

iijjdT^lly RIsksANDUNCE^INTIES
Cottbri Mill Square
^ln^-20.15,-.SNHS; Management Cbrporalipn entered into a; contract as part of the.
..^Goijirhunjtyy/Pevelppment Investment;tax.'Credit- Program..\with Jhe CPrhrnuhity
I Deyeippriieht Fihajice Authority (CDFA) and'Was awarded $1 ,d0.d,00.0Jd prpvlde:
.]|Un'ding»T6r^the^deyelp^^ and ■adaptiyeireuSe^Pf an ebandoh^ 'histpric.cpttoh =
-;milJ:nhydpvvMPwA^^NjsHija,;vN©w-;'HarTipsHir;e.^/.U'nde^^^ the/PrPject-.
^(Cottph-Tyiill Square 109 uhits-pf.'hPUsihg'ahd Was: required;t6:reseo/e^^^^^
/ofthese^UnitsyforJbwtb'moderate ' ' ' ' /. ' ■r

^s,stipulated byythe.coiitract and©'fter a:20yo;/pfpgfaniTe©f^^
^SNI^S.iMahagement Corporation .ente with the '

.-5%"e,aPh;y©arJf;th0;Prbjapt majrife of'55:low.to;nnp^^^
',1ncome'l;i6.usehbld u'rife:.

The Cottpn.^lll. :Sduafe'Pfpject:wa0.,.awa>ded,4he certificate'",pfvp1xUpancy-oW'-
.A I in I let A "otn/t- mmome intfi ill U .'«% A .

^unlikely that the'^PrPjectlwjirfail^jihtoVnpnc^^ fUture.tpferiPdsiTherefdfe,-
/SNrtS^ManagementjiCd.rporatioh'iH^
Jiability, re'latedtdfthistrbOsactiohVThO'h6tetepayhiVnt. is":accel0rbted.1fthe'UhitSt'
•tsjl •oyt'OTj'com^ljao.ceJ.'^^ • , . . - . ^

r A

^jre.ceiyablalipr/ljabijity/wItT^

^lslbTE?i2i "iN-klkpiCO^Tm
'{ \-

T.hey prganization' ifetoTdsythP waJue;vof-jh-kind; .c'brttributipns. acOTrdingj /to;!the.
4»adwi^ntirio'p;o|ic!es;^^^

p23 '
i -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3.01B3E14245FO , '

SOUTHERN tJEWH/VMPSHIRESER

.'NOTES to COMBINED FJNANGIAL STATEMENTS
« FOR tHE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND'^2d22

The jfair yajiievdf :gifts "Jh'kihd "included contributions In; the finah^^
the-cprreSpbiiding program expenses fpr the 2023.^nd-2C)22j is"!
as'felibws:.'

,  ■ ; 2023 2022^
'Vblunteer. hburs
' Head^Start and Early

^HeaS»Start'

.NOtEJia. feCLASSiFICATIONS

aih ;reclassificaljons havejbeeh hiade' tbTbe prior ye;a?s firtancial stateme^
h:were.;feReh Worn-the clulY'^'Si ,;-2023 financial 'statements,' t6;'bonfbriti^.to;.^e-

curfeht^year pre\entati5h.^ ' ^ :

Certain;
<which/^

iNOTE U^ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS;

Management;rtbsjmade/:^n!evaluatibnrpt,3^
f2624;>Which^represen on, which' the'cpmbihed. ifipanbiaiystatern^^
W%e.\avai[able\tb 'be^;issued!^and".determiried'that .any* sub^^^^ events^that:
Would :rbqUjre..tecbgn1tronb.r-di§closgre/have'b^ ■
J>f'these coiribmpd^^ ^

.^24\
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SUPPLEIViENfAL INFORMATION
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■ SQUTHERNflEVy HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFIUATE

< COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
.JULY 31.2023 <

SNHS: iner

SNHS;
• Management'
TCoroofatlon Sub^Total

•ASSETS,

^Etlmlnatloni ^' ToW *

^CURREKF^ETS'
)''' 'Cash ''p
JiTveatmafrfsi' .

r^lyabie;.
.Apcbunts recei^Ue .
: 'PrB^W.expaTse8
''^piiejFrb(n relst^ paril'as •

Tot^ avfehi assets >

' PRPPERTY

'Landr-...
' Bulldlrv's and impfoyementa.

'Vehldas arid.^uipment a
"TptsI property... •

;Less:;BCumul3t^ de^cfallpj^ i
Jetai'pf6^rty.rtti|^

•  '■* t«

t;.dTHER assets'.
'••"■'RMtrtctodca'sli v.

, V A.- '»*

~ tOTAt ASSETS?

.•;CURRENTUA8lLjTIES', ;
' s .Current, pofildn of long'lof^ doy ^

'AcMuhtSipa^sble *'A .

Acca^ end related
^Accrii^ compensated absencu'.s'
'.bUterWal^IlUesf
Ra^ndabia advanras >
TenardAe'cuniy deposits, '

"^DiM to*!r^l^ paf^s.
*' -^'C

(Total .^e^jabljtt^es t

-t i.

.  .. IS .
^NONCURRE!n.U>^lg■^ES-
'.'.Lpng U^^debt^'lwcurronJ[ pora showabove'

.  '^fotal Jab^fes;
4"'

'.NET ASSETS^,
Withoirt dViior reiWctloria^
" ■ i!'-- -

•J\-1.261'357'' ;S 9.121.39'8;., $,.>10,382,755
'  ' ■ • 10;089.918' '10.089.918,

>'4'4.'090'
4,075.088
rV.60.576-

'4,813.855,

[251.407

.4,657.945
1;075.088-

311.983

f'$:.

.  : 5.288.049:. _..2.616,017^

-■$,'10;382,755,
'MO.089.818

.'4.657,'945'
1;675.088 .
V311.98'5'

■.'11.414.^81 '17.716.638 • ?9.ia3.766- ^f2.616i017V 26.517.M9-

• 64(5!805-
3.969.258 '

.  .1 -1.498.975.

. S,413769'-'
,l6.855.'2ir

■24'9.592

'4;O0O';574
•14.624.467

1.748:567

.!4!080;57V'
•14.624.467'

-  •.1.748.567"
' Ta.iisioae;-

...J^l,949/3621

'"14,318.572,

•4.443.277^

;20.433.608-'

-6.392.570

:20.433,808-■

-e';392r579^

•4.165.734- '■•0.^^295 - •14.641.029" -14-.b4i.629'

_ :30.78i " .  '.469.989^ S66".770 .  , --"500.77b''

•$.• 15,61iVi83 i .8 28.084.322 .$ .''43.675.505'' . ',$ (2.616;017), * $•'41,059,488.-

iliabilitie3amd':net assets: '

i  .8 ' :i9.966'"
'  '.1S92;132 r

^  'Eap.sse;
•  \--

.212,367.'■
'■l.S94i546'

•v29.'459 »
• '2:672.632.f;

(S-v '6^63^
1.161.575:'

•;T.67i;999^
•.M21.706

•■22',745'
•S'15.072;',
•'52';548

-••(56,015r

is ,.;87,597'-
^  .2.053.707'

' 1",952.587.
■•,421706
'235.'6S2;

.2;269.618'-
e2.'007.'

.i'616.017.

.•'8,. -J -".t , ••87.597^
'  •2.653.767>

r1.952,5S7>
-  .. •'•421.766:-

■;'235',652'
;  V2.209".'8i8.

, ^ ^ ■ * ••sa.ooT;^
^. •(2.616.0171.?^ -

'•.6.|6i'.W6. ' ••,2;857,26V
-.r, V

J*i;658,291' f2.616.b'if):* •i6^2.274*

- - "142.649' .. - 17'46;581. ' r,M9.236' • 1.389:23d"
.. . *

\e,W3.§7|

-8.^7.504*.

4.l03.eM2

'..•t

'23.9!m.480\

^l{;047.52i

4K. ,.k .
•32.627.984-

. i2,6j,6.^^;-# .:B;43i;5,^. •

..32.'62>.9W'.

■'rtTbi^Lli^lLITiEl'A'NONCT •.^s!^15.61l";183:'viS'2S.^:3^^^ !$ >•'43^75.505 •?,$ '<2.616.0171.:- ; $'4'l'.059?4A •vt-',, ■ v • '-^p. V'-•>•• •V''*, - • 1 . •• _v .. V - ' 1.

t25'
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^SchtdtitoB

■ SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHI^RE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFIUATE

COMBINING S6Ke6uLE OF ACTMTlis '
?:F6R_THE.YEAR_ENpED JULY 31. 2023

V  . -.SNHS

; REVENUES,^GAINS-ANDQTH^
' GraniVoverWi* -
' Pn^ram
' Lorai funding' '
'^Rehttllricofne.^^.^
i!61fis ̂ nd other coniribulions'

vi'ihts^ and dl^nd fra^e*
' 'Unrrolt^ Ipnon'lrwest'ments.s
' f Mi8^1a}ioot»* I ■■ " '' .
' Forgiveness of debt ̂
^G^ on disposal of {Kope'r^.
.  In^iffd cohWbuliws^ "' '

' Total r^nues; gains, and btber support

>'EXPENSES-^ .
:;Pr^nin seivtcea
' ^Chlid d^lopfrierit: .

•i^nimunJty services'' .
Edpr^icai^mrkfor^
fEn^ > ' ^ '
^langu^ in6 Ottra^.-;
■Hpusfng ^ hpmejessi
Nutrjdon.and^healih','

'  ;Spedarpn^B,;,^'
'Vblunts'erserylpBS .k.. .
*SNHS,h^^err^l CorppreU^

^Total (xdorar^ssfVlc^
■ '!8upp6rUng'actlylHes..

'i t^ragernent gnd gen^
• - . .r ^ ^ ^

• tpiatexpen^si^
J> CHANGE'IN N^i^SETSj
■t ^NET-M'sCTS; BEGINNING
* 'iNET. ASSEfS.'|ND:0^ VeAR^

;  _ ■ C . Lj i.

''ISNHS/Inc*
'^Manigemoht
vCorooration ■EllmlnaUon i Total.

V i{0,W5;84'4
•v275.039\"

O'
t..'26C.'926'
'*. -ejo"

I ■

i 24,603'V

/ 06.301'
. : 406.827 '

^ ..V
766,393

^■192,419
'-1,363.417*

■ 20.047
461470
(60.130)'
■•35r431

-440.000'
.478,608,

i ,1l6.M5.844 ' ^
'  '1.041.432,'

■-192i410 -
i'.363,4i7 <
' '286.973,

.463,090'
-•(60,i30)'
160,034:-

Vt40,00p/
405.109 .

1'.406;827

i
.'(237;i6i) "■ ;'804,331'

.  -■ .192,4,10^
; (229.188) 1.134.229,

'T-ts . ^286.973.'
■.f .? 463.090 ,

(eo.iso)
-  -166,034
♦  '440.000

495.109
. <1:406.827-'

S' •

.  .112.756.160: .  ■'3.698,855' .  116,455,015' (488.289)^ 115.98K72'6'

10.474.721 -
'.;i .418,080.
'5.5ffe.497.

,r2l.i:i3.876'
'291240',

'^65.357.221/
•:2.262.-l93^
^l07b.786-
".135.270'

V.746!d57'

'16.474^721
■  ;v.4i8.oe6
r'5.588,497;
v2V,113.876 ^
%''292.240/

••■65.35?;221
. 2^62,'193'

' 2.070.780 f
'' 135.270

.  .2.740.057 •

};(136.67i1 •■•16.344^)56
':(37.661) *.1.380.399,
-1(10.130)^ ;'5.5i76.387',
(58.316/- ;-2l,05S.560<

•:(74.792)'^ ':217.448-.'
1;(24.723J '..65,332.498. .
'.'(55.430)" , 2.206763 '
v(39.280) f,i631,500".
<(15,617)"' . /;.119.653'..
•-(14.02iy: - .!2:726:03l.

'iM;rip.858' .2.74a657 1.i V.450;915 • 5 (4M.64n • ' Vf6.W0.'2f4

•  2'.0M.22i- ,-.,^2,064,225?
K.

'(5.648) • •: 1678,577
tk 4'

•./l10J95.08i •• . _..2J40'05V^ .i<113.535.14d'. '
V  v.-*.* - —• - ♦

.  ..•.:(466:289) ...ii-'l13"088,e51.>

t i'.OT 1.077 ,
w

-^'6.706.^27;

'.951*798
."23.doV.68l:

■  f '^1919.875.

.-29.768.169:^.

.,2.919.875.

.^r.29.708vlCi9'.
,  A e •-

S ■ 8,687;504"* :  2'3.M0!480
1  -tf. .

,$»«'32.627.0e4.». ■i- - .--^,i■:s^32';62f9i^4•'
f  ---}:
> V . :.L.. L.

.....

i—". ^ -

.26^
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v  . WHISPERING PINES U ■ > . ,
(FQRIVIERLY: ERRING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

fPROJECTNO.A199991-OA6^:

3 «'Ti^TEMENTS.pF FiNANCiAL POSmbN ■
^ ' • JULY 31 .'2023 AND 2022 " '

ASSCTS

v'CURRENtMSETS;

■ Prepaid.expenses^

Xolal currehf assels^f

' riflESTRjCTEO CASH.
' ► Insufanca' "

Tax;escrow^ * 1
iReplacemerit reserves .
.Operating reserve ♦

T^otal restricted,casfi

t PRORE^^
'iahd-;/' . ^

• . »BiiildiRgs-ahd im'prpvernen^' ■
Total property^

^Less,accumuiaWd'dep>eciat^^ ,
Property! nei'.

wotHerassets .
TenanllsMunt^ deposits.

-  . .• •

.  ̂ ^TOT^;ASS^^
- - 'j'j* •**' jJ'.br ,

V jdjjRR^i;
s.

TIABILltlESANDNETASSETS
c

• ' sA6couhtS;payabJe, - „
5.Accrued .©(^nses'

Tolal'cuffent liabilitieSi <

^ LpNG'TERM LIABJLjTI.ES .
Jpoettfapate'*''" ^ .
i Mpftgags note payabjev'less, Pprt^o/i as shQwi'caboy^^^

.Tenant^ecUri^ , v

Toianong.ieri^®n
* ^ ^ i. ^ -A- ^

'  'T.qial liabilities^^
S-r.' .^i.- -«.•

:7
« '• < '

i  >
*1^

lifOTAL'UABILITIES AND NET^ASSETS '

.2023' '2022"

T8ViiA)^ 16;249
:9 6.492'^' , :648.

.27:606 :^.897T

ii 10741
:.4.767'

42.539.
;55.427v

;3:-126^
• >4;959'v
27.778. .

- ■-79.495

'103.607: ■;ii5.352:'

.leS.Bob," i166,600
598.178^ . . -"596.176

764.778
•  V r« •

653.966'

•-13.504:

■'7|4TJ8 ■
t'9'3.216- ;

'>671.-562^

-•i14;643 ••

1^7:6io^4 i'S t £t'"6-769'>i
.  • "4.364 • , " • ''5^8' '

:328- —::^49. n

.•47,697'^
^167,790. -
_ •13.504^ -

:  ; -1 ur

: ' ^iyf-
, ^ \U.

^'29,575^
M74.80'0''

•  - ;24p.693;.- ;231;2^<

_-.=^.-5S7:99qV ^^b93:i70:.'

■2f<
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-  , WHISPERING PINES II ^ . . .
^FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP^

-  - -^PROJECT NO. A199991:046r-

V  --vSTATEMENTS'OF ACtlVITIES
t. FOR THE Y^RS ENDED JULY>31. 2023 AND 2022

income ̂
^•RentaHhcqme; .
'lnterest'lncom„^ ) ,

'  interest Incqme'Testrlcted
' Oth'er.Income- '

''' Tbtal income'

^ IpPER^tiNG E^PEj^S^^^
^ Adrninlslrative- * ''
. lUtilities. •

-iMairitenahce
'.General '■

^TdtalVpeVatlng e'xq^^
f- INTEREST EXPENSe'

/ iNCOME'iLOSS) BEFORE DEPRECfATiON n

"•Depredation.

' CHANGE IN NET ASSEtSM-

y NET ASSETS'; BEGINNING OF YEARt

.1 NET.ASSETS, END pF y^R>i

^2023

■':8-
:2.537.;
. 3.680 -

(2022^
•  I " ^ T' 41

' ii;
-ii72^

'5.400.
■ - •

■178:127 .  ;i80;892;

43,135 ;l9,45r.'
'42,357. /45.744''
-74,601. •62,802'

.29.371, „;26.246

.-:i89;464' ' . —:^■■it4;243-
•' ■■ ^

^  ;-6.247 ' -.';6;479-

;*(17,584K^ . <170 --
• K

^ --■17;596- ■ — 2-T7.'494:

■'(35,18q|r ^iT4?4):
. . .593,1'7d> '610.494*

'S ' ■-■557i990 , •'$*. - ''593,'17b:'-

>28,'
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■r., ,., ^ ■ WHISPERINGSPINSSJI '. . v. j.
> ^FORMERLY:- FPPINfi-SEI>ilQR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP!

- - - ■iPRnAPCTKQ. Am9i9i^AB\ • - V' " =

SCHEDUlES^OF rental OPERAfions expenses
• rFdR^THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31: 2023 AND 2022,

^MiNisfi^^ ;
' ;1;Mana0rn.ent:(0^^ ' ' ^ ' '

;Salafi6s and ;W^ages.«
* Fnnge benefi^^^^

^  s- ^

. Inyestmerit and^fHianagement
jTeiephona-j <=■ -

•; Other-idmlnis^^^ ^expenseA
^olaUdmlnistratlyeixpenses^^

2023

.1.1;803:
^'3;376"
'4;.44i

.V399;
r8.7l4:^

43,135:

'''r4;400 -^Afioo'
'  "6^816?

tojiz'
p.3;97-.1
¥.120/ '
1;687''

■  ■- .'4,4i4f

:39.45i.

iUtlUitjESr
' • l Eleclricity

'  -■ ;
^WateV/'anS:sewee.' "• ^
i <^lhCr.'u t'lity eVpense-^ .

"  i' "

VTotaj utHity^ei^penses^,
i: . , - 1- -

'MAINTENANCE
■* Yrash remoxaJ^'
^'cSnqw rernpyaj^. ^ ,

• iElevato/Irepaire'and M
\fciistp'dial'^Up^ ■

* ?;Repajesr.
' ''Repairs,'coht^^^

' Totaj>malht0hanceiex^

iNtERESt/NHft J- '
t. ."fe t t!-v .

.BerrecIatipn,

:GENEj^L*EXREN^^^^
'i ?R0al 'e'stale'TaXes'" (

>  ' **•* ^

Mpayfpir.taxe^
5 ^ReltweDGi '■^Wciljrtian's'w
•fins'urancer* .
K'iDJ i - V -• •

u^tp%lgifi4iSl\e.^pefi§e;i
<  ** .

■>

.1.7.22'6:
■•12.218;
'12;9li

I r ^
i42.357- ,

';2;512"
'.167214!.
>:3;4B2i

•-'44;68d'
•~-..Y:fe98;

>17,056
'■l'5;579C
•11.630-
-^J';479.*v

.. „ J '45.T44

• } .2.'533'->
^i2;496-'

3,756;.^
:.-295V

•v35,52^j
•8".2d6-.

•  -• •'— t-62.802^

-6.247h " ^J6^7§:>-

- ■-i7"¥96^.
- n

-iizMoi:-"

I'tr *■

392
Vs .

.20;392.
■

."T9;648 •

• ¥o'
-'j55Y« .;;35t
6i450:-

>29:3711 ■-. . ^<2fe-46r
..S^' -2'13"^07t \:A- - C198',2"i6. ;.

7.,.. L -' '

-291



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

'  j ;WHISPERING PINES 11' ^
IpORMERLYr EPPING SENIOR HOUStNG ASSOCIATES UMITED PARTNERSHIPS

-  ■ fPRQJECT.NO.A1999fl1^46V.

ii^CHEbULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
. iFOR THE Y^RS ENDEb JULY '3i: 2023''AND 20^-'

VsbURCES OF-FUNbS:
■'Rential operations' —

^INcb'ME>i
" ■'Tenant paW reiit-■

V HAP^rent subsid'^ V

^;Total;renlat •

^ InleiiBstiinconie'
■ Servlce'incorne^
' Other incon^

2023- '2022

;$► 157.554^

'■ •^71;902.-
4-

:.2iM5/
.2.345

■  -1:335- .:

'-.ISTiSyS

■!l75;3bf

-Am.'
';2;635
^2.765-

'Total.reh^l pp^itohs ;178v127. .MS0.892

'expenses;. ^
Administ/ative

Maintenance'
'^General

' TotalYeht^ bp^tiohs disbureements- •,

CASH PW)VlbED;BX'(USiD IN) R^NTAllOPEIWflONS BEFORE'
'  '"f^^MORTBATIpNpF.MOFlT.GA^^ ' " '' '

■AMO^ZaViON of mortgage t .
V  t. "V". .. . . .

I  ,CA'sH USED in rental pPE^ bEBt:SERyiCE; i
^'ip.TOERSsBUR$^^^ J

'"^Nct receipts (payniente).frdrh management egeht -
Netv^^drff^te'(depbsl^)'ffom'^r^^^

prbi«rty,'' '
■^NCTijNbREAsi (VeC^
t CASH/bEGINMg OF V^R. t

V  ■■ r ^
,1:ASH;ENbpF YEARl't

\.-43,2i3." .  '39,008
43;426: 4.1.718

■:74.259s f r63:i3a-
32/215: <'25,539'
-6;247. . r  '';'6,479'

499."360* .
0^^ ---

. '175.882^

V(il;23/f, ^5,Oi;oV

.  - -{6.769);-. . .  (6,537)'

.(28,db2).-* -'{1;527) 4

" ■'18^^22''
'VJ1;745 ^'(6-.128)'

-  -ii - ' • ^ . ^ tr(6,070):.

Ci6,249:

' <r r

-• . '3b.53bV>
'• '■; . """ V

\%L :Ji6.-249. ,



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-0183E14245FO

.WHISPERING PINES II

rFORMERLY; EPPlNG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMItED PARTNERSHIPr

'  ̂ ' ■fPROJECT NO.;A199991^46r " ^ .

'S.CHEbu.LESrdF RESTRICTED CASH .RESERVES AND ESCROWS .
'  . i FOR-THE V^RS EH'bfeb JULY 31 :io'23 AND

I bESCHiPtlON^OF FUND-
Deposits vWithdrawals.

Balance '
Beginning of. v^undlng of. Interest

■■ J.
Bala^cte
'End of fl

Restricted Accounts: ' Year'' ' ■ Reserves ■ ^oendltures Vea^

For tfteYear EndedJul v^aY: •

dperaVing reserye'v i_S. '7'9i495; 1,52^ (25,591) 1 -^5,"427.'
'Klnsurance'escrbwl .3,120' -;6',264

■; • '■ •>. ■ -'V ■ • ■ )

' tax^scrbw\"
*• . ^

1 ♦ Repia ce j'

-■'4:959^ :20.547'
>•

.  >. 27.778' , •• -ijiaod-

;(8,364) 1;074'

. '139'i ;(2p.p8); i4',767
.761; ^ - .'42-3ZQ: ,

TOTAL RESTRICTEb CASH'

_  ft

^ FoMhe.YearEnded Julv 31 .^ibiz'-
-  • -- g- - -?!

^Ipperatingjeserye' '79,373; 'f' r . $: •• • ,422? -$% .  7^495,; .
^  ' -J ^ '

.i>!lniufanbe escrow;'-
'  » V* • •• tA "

y2,p/l . , .1

•  iS-:
I

■  ;(6;2^3i9y»

v'^Tax'escroW-' ^■,b,22bi' 'i?;o"io •  -:9''
^,

fi9,288)/" ■
.'V

''IReplacemenf fesen/e-', ?2-1;7.li2^" . ...^1i;850: ■ ,  ... :36- ™'{5;820p.., \ .^27778'
r  .-W- JUr St..-—

r ■  ".T "■*'-/ •""" '

^ .tpfaI- RESTRipfEp b ASHI"
i RlsEFlVks ^Nb ESCROWS

»  » » - - y " - T .-i; • V' • ■ XI ^ ■
^09.224- il2

.. • 'Ce . ' ' ' •

p

- '.1.7?.'-
r  ' T

31i



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

WHISPERING PINES tl

fFORMERLY. EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PART>aERSHlP^

'(PRP^^CT NQ.A19P?91-Q4§}

-SCKroULE^ OF SURP^^
FOR THE YEARS E^DED JULY 31 ;2623 AND 2022

^'Net loss'

r-Add:

''depreciation"^ «

' Dediicti'' r. - —_ i iFi, ^ . V

'Interest iricdrne frorh'reserve accounts •'

' rRegulred;prtndpal qayrnents-
• •Required "payments to, yepjacement, fe^'ryes

2023 ?2022«

;$■ '(ssiiBof t'$; '^(i7;3ii);

■1>.596-

'{2i537r.
(6.769)'

(13,$od)'

'■17,4?.4.

.(172).

ljl.1,85,0)V

.'Add other NHHFA aDDroved itBm's:
.jr

deficit

.Ihvesiofi serVic^' fee
' V • » • • •.♦ iL i

.1'6,120V

(40,690)' ; t(.12.269) ;

32':
'



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

■WHISPERING PINESli . . .
fFORMERLYVEPPlriG SENIOR 'HQUSING'aSSQCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)'

- VpRQJECTN6.Ai99991^46V

\YEA'R-tOjbAtE 6o^p\^i\6kpf OWNERS* FEE/pisJmiBurTjp
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 3i. 2023 AND 2022"
a  « T". ,'*2 , ■

't;Maxlmum.

.-Allowable:

^'Year-f 'bistdbution.

■'■i2h>;/2doi ■ ;5^ . :243;85f ■
712/31)2662- , ;243,'835:-
■■12/31)200^, .243;855'.
'12/3,172004"-. ■243,855

y-uii'fiicidsi- : 443.855*
:;i2/3iV2qb6y <243.855 ^
i]^31^p077 ''243,^55,.
'l'^3'172Qd8.;' 1:;243;855

■.;12/3'1/2009;'. 1443,'855, ■
'■"1^;1'/2&ia.^- ' 243i655,. '
■■1;^ll/2Qli' . '>'443,855:'<

•■■1^3,1/2bi2\
''f * *"*

>(243:855 ̂
"'-.■12/3172613>- • ;246:855i '
-I23l72dl4"l i,7243.855v!'

•  ̂ - • • A*
M2/31/2615.. •1243.855; <
.7/3.1j20"i/: ''.■f42i249ii

.  ■7/31/26i7:' ^;243,835^«
.:7731/2P78-; ^'*i243";855V
■7/31,<^6i9^ ■■ t!243;8557
■7/31/2621!); * . w443:855:.

i443;655 ^
;7/37y2b22;> ■
M.1/&23 - • \

!'243,'855/, i
. {24i855'i^.

Distributions
r/ - . t. '
iReceived',

>,5.895 •

.6:126

.7.200'

'Baiance

.S' ~243;855'^
'^^7;7^0 ;
'(725,670;
962325.' .

;i.206.180
1';44i?15-.'

-i;6'87',77b.
.V,93l,625/
4,175.'^,0
^■2,419.335-i

■'":2.fe63:f9.d:^'
'2,967.'045-
.3.^'43.76o;-'
3387,655/r

'3331,,410':^
'3J73.659^ •
,4,bl7-;5j4,
..^;26'1'369V-
^4;5p5,224n--"
43^379-S
'439^9^.-
;5;236;78d;''
..S:480;644j.

:33>;



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

... ij.B. MILETTE MANQR'-^ :
ifFORWgRLY:-;J.B:MlLETTELIMrrEDPARTW

' STATEMENTS OF RNANCIAL POSITION
'.JULY 31.-2023 AND 2022 P

Assets'.

'^^CURRENT ASSETS'
'-Gash:^

• •A'"' 'i

To|arc'urfentass0ts,-

;REStRICTipCAS^ .
■Tax-e^foW^'^^'
! Replacement reserves •

".^Of^raUng'reserves-

t^qtal resfricted:^sh"

.property;
'  • Land;/*

''Suildingstandjmprbye s
■' >r' - . -t V

<jptaj,prope"iJyJ'
-*■ " .. f. ' V" '.  ' Less^a^umulatefdepreciation'

Z" Pipperty.'net

>b^Elf ASS^^^ , - _,
Tenant Wcunty.'deposjts

hTbTACASSETS'' .

' 'C;URRENT;MABI^^^
' 'AccoiJhjs'^ayable^

j Awfued'expenses^"
■l.\ ..
^Total currentliabiiitiest^

'• v
. <..;r '.T*,:

LPNG TERM LIABiLfriES;. - .
i bjje'ld ,affi|iaie> ; ^'

'  LMprtgage; ndte;p^^ .
"TTenanVsew^^^^ <

.tpteMpng term Ijab ? •
H  . V"" ■pfotaj

.  .c, " '

^LiABlliflESANP'NET^SiSCT^^

INET ASSETS,VyiTHQUT.DONOR RESTRICTIONS r
•  1 ;■*, r - .v "i.>

ufbji^'UIABiu
'  ■/ *,. CT. i; ' A CS"?" *'•' T' "

.2022i

•■S *18,628'.. ;;$. « 20;0i7
-12.6Si4 ■* """"">. -lOTeS

•  >31i322,

•97,522:

97:522-

.  .176,000
.1.-191;515'
^  i ^

Vl.367;515^'--

220:165." ■

JLlIIzMK-

.'

':j30.785-

■ 6,556-
•'i-15;'584.^

,  70.05T

2:192.191%

J%1'76;o66'' .5
je^

3;350,6o5 f-
.  "185.773

■/i .164.832'

t:i7;977 • -, ^16;468v

g"l.294i3i

it:
. . .-F

'5L-MQ^,-

^5,232*.
-.1,'287^

f 3!94i^'
■■•rn'os:-.

.::6;5i9'r -::-5;049«.'

11^0,427-

. : •137.404>

143,923, ,
* * i y , r

- ^i.isgao'Si::;

^;S:H;294.2310

>i.i9;262:"
-  *:27o;ob'6'r

.. .vi'8:468-

J: .y407■6^6^•
\  V •-

.:'4'12;6"59''
- :'.9'93!'55T'

g!S-^ 1406.21 b

34„^



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

.... .. -JB-MILETTF MANOR- ,
T. fFQRMERLY: J.B. MILETTE UMITED PARTNERSHIPV

. STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
• 'FORTHE YEARS ENDED jULY'3t;2023 AND 2022 .

jlNCpiyiE
^'Behtal income^
) Interest'income I -

^Interest ihdome res.tflcied
..Otherincome.

^fbta.l'ihtomej

pPE^T|NG EXPENSES^'
■ Admlnistraiive^-"
^Utilities

i Maintenance .

'.General'

jTolal pirating .expenV^

xby depreciAVion'and'i^o'rg^^^ oPdebt *
' tV' - A ,, . ^ y ■-

*;pepr^Bti6n; ;
' 'Fo^ivenesS;6fdebt.'

C' ♦ *- ' -w s

/change IN net ASSETS'«

'NEf/A^ETS/BEGfNNIN^

•2023.

.2d9'l38! .
" -■ ^12V

•  • 1',683r
.

■210.96^^

»*89.90'r
».66.'059/.

93.61 f,
39.347;

'289.616:',

-k r '

'(34:332)»
. -- • <27d:000 -

• — j-

il56;75i;

.2022 * >

^-$.f '(195.796;.
.10>

■ V9'3' ^

■ _ M9fc8'84-,

74.425,.
-•59:876 '
T59.321*
••;37:821-

•(32.741)'
»900.0dd;

.832,698^<
-

jl|0j59t

•'i$' ^1.1'50;308' -S.' 1 •. 993-557



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EeA99D-7883-4AC8-B8D3-01B3El4245F0

•^.P.MILETTEIVIANOR
(FORMERLY; 8,MlkEnEiliyilTEP PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

^;'FbR tHE YEARS ENDED jULY-3i. 2023 AND 2022'.

jADMINlSTRATIVEEXPENSES^
Management ;

^s|l.anes:a^d,wage
■  *'Fringe" benefi^^ '
i'LegBl; ■ '
lTelephone.|^.^\.^^^ ^ ^

.  '' Othe'ra^rninj^ratjy^^ expenses^

'jptaTad^tni^falive

; jitiuTiE^;
^.Electricity,
'J Fuel 1 t, ;
M.vyatei:.,arid sevi/efi" ,,
' Other,utility expense/ .

Tptal/ytility,expenses-

,\MAINTEN^ANCB
■  '^"r^.hTemoval
^iSrtpwjemoyal
•  ' Eievator.repelrsP.nd'cpnt^^^

'"Custp'biar.sOpp^^^^ ■
i' Repairsl-niate'riafs'
'' R'epairS^cohtfacl: t

\  ̂ ^ \ . .j.

■  ' Tptarmaihten^^^^^^ S

.'DEPRECIA^^^^ '

«igENEiy^jE'XPE
"^tiRearesfateJte^^ •'• .
II^PayTpjl taxes* ^
t'.Retiremerit'benefi^
< i wbfl<rnan's^cpmp^^^

' t!1hsararic& ', ''''

J plajfgeneratep^
.  •• ) • • 1^4* - *k • ' '

'iT.QTAL'R'ENTAVQP^E^^^^

>2023/

•) rV' i-T7.688'^
' 50.76i.

•  ;5i912:

.  .9,249:'.

f ':89.90i/

, 29,620-
'24.853 j

^  ,12.486;-,

^66:959!

:-3;266'
' ̂"10,956;
•  -'6,079'

.543;

;'66,7t2'
--^ *5.996::

-;...-?9l6i1.j

-34.332':
2r ,iL r T-:

- *

V.i.9.563:. '
'3,87.1;'
?2.436> ̂
•■1;W8j

—itY.eiz'g'.

.•. . .'39.347:'

'2Q^i

"17',fe88^r
•' <''42;968-

' 3jW3-:
•• 4:563:

'1,540 ■
.^.8^'.

,  I ■"■■Mil 71 ;j

., , , .74;425

•30,929'
''i;5.424 f
M.ii912-

• •4;613. ,

59:878'-r

>2j969'-
- •9:360;
;5.789

^;'826
.:33:772
^i6.i6b5.

-  _ .::'59:32i;.

-n

>2i:;938\
•";'3,28'1'-

'  ̂ ^2,077-'>»
'';t.'487>

- r .9';'03B:

.':3'7.8"2fT
. 1.

$'L.:;3i24.15o'^ r2fe4.^86>

-'i36V



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

J.B.MILETTE MANOR

/FORMERLY: J B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

. SCHEDULES 6*F RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
'FOR THE'YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

:.S0yRGES6RFUNDS:i
": Rental operations'

'';iNCpME
^ '4"enanl'paid;rent .
'^HAP-rent'sub'si^^^^^

. Tbtarcentai.r^ipis;

Mhtereslinconie,
rserytcefncpme:

'iTotal rental pperalions receiptsj
^  ̂

lEXPENSES^,
" 'Abifiinistralive

i'yiiijties."'.' •'
nMalriteifan^'
'■General • '

'total.rehtal "pperalions disbureernehts

^ <c55iSH.USEp Tn RENTAC^bP^E^TibN^.
4'PTHERDISByRSEMEN^^^

"• :'Net "receipts from manage^
'  • S'Net'vyitliidrawals (deposjlsfff^ni'reserye.aTC^

'^rangfer/q^teriahl^securit^^^ ; ■
Purchase of prppert^^^^^ ' *

V

e>;NET INCREASE (D|CR^S|)1NpA^^^^

^-cash/beginningopy^r'/*• i,'.kv.. / 1*. ,..-^ : j-f

2023

-179.903
29:235:

■"209,138-
> r

:'8b^
•1.683.

, —.'^10.901'

':8g..i55'
•64.314:
•95.532
/4'1.273

: 290;2M •

' •/7?T37"3)'

'225'i ■

2022 I L

■Si ''17'2;359,
^1..-,:. ■■21437.'

.i9l796;.-
c ̂  -

• 403".'
985'

<  .. . .

...T -191884 1

'.74;6B6.
>■,'60.931''
' ^56.276

.  39.512^

.' _'231;4b'5

'.26.61!

i-6'9",492'
\(1'6;69'5)'^

■  -fiT'"
i(47;275),:

• •2:018-'

-';17;999L

'^CigiS.H.fNPpFYEAR>
.  ST. . *;■ r

.  ',18,621 • t

^37A
8r *



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

J.B: MILETTE manor-

fFORMERLVrf B. MILETtE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

SCHEbU(^ES.;QF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS
- ^ 'l FOR THEAHEARS ENDED JULY 31)2023 AND-2622■

DESCRIPTION OF FUND: -

RMtricte'd Accounts:^

;For Hie YmV Eydeti July 31 r 20i23'

iDepbslte. fWltHdrawalsi]'

' -iBatance iBalance' ^ - - n
Beglnhlhgbf 'Funding Interest '"^Ehd or

Year' iResei^eV' iEarned , Expenditures' Year;

•^OpersUng resew^-
Taxiescrowtl

■•Repja'cerneV}! reserve..
^ ^ * * t'

ii' ^7o;o5"i' !.$' $•' .20: ••$■ • (td.byi)''#
* ' ^ ' I- , • .

4. s •«>?, • ' . » -

"6,5565 - -r2 ^(6.558) ■

•1"15;584> JS.boO.' ^-ife" . . (33.708) 1 ,—:97;5^2:'

^:TbtAL RESTRICTED CASH , , , -1 . ^ ^
-•^;sERyE&A^^^^^^ , A- SI—4^: - 's'- .ytio.33j-r;y- 9^522:-

f iFor-the-Year Ended*Julv;31 ̂ 20^ ■ ^
^'lOperatihg reserve:--'

*> < • ^'

^  escrow,

*  i * rf  *

t!;ReplaMm^

'76;6.15!- .1,$"

C.'6.'552'^
•  < '

1 j:9@9;

-  $: '36. :$!'
« i

-V

.15:566 ■ ■ . r 55 .

TOTAi^BgsjRicxED CASHv ^
' ''6ESERyk^AND:'E|cHbW^^^ L -176-496'- .'SV -^I'sVeOQ-

76.051.J

r. .^e-sse;

I : ■.';'l.i5,5§4i.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

.L : j:B:MlLETtE;MAhlbR^

^Net loss

iSCHEDULESOIt'SURPUUSlCASHL /

, f6r THE YEARS'ENdEb jULV s^ AND-202^,
2023

'W-'

:2022 i ^

••V -Hsejsi- ,%

-t >V.;

'Interest income%6rh/eserye accounts^ ̂
H "5-

.Aod'othe^NHHFA appfoved it^nis^
• ̂ Forgiveness,pf'de6f in^d^

■  !^asj;deflclt'

;34;332 ■

;33;V08,

• .(68);
• ':(i'5i6bb)

;'32;74i;'

• H93):,
Xi5;?og;^'

(276';6QOy. ̂  . ■ (900.000)

:S.- j(66.B77) .MSQ.^4):;

39\



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89E8A99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

SHERBURNE WOODS - .

-/PROJECT NO. HAP PBA 901-02-05^

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL- ROSi'riON f
" - ' jULY 31". 2023 ANb.2622" "

■. '3

CORRENtASSETSA
' - » -X V * . * / "♦' • • ' * ^

-Xash;'^ \
' RrepaiS expenses^

■V. ■ '
total-cuffeht asseli^;

^ASSETS
2023' 2022j<

99.295'/
:  • ":.9.378 ' ':8.70lf

* • ' *. V«

':61,A97. ,107.996%,

RESTRICTEPXASH.
' "Insurahce escftw^

'Tax escrow
' •.Replacement fMeiVes ■ •;
rtOperating.rese.fveV.'

\Tolal'restrlCTed cash. '•• - - • •••• •, _ —»- • - \

PROPERtv:;
-v ^

i; Buildings ah^ll.mpro^
^Xptal property"'

, ^ Lessya^miilated Beprecl^ldn'
'Propef^.'nit (

rpTHER^A^SCTS,.
" 'Tenant'secVrityde^ .

/ tOtauassets/

.CURRENTiLlABILITIES:
1 w'■' La'^

•'' vAcc6untsj>a^able^
•■<A<xnjed;expe^^^
^, beiferredVevenue''.'«

.. . .V

XpNG JERMLlAilLIT^^
T^Due^o" affiliate " 1 ^v^"- *'/•

'tilABIUtlES ANb^NET ASSETS^

ifenaht SKU^ '■

(Tbtal ilong term liabllitresA' )
~. ** »• ' 1a -V".  .fu, ^ .

■'Tota) liabilities'".'"
\  v.'*.'* r.'

-r-• ./.»» V vV ---.v ;

•» I .r"' • ■'" r

*  rgso
'•6i728'

■^^213.685
- 69.Mi:

^^761,.
, 6;414^
207.873'?

. . • .68.049-

■ 289;904' ~-...285^d9t^

.':21,1.60'0-
.  ••931700: •

*  ' " 'ni "•* * '

,1)T43.700>
;.-12'4i37d^

;i-211,606;
.! 932,706 . •

11.143.700
■*>

rig'g'.sTs'i

,i;0i9,330A ■ -■_il;044".l85':

59' "iie^sV
4r

"S 1-386jgg !fij:453:5^;^

. ISA -^^O.^TS'-., •''i8;908i/
'  ■ ';29.3^A

•  <552-' -;:f;823.'
.-T-. ' ■

?.21:798> '' - A60,781l

>  ,v « •-
•73.732 • {?84;358i

,812,439,-A =f;8'32.7i'5l
.'16.159 - -16:261^

^ . . . 902.2^0'

• 462.76§^ . . ..fv'^59:424 r
'M;'128> -.9941115.
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SHERBURN&WPQPS

^(PROJECTNO■ HAPPBA9QH2-fl5)

i STATEMENTS ORACTIVITIES '
^<FOR THE YEARS ENDED"JULYr3ir2023'ANP'2022

jngoMe;, _ ,
'Rehferihtbiine: ,
•tlhteresVinco'rhe ' ... -

Inleresi incpime restricted i
, bther'j'ncbmV

•Total.inconie =
'* • t • , • ' V . »

OPEI^T.INa
' vAdrninistrativeJ'

.Uiilit'lesJ:'
:Meihienenc6)«i

■<.Generar',
t  " „ ' '

■Tptaloperatlng expe

4lf.

INCOMf I
"  t , ' - " . / *• ■

i hbepreciitlpn^
-  'f' . . "-1 .. .

^CHANGXIn NET^S^X^X >' ,
:V: ^ r

'NEt ASSETS,alGlNNiNG OF VEAR ,
"r's T-"- ■. V ^ +

'NEf^^|SET^
'rr 4^ ^ ^ ^ \ .

::2d^j

,  ;260,356'

'6.079>
'3.95Q'.'

i I. '2^7,hi; .
■  M-

t 435 ;

^.j27o;4^i ■ ::27i:963i'
A

■ 52.690,1 -■45,122.
!37,5i0" •35.470'?
92.'814: ^76.135.-
38:206' •32;936>

_  , ,-221 >220': ;l'8b;663-'.

■_ _.:2i;6b9' ■  .22*284-^

■  ;2'8.:i9^ ^t;60;p22'f

--^24;855\ '-^sfssdt

.3.33a' 36;.442" '
j4- •

.  1.>459:«4'- - /422:982 ^

'462^762'- . /'i-'. ^ :'459.'424'::



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245FO

,  - sherbUrne woods
-frORMERLY: SNt^S DEERFiELD ELDERLY HOUSING UMlfED PARtNERSHlPl
'  '• • ' '■fPROJECT NO: HAPPBA'901-02.0S1

vSCHEbULESbFRENtAUOPERATIONSEXPENSES;.
■ FOR THE YEA'RS ENDED JUllY 31/2023 AND 2022-

2023 >
'administrative: EXPENSES
'  - A'dyertisihg}; '

■vManagerpentfee/
Sslayie^and wage's^

'^Frlhg*e.l^nefi&
iXe'gaM '
'Telephone' - ....
./CMhexadmiriistraUye expens^

^2022^5

toK' adn?iQis.tra^yeIex:pe;is.es

^ iJTiilmis--
'^Electricity,.
''Fuer- l"
{■•yvatef'aVd sewer/'
'"Otfier utillty'expensev

...... -- " f-f ■■ ,>■ r- T

\Tota[ ulility'exp^n^S*.

./ P^TnT ENANCE;
Tra.^h;reni6yal

'  ;-S'npwjem6va[ • ^
M Custodial .supplies; •
t Repajre.^matenals r
^♦Repalrs^ cbnlracV"

■

'JptalmajnteVante expense; '

INTEREST^

DEPREClAtldN

.•500. vf
\18.0001
.24,180!

sg)

,.237
9.112

.63^
-•i8;660^
•13.605-

•2.47S
-•/506:

. ■2,180'^-
..'8.292 .

.

'52.690! .v45.''i22

•  i^9;o92: :2d;i7i'
-  12.381 i '9.093;

-6.037-: 5.064'
^ . . - .1;-142.

—  p,

' 37.510, 35;476;

'2:73/ 3.007
"25.370, !;27r.18&.-

■' 5d;691■ ':31i612
•  •:i4.616'' ■ ^^-X14.0'35'

■  -:^-9l'8r4!"

-.^.21:009' ■ .v:?22.284.-.

..'24.855' .  Jt23;5'8'd,i

^ :GENEF^'L:EXpENS^ -
■' i^Real'Pstate taxe^^ ,
^;'Payro;iliaxes%^'^-
t '■ R'etiremehlbehjllit's.

"" '.vyorknianscpriipensation:
•^^nsClra^:w^' " '

Total gen.eral.ex^ .

TOTAL.RENTAL^ OPERATIONS. EXPENSES:-
i j - V « 1- • j: w. " rv-.- ,• .
- T» . . Vv' '- »«•

<26,617X

.-1-;^57'.
-7,2^^.

•38.206

;25.449.i
«fii041«

■50>
-.'70f'

- 5-.695.

':.g2l936""-

•'Stv 267.084^ t: 235.527--



DocuSign Envelope.lD; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-0183E14245F0

t  -:SHERBURNEWQQPS
fFQRMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

— - - ^PROJECT NO; HAP PBA 901.02:05V

;SCHEDU1:£S OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMEf^TS.

'FORTHE-YEARSENDED'JUllY3l'.-2023A>iiD'2022

.^SpgRCESOFFUNbSr
^ :Renlat operations; ■■ "

/jNCOME-.^ ■ - '
teharil paid! rent
'.t^P/ent subsidy' ̂

iTotalTental recefpts

f interest Income -
* Service i.nMnie

CJlher incomer

2023 ,  '^022v;

Total tentel.bperV'onsre^lpts-

'^Vensk'
■ Administiraliye.
lU|ilities
^^Maintenance' «

.Genera),
'.-ihteresj"!

■total rente! operatrohs.disbu'rsemerits

/CASH PROVIDED BY REfJTAL^OPERATIONS BEFORE^.
VAMORTIZATION OF,MORTGAGE,'' ■ " ' " •

V- ;c
.'/^pRTi^tiON.OgMOfrrGAG^^^
:c^H pRpyipEb^Y(ysip !N)RE^

*"•

JOTI^ERpiSBURSE^^
"'[^Fixed asse'l Bddjiipn.p|ace8:in Setyfce piior:yeaf:qaidTn'cujTent,^ar
' ;f^et pay'meritsTrpm rnanagernem^^^ * " '
3;Net^deposits from reseiye

Transfer tenant security'deposits • i-

'nETiINCREA^eV^^^
'CASH.'BEGINNING of YiEAR-

fcCASH. END 0F.YEAFT» '

M24.06d;- •'$ ,137,382\
-  *<-124;601^ "A • ''141.927:

■ i248:66r !27g,30,9''

•^■•6,118' .'479:
,  2,510,^ >2.435 ?

-  1.440' :1.441

. .758J27. ;28d:664v ,
«n '»4

'  . ' J'f.
■52,989: ^ ;-45i102 ^
'39.292'- .33:401'.
93.861' :.75;725, «-

:/38.910. - :33.759r'
.  '^Toog-- ,--V 22-,2e4!5

?2fed6i. ■ -iT 0,271, ■

12.^6' . 73:393', "

.'(18.909): ^(17,633)-
"rj

-'(25.500)7^
'(10.626). >(10.504).
V(4.8P7)V 5(26.827):

i.i(5oy;

■ -ibIsts' ,

,  . J!99.-295^ ^.!;:ie^di6;/
i

;$" ,!.52!1:19 r i;j99i2d5;«
- V

^3f
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SHERBURNE WOODS■

fFORMERLYISmHS^DVERFIELD-ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PART^^
■  " ^^RpJECT NO^AP PBA 901-02^5-

-»• u . ^ ^ • "

/ isertEjpQLE&^
'  ̂ iFbR THE y^RS ENDED JuLy-3'1::26^^^^ ' '

DESCRIPf ION OF'FUNb:!

t. ' •% — 42' • . >•

' iRestricted Accouhte:'

; 'ForthevVgar-Ej^ed Jul^^

ibeposits '. ' Withdrawals

> Operaling"reseriv6^
•V- .

4 \lhsUran^ escrow'^

'  /RepiacemehtVeservfe^
' ' .."I- •• V» •

Bialahce./ . viBalahce.'
i lBdginningjpf Funding of Interest • v i .'End of ,'

r'Year . , Reserves [Earned. i Expenditures' 'iVear -

'.$* 68,049 •$. $'• i,492 -S ?■ •$" ^69,541

2.761" 5.483.: 'lOt' j7.395);. "i'sfsO
^6';414: -2.5,876; ' 174' .'(26,736) :5.728-

. -i-207;B73 ■ .27.000 , '^4;312^ . j(25,5QQ)^. . ./-213;685-

/,BlSERyES,AN^^ ; -28^097. - 'Sy .58:359' S^- jfOTO - i' "
rTOf AU RESTRICfEb GASH: ^

For the Year Erided-Julv 31 / 2022'
2^ ' I:.,.,

O^bperatingifes^^ »;67.945; ($• • $. ;ib4:

/ lhsu'fehce:escr6w% ^3,046'' *5^,2'3b",

'ReplacSTieht fe^dr^
•' •' . .jy ' - -> jiC"-

• T'

L6.707.- ?26.828..
• ' ' ."i-

';180-572" ^27-,dob: '

■ fbmL^R'iSTRTcTED , ^
' rREiSERVES'AND'EsVRO

-  » /< - -f.

"■{SjsVoj^ '2^61:
125 -b-CiJ'-.V- ' 'V-i-'-V; ;i V

- A- . . .r2Q7-;873'

-S

30f

SS.QSfi r- - --^435-^ ~f32;66S)^-S^ ;^S5;Q97-

-•44



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-0183E14245FO

^SHERBURNE WOODS. .
VFQRMERLYvSNHS DEERFIELD elderly HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHim

' ./PRQJECT^NO.'HAP PBA9Q1-02^SV

.  i tpHEDULES OF SpRP
' FbR tHE'YEARSENDEb jULY.31r2b23 AN }' V.

r;2022;'

ft-

'N
•• • V ^
Ndt income

^ ' ■.p^'recja^lon

'Deduct:'' ^
Mntere"stini^rhe7r6m'resell ■
Re^uiredjpnnclparpaymen^^^^ ' "

* 'Required paymerits;iofret)^^
t  . K
••

'^ICa8h;8urplue (deficip; i

.^,338' ^$: ."36,442 \
' . » j4 ^

;.24'855V v23;5ig}

'.(6;Q79): .v{435);;
(l'8i909)- .(VTiBis^

^(feoob). > . - (27;Qooyv

■  "(23,79^ - ri4;9i4.

'■45'



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

SHERBURNE WOODS

7fORMERLY:SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTt^iERSHiP^-

fPROJECT N6.HARPBAjQ1^2-05^

'Y^R.TO.-DATtt^ gWNERSV ̂EE/piSTRIsyTlON''
"' ' ^ i'foRtTHE y'eARS ended JULY 31.-2023 AND 2022>

Maximum

.'Allowable;.

Distribution^.

pistrlbutions
Received . t Balance

\1 ̂31^003..
;i ̂ 31.^004,
'ft1.^3,1^005'-
>.2/3j/2pp6
■•i;2/3i^ogr.
'■i^3j/2qpp--
:i2/3'l/2p'p9.*

Ji2/3iy2p'l't;
'■:J2/3l/20'i2
'^2/3„iy2p"13'
;^2/3lfe0j4^-
•fyii'iio'is-
d 2/^1^016 ■
>l!2)3'l/20.1t^

-7^1/2p20 ; '
4l^V2m\

-7l^^1/202|'^
^'7/31/2023-

$' itis'isso"
•1-13,850; '

■113,850;. „
113X50
"lis^ssp^
"lj3;850'
:113;850' .
p13|5Q'^
'■I13i85p''i

■^^113;B5q>^
i'i3;856-'.
'lij 3,850.

l1-3;'85a
■fi3',850' ■
>'&,4li!
'TT3 .esb". ..
:113";B50" "

■;1 i[3;8mV-'
.1,13:l5dij-

jr--

'ir-

■' ":tl3;850^
.,227;7pd''
■^■34\;55p,-
.'.465,■406,'

■/569,250'
V 683,1 bp,<
'rbepsp'

5 'iip.epb;^
1;p23;650;
^•;i38.5P,pJ
1^252;35p:
■i;^6.26g*
■iii'^o.Psb''
;i;59|;9bd-
'i^zb^ysbv
i1v774;163
1„888.013.
2;o67.863
'^41,5.7:13-
|;229'563l
2i343-143-'

'46^*



ewi ibn io.Me»«J»o-TW)->Acmo»'>i»:tnmw

•BOLTTHgRH 1^ HAMWHWg ggRWEa. Wti: Am AFflU*T6

' UHCfiULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDEnjo. AWAADS ■
• FOR Tw'e YEAR ENDED JULY 31. MM •'

FEDERAL OftANTOlU

U-a. Dwnrtn^ (X Antleuffuw ' '

'Sp«eM SuivNcnanW NuMion '
' WonwnJniinu*andCNI^(WC); '
ChlU end Adul Can F^ Progrm
Food DiatribuUon ChnWr

HConimodlty SupplwnomBi Food Proortm
:ChUd NuMUot ciutUr ' ^ .
. SunuTW Food SdKlco Pfogiam (or CMUrtn

To(sl U.S. Oepormni ̂  Ayiunun

U.S. D«gartni>nt n( H^lrw and Urban Do^omonl "

'EmorgancySoMo^OiMFroBim -
.SoetlenlPra(oct4M«dCluittf • ^
'•Socilen' B Modow Rahaefcadon SMgio Room Om^ncy. i

VTetal U.S. Dopdrttnant o^Noui^ and Urban DavalOB«^l

U.8.(^Mrtm^ of Labor
,.WKMCIuslat y

.W)OA AduH PiOB'Om '

' -ToWU.S: Da(l•rma«l'MLat>er>VV)OAClJ•tw-

U.«rDooartm»f»tof6di>c»Uon i .
AdulEducaBen-Baric.Qcanta to Stalo*

i Aifet Edixtfon • Baik Qranli to Staiatj

'-Total U.S..OapartmaM of Edocatlcn

' .U.s:D»p»rtnwntofTftaaurv i.. . .
Emargancy ftetUN Aaalatanca Prognm' -
Enwpancy Ranlal AiaUtanea Prcgram; ■
',EiTiaroency Rarttal ̂ Natwa Program. ̂
Etoaroancy RaniN Ataiatanct Progrm -

I Coronavlrui Stala arid Local Fb^ Raeovery Fum -'

Ff^.U.S, DaparlmM of TraaMay.-.

•  - - '*v ' -cV . I .■I jSaaNotaa.loSchodida n Eipandjluraaol Ftdar8l_Award*'

ASSISTANce
."LOTtNO" "
NUMBER

, PASS-T>»OU0H
.ORAKTOR-8 HUIFBER

' FEDERAL
• BKPENOfTURB

> . (0.557,
•ta&SB'.

■

61NH, Dopartmaru of XoM & Humw i^rvf^
iStaw o( NH. Doponmaint ol Educalibn

'•'214NW(I.3WI00S • • (.308.419
,643.265

'  I (to'.SU 'CbrrwMnlty Action Program BoBmap-Morrimaoli Countlaa ';iomciY8o6M:i '  128,948^

■lolsss ' Siata of NH.' D^wimainl o< Eouci^ -- 133.114

•  . .'2315478

'Siaia of NH. DHH3. Burw ̂ .HomNan * Hciuairio " E-2l.6c-33.mt II-. IM.W

AI4.Z4S .'484.861

'

S^ .M5.7'S5'

r  17.258" • 'Stata ol.NH. Dapl of Reaourcoa and Ecortomic Davdidpmoni .Q2-eOOMi8 ' i 2.831.884
"  . <* .

■'.i '^83'1.M

' »4.b02
,M.'002.

'Saia of NH. Dopartrnom of Edueailen,..
I'Skia of nK oiapartmaril ol Uuekloti -

. e7bilv48EMaixha^' '
leVoit-ABEPortamotith ■ '

"^Slews'
33.446 ; - • - ; 86314

.  ••'88 314

an

' -zl'oza"
'  .'21.023/

• ;2I.02J',
- '2I.'023

: Naw liprnpMa Heuil^ Akn^ >
• Naw HornpofBra Houaing Authiodty-
'Naw.Hampafiita Houai^ AwBwHty

, NawHAmpfNiaHouaino'Aulhortry <

"IERACI0I2ANDERAO4M ' .
.• ",ERA£OO10 - ■* 1

■ERAEooig;.
iE'RAObt2ANOERAb435<

' -r • ••1#>Bl.6S"2 I
••-4ir»4,900Tr

•;ii27.gw. ' -■
_ - 84.903'' '— iB3'35e.Ti4

';fl,W7-
S  V

' (New HiunpahimHouMng Authority ,
■% . ' -r, t "v

'  •E.RA£bOI?-( •  ■

a .- •

»;2.8b0.423

65,460.137.



ewllBren ilMllO. MCAMO-'MIMACMaOOIMI'llSfO

» abiffHCTN wgw HAMPSHIRE gBWCES. WC. MjO AFWUATg-

• SCHEOULE OF EXPENOtTURES OF FEOERAl'aWAROS
FOR THE YEAR EWOeP JULY 31. ?0M ■ ' '

FEDERAL CRANTOIV '' PA^htRQUQHORAtffOR/FROORAM TITLE
< Combfitton far WiHon»l »nd CetmrHinltv gfiAcM

.'RalMaidEtftorVslunlMrPiogrtin *'

Tml Corpo^lon (or Notional and Cenvrwnlty Sarvlcoo .

»■ UJ. Dooarnnwrt ri Em.^
'WoaslwtzaUonAuloiafleolbrLow^ncornoPonono •

Total U.S. Dw>s<tman( of Enorgy ^

U.S."Dti>irtrntnt of Htalth E Human Sorvlcoi
Aging CluMar' " " - . ~ -
' SpodaiProgram*(orIlia'^ing.nJtIII,Parts, .

' Oianti tor SuppenN* BanAea* and Sanlor CarMc* /

TatnpoisrV AsilaiwKa be Noa^ Farnlta
'Tomporwy At^tonea fer'Naa^ FamAM

< Lowlrieoriio HeriM Enargy Aaaiiiartce'(Fual/^aatatande)
I AlVA-iow locsma Hema EnoRiy AaabiarKa (Fual AaaliUnc*)
' Low Ineama Home Eiwgy AMiataiKa (BWP)

I  • • . » '
■ Communlly Sarvkai Bbck Grant
i CV-CornfnutkySariA^ Stock Cml

,.CernnturiityS*rytoat Stock Orani - piaaationary'

' Low Incdma. hkWMhold .Waw AMiatanca Prognutt (LIWAP) t
i  , ''" ■

.,H*id start CliBlat
" H^Stan/EailyHaailiitait'.'•' .;'ARPA-I^ ^^^Slart.;

USTMC
NtiWBER

.PASft-THROUOH
« O^OR-8 NUMBER

. .FEDERAL
■ EXPEHOrTURE

*

.94.003 -.^ranHooz

, j

127,813

• 127.813'

81.04 •Statdof|4H.0f^p(En(irgy&Plannlng DE-EEOOO:^ '1- • 1.067.178

!»• 1.007.178'

:e/o44 ■ .Sim* of NH, p*^ el Enargy & Ptonnlng • 13.113

'' ;93.W8
' ' ^ '

V Slate OINH.DHHS '
; StM'"^ NH. pHHS <-

'i2NHTANF'
'mnhtanf •

1; 2.003,232>i ■
''t35.4t2 ' ' b.'Tos.om •

"lojias
'03 £06
.f3.m

'Sloia el NH, Oflide ol Ene^' & Plannlnig
Slat* ol NH, OffiM ol Eitergy'S Plarining
State ol NH, Offlca of Enargy'A Planning '

ZtblNHuEA.
ILIHEAP AfiF?22 t LlHE/^;US-OHMS ■

'2301NHUEA

: 13,433,743 •
3,748,169,- '

477,692 . < I7,W.^

'  '93.SOO
-  [63.m.

State c4 NH. OHW
-State ^NH.OHHS

:220tNHCX>SR
230iNHCSC3»

■ 1,430,670 "t
969.710 t;2.3M.280

•93.S70 ' ftaia^NH/pHHS • ^ZMINHCWR • ■ 46.063

■  ' ' State ol NH. Office ^ Energy & Ptorinlng | .  .230INHLWCS« • .,247,834 !

'iB3.60b''
jM.OM,

r o'lCHOiOOO^OS
' O»£O0b4740iO1 •

" .jf » » ' 1

,  •• 7.683.011 ' '
-  '-aBSSSS
-- - - ' T'

"8,W1,W '

llSaa Nbtaa io Sehadul* al Ei^ndlturaa el Fm^ Award*



e«ndi|n lO.MCMW-nM-MCMaOMIMliMVO
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'TOTAL

ASSISTANCE
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NUMBER ■
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-'93590,

.93434-

' PASS-THROUGH

ORANTOR-a NAME
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SQUtHERN^NEW HAMPSH SERVICES: INC: AND AF^FiLlATE ■

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF'EXPENDITURiES'of FEDE^b AWARD
"  " ' ■FOR^tHE-VEAR ENDED'JULY 31.2023 ^

iNOJE T' ! BASIS OF PRESENtATlbN
The^aQdohipajiVihgysch^
jiriclu^es-.the' ifederar aw¥rd ;actiy Southern ■ N^w ,Harnpshir^;-SeiV 'Ind.-
!,aod <Atfiiiat^^^ ;pf;the;federar^6Vernment\for'jha^

/Fei^eca/A iva/ds r-(Ohjforrn'; Guidance)
selp^ed;:p6rt^^^^ of Sputhern'Nevy Hampshire. Services, iric, an'cf
Affiiiate^='it is not ,present'the firiahGiai ppsition, changes;
l;iri'net;asS0'ts;'.of<Msh"^^ ' '' " "■ "* """ * '

iNPfE 2i SUMiVlARy PF SidNIFrc'ANT^AdGOUNflNG POLIGIES-

^N■OTEi-

\N'0tE4'

fcohtaihedJh!tHe;Urijf6 whereinjcertaih;types,;0fj^^^
, \all6wable'6^;-are'[i^ite^^ Ms-tp' reimbursemen "

INblRECt.GbST.^fE;;

^SUBRECIPIENTS
'•Southern ;New^HampsRife;'Selryices/Jh sUbrecipieritVfor^the^^ear&^^
:,UUlyaiVM3V " ' - -—-x.- - ' Y -■■ -

"?5d:
'
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&Rob,erts
lOTFiED'fejqfJC'Ato#

•Dt)?ER>-WCTtFEBbRO' ^
^'•NOPrmcoNw^yj'"'

.. . JNDERENbEllJT AublTORS' REPdRt'.bN IN
, REPdRtllsjp AND ON tQMREIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT^OF

;.FINANClALStATEMENTS RERFORMEb IN AGCORbANGE WITH GOVERNMENT-
^  :: * 'AUDITINC3 STANDARDS^ '

i To th'e Board of Directors of:
'Sputhem'N^w/^arjipshlre^'^

■, 'We haye/audite,d^lnra^ ;sta;ndafds.genera in the Unito^'
f^btkss QJ 'Arnenc| ;ahd the'istan'dafd's 'ap^ financial) audits cbritaihed "In; Gdvprnrpent-
i^udjilha Stahdard^^^^ iBy 'th%. Gomptfpller iGeheraiJ of-the IJhited States,;/ fthe combined,

^ifindnciai st^emdnts^6f-Sb^ jncfjahd Affil!ate!(a NewiHarnpshire'
^ 'rrionprofitidrganlzatlpn^i/wH^
./and ;2p?2'aod,the Tplated statementsjof■acfivities,;/an3^ for thfe years'ithen, ende.dv .
ian'd the, fjelated'Vop.tOs fd-f^ statements; and»have 'issued blir irepbrt"thefeori 'dated'-"'
:M^ch;y;,2024^ - , ' '* ■ ' - ^

- -v ' • -

^'Repqrt-ph'fntemal G

i(jptjmaj.;';p'b^^ 4. ^fd^?dbsjg|niligvdud.it i-pfocedtires- iihat-; ard'tippippHiatp^ Iri'Vihe' ■
Jmctanroc, fririfho".ni irnWco" *nf oVnroccrhA.'^AMr" .

'SelyiceSi-Jhc ;?!^^*Affij)a.teS;rntefhaj.''Cphtrp|.vA^^
^effectiveriess'of:Sbutheh;i;New fHampsKire Services; 'Inbrdnd Afflliate'sinternai 'cdnirdL

--vt.

^ lilfipbifailten.dugh.^P^
^■puF./cbnsideratlbh .-offihtb^^
tVhar .tViinhf'he> ..mota'riot Aoc«ao':<sp At ■• o:. '

^ we.akpessesi Hpweye^,^|i^aterial weaRnesses^pi; ^
identified:

':i51{
' i >>
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Report on Oompiiance and Q^er Matter

r.}As ipart pfpbtainjng -feaso^^ about Whether- Southern -New Harhpshire>;Servic:es;<
.Jnc^.-^ria :Affiliate's -cp^bin^d "financial sfat^nriehts ■ are. free; frbm^mate/ial ■ misstatemeht,' .we-
;perfqrmed"fests 'pf its cpmpjiari^!'with "certain -pfoy "

fr graht.agfePniehts.'honcpm eould haver'a direct .Wnd;materlali^^ qh the/
?finahcjal)§fite;m Howeyer;;|irovidlng .ahbpinibri on pon1p|larice;w
■pdt^b .pbjectiyp.'pf^^^^ and accprdirigly. we dp not express^suph~an' ppinjon; The results

. 6f:pur tests.disGlosed bd'jhstarices of nd^^ or other hiatters that are fequire^B ito,' bp- „
jrbpPrted/Uhdef.Goye^^ • . : .

^ V

•Purppse/pf This" Report-

The purpose Pf;thiSirepprt Issolely to'descTibe.'the %cop^ 6^^^^ testingipf inte/harpontr^^^
^conipliahce:ah'd "the fesultipf-thal testing, and,hot to prpyide ab.bpinipn^^^^^^ jhe bffectiyehess;'9f^
■the'brg^anizatidn.'s internal ^contfpl or pn-cPmplianGe/TbisTepo^^ !ah|ihtegra|ypart_of ari audiT

■, .'pe/fprmed'. 'jn ^accordance ' With' .Goyd^mmen/. ^ . Standards- ' In, ■ conWde'rihg^^ tRe-
■^:p[5anization;s'iinterha),^ntrdUarid'complianqe/.^ '
«^pr'any!other-p.u^ • ' ' ' i - •• • - '

•  •k*"

.  . .. . ...

■ povef.lNew Hampshire:'
. ■iaarPh111r2024V " '

'45»'- r - •*

''52^-.
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laRriFiiitfijliBiic^ccoujfrAW^
jkjA •..svc/ij-tBORO: '
.NOMOOKWaV""

.  '(NDEPENbENT AUbltdRS'REPORT ON COMPLIANCE^^F^^
'MAJORPROORAM AND ON INTERKIAL CONtROL OVER COMPU^NCE

'  ' REQUIRED-BYTHE UNIPORIVI GUiDANCE;,

i tp%'e/B6ard'Qf
"Southeln New HamjDsjiirev&^ jhc^^ Affiliate

fR^p^ortJdn Cornplian^^^^

iOjilfilon on Ea0^^M^^^ Pf^ram-'

*Wer.tiayei'audite3,'Sdut^i-n^ pompllajji^' ••w^li''the'
I'types' idpmRlian'pe-.Tequ^ ^idel^tified".'^s -subjeet- 't6^audit' |n ',thfe' 0MB ydmpijanj^^^ if
•^uppl&menlibBi coujd have'a 'direct and'm effect on,!e^ch' of SouthdrnLlNewtHamp^

■ S^ryi^s,, ilnc.,- iand. 'Affiljate's rh'ajpf rfedefal, pfpgrafn? rtpr- tte
-■^$'9uthe^n/N'ew H^mpshlreVSerVicesJhc/^and.Affiliatels-major,^^
^fe./sumfna'^^ of ;p'f .the? accompanying^ 'schedu|e;/p.f

./vquestibnedj'cds.ts'. ^
V • - ' V" • H • ^

- ^ )n;VpuT^i tSduth'ern iNew- H'ampshye;-5e'fy:ic^^^^ j na, and .Affiliate ;c6mp^^^
;:'i're^pects,-witlii the'typesjbf compliance;requlfemerits referred' i6.:ab6ve:lhat'"cou]d^
-i^WbVrri'atenal-Bffect^ori'eaehbf-jtb^^^^

\Basli fyr 0pJnl6h.6h.Each'^^^

''VVescdnducte&.lpu^ ;'9fcc6mplia;nce accofcibrice: with .auditing ':4\dndafd^
.> 'dpcep'ted' ?in "thelfUnlfed^JStates ;0f; :Anlen.ca:3tlni:($ta i'^uH'ts-

hot\{a{rie'0^-Gdvern'mehtAuditin^^
'  i'i4if?ir'A«riSrX»**j?vr%f«?«! a4 ts+i«' 11 1 o •_ i^/^WA f /' Oa/^i '"Do '.onn *

; $ecti9n;0f^dursirepdrt^^
. :♦ flT ... .A .
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!i(lahagerneWt;is',res^pnsi6Je;f6r^^^^ aboy^.^arid'fpry^
iye5i9b,\itTip!ementati6h;;;and*mainteriance'pf:e^^

: prog^arnsv, -f-

jAudiiqrs[Resfipn3ii)^

'express anj opinion bn>Sputh New 'Harnps.hjre Services;'Inc. 'and Affiliate's•cpnnpiiancej
^';ba^e4ji^ri 'pur/au^it: Rea^dhable "a^u'ran^ is;'a highrleybl .:of/%sui;ancp;' ^l,bs6lute
.'^isurancej;ahd therefore^:is jribt a^ guarantpejthat,. afx audjV.conducted^ In :;4ccordahcb' with'
-deneraily*''abbepted ̂ auditing: staridards;^G6ve/nMen?. Aud///n 'ands tKe.'Dnifd^^

- jrayg, may' involve coiiusio^,- Torgery; injeniionahojriissions, misrepreseniaiions; p/jine pyej^nqe,

^ ;p'f 'internal'-cQnfr6[;\NphcompliaocP;witR^ihe,^co,mplian^^
v'CPnsidPred mPteriar-if.'there'js\a:-;substantlaiJikejlh;op^^
Would jnfluWnCevthe'ju^ ;reaspnableVuserdfUh'e>repdrt^

'^Sputh'ecn' New^H^mpshire/SeiViceS/ .aVd''Affi
^■eaPh 'itiajpr/f^ pr6gram;asV

Jln,perf6nTiing^ah/;audjt5n^aGcprdan^^Withvgene^^
i.->^ud/t/%tSteddarcfsi,ahdlh'e"Unife ' - -j-.-

~ fi, .1 f » .1. 4

'' I ~ » I ■ i , • - • , . , . . , I A' '^ercise ;-professtpp^^^^^^^ maintain' prbifessiohPl ^skepti'cisni^jhrdQ^
-  ' ^duSit^ ' ^ J A

/^>(|de/itIl^Vand;assess:llhb/risj<s;ipf,^
■' iKfA*A^>4i ipao rae»"iA'rto!» 'tX ' ♦WXe'^ 'riSl^c''" ' OiT/*K"!rtFAX'A'#4rir^e''' •

^^circumstances-
•i-

^iexpressed?
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Repbilpn Inte^a^^ pyer'CbfnpJIance:

\tyP®. of pofnpliahcp':requi.rerrient ;6f;ajfedera tjmely.basjs: A rnaterial Wea^nes^ /p
JntenfaL'cdhtrdrd.'^^rxdiiipliahcejS^^^^^ iriterhb!
»M,ritj:6l.',':byef\'c5^ ^ JsQch-' tha^sthere^ ^ is''Jj reasonable: ..possibility; ̂ l3at-\rnateria[.
/npnedmplia^r^^^ -wlfh^-a fequifeme^^ a_ fedeYal :prbgram"iWiir poi'^ be-i
^prevented'.-pr detedted::arid/'correctedy'on\a tjmejy*ba
-.'/<rthfrr\l nt'/or >'<iSmn//onr»4>" je -o -rlofii^Ion/^w inr, Q^./^rtnnKiniaflrin nf .'m iri^ornol*

than a. material/w.e'aknes's. jn.^iriternah o.ver compliance, ■yet;lmportAntiehpug.h ;to merit'
.attentlpri^by/those;cKafged w^^^ ' ^ - v ■

•GpT.cphsideratibn'.bt^inYe'rxiaTc the limited •purpbsejdesa^
!the:Audit6rs; pespphsibilities}for the^Audjt6f:Cpmpjiaoc.6
■'tpYidentify all',^deficie'ncleV/i J.pternaj|'cpntr.dlQ over 'cpmpliance ,that .;m'ighf be.' materibi

--JWeal<^e"sses^.pr7si9n^ficah{^;deficiencies^■inJ;intern■a^ -pp -GiVen!^ .these ■
iimltatibhs;, jdunh'gvr9ur,;audjf\we_ did;\nbty Jn* iihternal^xolitrbl 'oVer'

■ cj)mpjjande;tpat^(We .cphsidbn to-be, mVteria^^^
/.weakhesses^o'r'sighifidarit.'denciehPiesiin interhal;'ePntrol' over Pompllance\rhay exist that'.were ̂
-noti.dentifie.dH i„ - :

^;;0uraudit ,was]iobtdesrgh.ed ^bv 1he-,pufpbse;e^^
^nte/nja'fi^htrpj'ip^ex/c^ is,>expreSsed.. . •

:e,;Acc6rdihgly,•repuirernents/pj any
ipurpose-

.? ' a.: i . -•/■ r-. J

t'DoverKNew/^Haitf^^^^ . " "
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE^

■SCHEDyLE:dF:F=INDINGS AND 6uEST|6'NED COSTS ^
" • - FdR THE YEAR ENDEDaJULY 31::2023' ' ' -

;SUMMARY QF;AUP!TORS' RESULT

■thfe.'auditors'^ report-expres^^ bpiniop.6n'whetherthe.c6nnbined>.firtariciai.
/ /stat|rnehtsVpf •S.o,uthVrn':Newv,Hamp>,hirp: : SerV^^ Affiliate', were/'pV^fi'ar^'d: tin, ,

^ accordance, . .. - - - ^

^2.' No' sidnifibant'^deficiena the-audit of the corribihed financial istate'fnehts''
"  are.'reported'tin, \he\1f)depehd^^^ Report on "Jnterhal 'Control 'Qyer financial.-

>Repbrfing''Brid'-on ^Cqmpliarice,, and'Other :iMatt!Srs^Based\on, d'n.[Audit 'of^Finahcial.
\Staterhdhts 'Perf6Mdd. lO'-Accdrdarick with Gdvdmmeht-AUditing'lStand^^^ 'Nd^ hiatdrlal

weaknessdsi'a^^^^^ ^ . . . . .... , ^ ^
3: .Nd :in,stahc0sjjpfinoh(^^ matefiai'td the''qpmblrfed;fihanGial: stat^^

iNew^rHdmpi'N arid.*AffiliateV'whic.d^^^ be rdquired .to be reported in /
.a^ccordaijcewith GovemrinenfAuditlhg^^^^ '

..4v:N6/sigmfic0nt d.efi'cienpies^iip.-'lptern.al.';^^ -"federal iswafd ■ pfodrams.-^afd'-'
'tepqtted'mriHe/jhdependeh^^^ oh^Cornpliahce.tor\EacH)Map^^ ^^
ohMtemairQo'ntivh'OyeKCompiiah^^ Gu/dance!cNo.material' '
weakqesses/ard^^^ =■ ~ ,

$\ 'iTheaudltpre/repoitpn^cprnpliapce^f^^^^^ propfarfis'fbKSPutherri
IHampshifeA&djvices, jint/and^ Unmpdlfled op[h1oh'o>i;dll)hajPr"fedefaf,
''prdVcaro's. ■ ^ ■*' , r- •. - . ' ' •

< '6. ntfeVe.'Wgre', hb^ddlt findingsJhat.are^;re'qujfe^^ xepoHed .inVccbrdance '

'i§f'"Wf;thjfshold/fbr:distmgdi§K^^
C'7 1'" -V/.V'V, .'-' -'"'1/ V %■  iSputhefh;.^'New^Harhp|hirP''^en-[iGes;;l'nc:v--and'A^^

"";>a*tjditee.C •* ' •y'-T'.. ->
9» ^ *" * * . V . * •

jt'Npne>

i.-FrNP|NGSA"Nb:'6U!ESt|ONeD'c;6SjSi'MA^,  .j,. , • . T»- -u..., yy A i,- - ■ y ' s- v-'-; 4- • ' y .• - .v. 4. i - av4. - . x- v../ i
■" * . "j' , - -4 .» V ^ yj- 1 . . - «. r ,j .• J. ■• ,jai » < .* s. .
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5 .:• ^ • -c,-

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

'SUMMARy-^SGHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS .
-  ' )FQR TrtBYEAR ENDED.JULY 31. 2023: ^

ijhere^were;npvfindih'gs'pr qU^ tqbe teppHe.d' in'the/Scrie^
ofFindingsfandiQufsUbned Cqstsifof the:>y^^ ■ ' ' ^

r* ••

.f.
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Southern New Hampshire Services; Inc.

Board of Directors

March 2024

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Mullins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard

Commissioner ToniPappas

James Brown

Molliy Driver

Deborah Gosselin O'Shea

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Bonnie Henault

Wanda Kennerson

Kathleen Mackin

German Ortiz
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DONNALEE LOZEAU

Community/Civic

Involvement' Current

• NH Community Action Partnership

• HB4 Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co-chair

• Governor's Office for Emergency

Relief and Recovery Stakeholders

Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jobs NH
Chapter, Co-chair

• St. Joseph Hospital Board of

Directors, Quality Council Chair
• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory

Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy Families Board of

Directors

• Mary's House Advisory Board

• The Plus Company

• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council

• Community College System of NH s

• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civic

Involvement- Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of

Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

BOD, Founding Member
• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member

• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors

• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public Policy Studies

• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding

Member

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (www.SNHS.org}

Manchester, NH (January 2016-Present)

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hillsborough and Rockingham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of service to targeted
community to wrap services around clients and streamline the
application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach

City of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city in the state of NH with development and implementation of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget .

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water company (Pennichuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 -2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development

• Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough County
through.community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and new initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy
Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center
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Past Community/Civic
Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building

Coalition, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable

Foundation State Board,

Member

• Eagle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Community

Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• Rivier College, Nashua-

. Undergraduate work in Political

Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training
• Leadership Institute, Aspen

• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative^ Hillsborough County, District 30

(1984 - 2000}-Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives

(1996-2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted Non-profit organizations and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation, Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judiciary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

•' Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• .Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

•  Subcommittee on Offenders, Chairman
■  Space and Prison Programming
■  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and
Public Safety

City Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)

City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Owner/Operator

• Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and licensing requirements
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RYAN "C
a

CLOUTHIER

OBJECTIVE

Seeking a leadership role which will allow me the opportunity to utilize and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work perfonncd by Community Action Agencies in the slate of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Communities we servc;

^ EXPERIENCE
Chief Operafing Officcr| Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESENT

Serving as part of the Executive Management.Team and is responsible for providing inspiring leadership to the
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior management team and developing a performance culture to
ensure the effective management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs. The Chief Operating Officer
will tic the various component programs including; nutrition; housing: energy; workforce development; income
enhancement; education; and elderly services to the agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting and communicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with the Chief Executive
Oniccr and Fiscal Ofilccr the Chief Operating OlTiccr provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively
involved with the agency's high-pcrfonnancc senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that scrs'iccs and
programs provided fulfill the agency's mission, and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, and city
regulations, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy and Housing Operations Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018

Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs. Information Tcchriology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission; vision arid leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all facets of fiscal and program management, effectiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's administration and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing. Also responsible for maintaining a working relationship with governmental officials, local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In conjunction with the Executive Director and Fiscal
Officer this positions provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively .involved with the agency's high-
performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and management of program content as
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that scr\'iccs and programs provided fulfill the agency's
mission and arc in compliance with all federal, state, funding, city, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2013-2016

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall super\'ision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs, Crisis Programs, Wcathcrization Program, Lead Hazard Control Program, and'
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rockinghain Counties. Develop and Maintain relationships with
federal, state and local grantors, intervene on behalf of the Community Action pertaining to the Core Utility
Weatherization Energy Efficiency Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA, NH Legal
Assistance, OfTice of Strategic Initiative, DOE, Liberty Utilities, Evcrsourcc, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Participates in multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

Weatherization Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall super\'ision and management of the
Wcathcrization, Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, state and local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Action As.sociation during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pertaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA, NH
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Legal Assistance. Office of Energy and Planning, DOE, Liberty Energy, Evcrsource, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA.
NREL, Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Served on the Dcpanment of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatherization Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot effort which became a
statewide practice and has received national recognition

Energy Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2004 - 2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized formats to determine cost effectiveness of conser\'ation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to assure quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Network Analyst I Genuity
2004 - 2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and Intcmational subscribers
including Japan, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troubleshooting problems/outages and
configuration issues, on difTereni t>Tics of Cisco routers, Lucent APX's, MAX's, and Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshooting consists of isolating problems through head to head testing with diftcrcnt Teleo's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Deriionstratcd strengths
in the areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
1994-1998: Dover High School
Ofh&: Weatherization written and field certification. Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and regional weatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, T1 and
T3 design and troubleshooting training, ATM and Frame Relay network design training. LAN and WAN
training, 0C3, OC48, and OCI92 design and troubleshooting training. BPI Energy Analyst. Lead contractor
abatement Certification, RRP certification, OSHA 30 hour worker safety, DOE Lead Safe Weatherization
certification.

SKILLS

Problem solving

New Business Development

Social Media

Public Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking

Strategic Planning

Operations Managenient

Contract Negotiations

Team and Relationship building

Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management.

Leadership

Community Assessment

Computer skills specific to job include,.
TREAT, NEAT, OTTER, FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365, PowerPoint, Outlook,

Word, Excel, Web. EmpowOR and CSST

and many others that can be beneficial.

ACTIVITIES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
•  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits from the Assistant Secretaiy of Energy

Efficiency from the Department of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.
Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning'Committee.
Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 2015. '

Vice President of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board. "
• Member of the Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board.

Member of the Residential Ratepayers Advisor)' Board.
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JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

'Dedicated accbuhtlng.pro'fessional with 8 years of hoh-prbfit experience and over 20 years of broad
expenence.ih.manufacturing, distribution", reorganizations, rnergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/fbreca^irig and establishing & monitoring performance metrics in a manufacturing environmeht.
Experienced in private apd public corporations; Including B years in.a private equity environment with a strong
focus on equity sponsor conrimunication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance

sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development in a team
environment. Professipnaj Experience;

•  Fiscal bfficer!ln nbnprbfit;organjzation
•  Controller in MFC & Distribution

•  "Treasury.and Cash Flow Management

•  Financial & Capital Budgeting, Reporting & Control
•  Cost Accounting Manager

General Accounting Manager

>  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement

RROFESSlOiSlAL EXPEIREN.CE

Southern New Hampshire ServiceSi Manchester, NH 5/2d09-Preseht
Southern New Hampshire.Services:'(SNHS) is a noh-profit entity disdicated to helping people help themselves.
SNHS accorhplish'es this through a Vafiety of programs offered at centers, offices, clinics, and intake sights
located throughout Rockingham and Hlllsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29 housing facilities
with approximately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and administers $36 mijllon in prograrn.funds annually vyith
bye/450 emplpy.ees.

Chief'Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present
•. Oversee fjnancial.and;accQuhtih'^ maihtainihg cohtrbls'ah'd managing potential business-

risks'

fyianage the,annual budget process and analysis activities

>  Prepare presentatjpn for Board of pire.cto.rs meetings presenting the ofganizatibn's financial results
•  Develop and maintain banking reiatibhships

Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior Accountan t 5/2609-1/2017'
Assisted Fiscal Directbr in bverseeing ajj fiscal.apd/ffnanciaj actiyities, including compH^^ with federal, state,
,an;Ctynding"source reguirern.ents .aswellas accordancewith GAAP
•  Developed and lmpieme.nted in^ costbaiculat'ion'ahd interfaced with Generai Ledger'

Mpriitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting;- fecommended adjustments and .forecast •
spending

•  Created specialized reports for the indiyid.uaj grant's repofting requirements

;Designed allocation methbds for properly billing shared Items to individual-jgrahts and programs
•  Prepafed rnohth'ly agency program fevlewsTor Fiscal Director's. Board of Directors r'eylew
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James M. Chaisson

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. Blddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, Is a.highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered In Atlanta,
;GA; WSI isa $70 friillibh manufacturer of roof a'n'd fiber trusses, wall panels arid a distributor of ehgin.eefed
\yood products The corhpany^s products afe.soid.lnto the residential and light commercial construction,
markets

Controller. 2006-4/2009

Managed all aspects of accounting arid reporting in a truss manufacturing plarit as well as an engineered wopd
p/oducts djstrib.utiori lpcat[onih.3Ti.n.clO-C'c4 2 locations in Maine and 1 m Massachusetts.
•  Calculated and assisted in the management of the company's covenants

• Worked closely with senior manageriient during the sale process from thelsellef (Harbour Group) and
buyer",(Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost driyers-and inripfemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle frpni 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement .
'• Oversaw the payroll fuhctidh of 160+ em'ployees

.A' ccduhtina Manager 2001-2006

Recruited to company to restore finan^ciaj controls and establish best.practices concerning both generaj ledger

.and cost accounting,processes, Responsible for overseeing theeccountirig of 2 locations in Maine and 1 in

.Alabam.a-.-

•  'Establjshed^the repbrting protocdls of the cbmpany used by both equity sponsors
•  Educated, rnotivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed iri'their rolls of financial responsibility

•- Identified and'lmplem.ented prpcessps and.procedures for all intercompany sales, transfers,.
cpnsplidatipn and eliminations

•" Stfeamline;d:the payroll prp^^^ tha,t:lnclude.d transferring to" an externaj suppjler (ADP), which reduced
cost by 40%:

•, .Cdnducfe'd.physical Iriventbfies ahdidefihed their policies and procedure at all iocatiohs.

VI$HAY SRRAGUE, Sanfbrd, ME 1978-;^2d01
Visfiay Sprague is a dlvision;pf Yishay jn'tertechnbj^ Inc. (NVSELysHj.aiglpbal manufarturer of discrete
sem]cpnductprs:andm ejectronic cpnip_pnentSi Jhe.Sprague Division manufactures solid taptal^^^
capacitors y/ith annualsajes'pf $200. mlliipn;and;l,400emplpyees.

Plant Cost Accounting ManaQer. 1997^2001

Division General Accountina ManaaeY' 1995)1997
■Divisidh bperdtiori Accountant 1989-1995
Dlvisio'h Fixe'd Asset At'cduhtdnt 1987-1989
Master Endih'eerihd'Te^^ ,1984-1987
Lead Prd'ductidn Technician 1978,-1984

-edocation

NASSbNCplj-EGER, Springvale,.ME
B:Sv id Business!Admihistfatioh"
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

The Community Action Partnership serving Hlllsborough and Rocklngham Counties
Mailing Address: PC Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone: (603) 668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel

April 2024

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage Amount

Chief Executive Officer Donnalee Lozeau $213,759 0.00% 0

Chief Operating Officer Ryan Clouthler $133,260 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer James Chalsson $155,009 0.00% 0



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89E8A99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

Leri A. Weaver

Commissioner

Karen E. Hebert

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIvmON OF ECONOMIC STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: M3-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wwTv.dbbs.nb.20v

March 26, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrhent of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic Stability,
to enter Into contracts with'the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exc^ $4,923,889
to provide workforce development services focused on assisting current, transitlohing, arid foimer
New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) participants ip obtaining career advancement support sen/ices and opportunities that will
assist them in achieving continued upward economic mobility, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance, with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional
years, effective upon Governor apd Council approval through June 30,2026.83% Federal Funds.
17% General Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount
Manchester Community
Resource Center, Inc.

rMarinhAstfir, rslHl
#153471

Manchester &

Nashua Region $1,825,347

Southern Hampshire
Services. Inc.

(ManChesier, NH)
#177198

Concord & Laconia

Region and
Rochester &

Seacoast Region

$3,098,542

Total: $4,923,889

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the. Budget Office
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to.provide workforce development services focused on
assisting current, transitioning, arid former New Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP),^
Temporary.Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) participants in obtaining career advancement
support services.and opportunities that will assist them in achieving continued upward economic
mobility.'
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His ExceiletKy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arxJ the Horroratjle Council

Page 2 of 3 -r

The Department seeks to support individuals in gaining skills, education, and workplace
experience to continue their career exploration and success, ultimately mitigating the cliff effect
and reducing the need for public assistance.

The workforce development sen/ices include:

• Workforce Development Services to assist current NHEP/TANF participants, in
obtaining career advancement, job.devetopment and opportunities that will assist
them in achieving continued upward economic mobility.

•  Post TANF Services for participants who closed TANF cash assistance, and
NHEP due to earnings, from the time of cash closure for a one (1) year period and
those participating in the Earned Income Disregard pilot program, to increase
Employment retention, reduce recidivism, support ongoing training and learning
opportunities that will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction
of obstacles to gaining and retaining employment in efforts to avoid employment
loss.

•  Pilot Disregard Services for those actively participating in the 75% or 100%
earned income disregard, and.for participants who remain eligible for TANF cash.

•  The disregard pilot is planned to end September 30. 2024, at which point, when
participants are no longer eligible for TANF cash, they will be eligible for Post TANF
Services.

Direct services are provided to. participants by offering services in a family-friendly office
or meeting space in the geographical region for which the participant resides, including the'
Contractor's office, local libraries, community colleges, community resources centers. One Stop
Centers, and other establishments that are convenient to the participants. Services may be
delivered individually, in a group setting, via remote workshops, by telephone, and using erriail
and other technologies, including video conferencing.

T

NHEP focuses on closing skill gaps by ensuring job seekers gain and increase
competencies, earning the credentials that'businesses seek of employees. Additionally,' NHEP
promotes the upskilling of employees to enhance their eligibility for higher wage positions, while
addressing workforce development and overcoming obstacles'to employment and promotions.
By doing so, NHEP aims to build a skilled pipeline of qualified employees to meefthe needs of
businesses in New Hampshire, while fostering self-confidence and preparing participants to be
valued employees.

Approximately 1,000 individuals will.be served during State Fiscal Years 2024, 2025. and
2026.

The Department will monitor services "by:

•  Participating in on-site monitoring conducted by. the Department on an annual basis,
unless othenwise required by the Department for the purpose of ensuring
deliverables-are met.

•  Completing onsile monitoring including, staff interviews; participant reviews, revievv
of program curricula and assigned activities as applicable, review of documentation,
and data in the New HEIGHTS system;

The Departmerit selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from.December 18,
2023 through January 31. 2024. The.Depart.ment received nine (9) responses that vyere reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheets are attached. The Departmerit
did not receive ,any qualified bids for hvo (2) regions (Claremont/Keene and Conway/
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Littleton/Berlin). The Department re-posted a Request for Proposals to resolicit services for fhese
regions on March 5, 2024.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to
extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, recipients of TANF would not
have Job Development Services available to them to gain support for their economic
independence and mobility, and meet the needs of New Hampshire employers. The Department
would not be able to provide ongoing employment support to participants, which may result in an
increase in public benefits and a reduction in the number of families that could be given
opportunities to achieve economic independence.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

In the event that the Federal Funds become'no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

"  Respectfully submitted.

0

for:

Lori A.'Weaver

Commissioner •

-77ic Dc^arlmcitl of HeoUh and Human Seruicc$' Mission is to join communkics and families,
in providing opporiunilies'for eilizens lo achieve heallh and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-45-450010-61270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HNS: HUMAN SERVICES-DEHS, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt}er Total Amount

■ 2024 074-500589 " Contracts for Program Services TBD $218,645
2025 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services T8D $1.382,895
2026 074-500589' Contracts for Program Services TBD $1.497.002-

Sub Total :  $3,098,542

Manchester Community Resource Center. Inc.

State Fiscal

. Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2024 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $183,536
2025 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services .. TBD $734,142
2026 074-500589 Contracts for Program Services TBD $907,669

V Sub Total $1,825,347

Overall Total $4,923.869

Fiscal Details Sheet

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division .of Finance and Procurement
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID#
Project Title

IRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN

jStrengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Manchester & Nashua ''

'

Maximum

Points'

Available

HMCNH-Health

Market Connect NH

MCRCnh - Manchester

Community Resources
Center, Inc.

SNHS ̂  Southern NH

Services, Inc.

Technical • "
.  ••

"

01 - Implementation Plan ' • 200 60 185 180

02 • Infrastructure Plan too 20 90 80 •

03 - CapacitY/Siaflinq Plan i; 100 15 90 80

04 • Experience • Population and Challenges 100 30 90 65

OS • Experience • Workforce Activities too 5 95 90

06 • Oualitv Assurance & Improvement 100 10 95 90

0 0 0

Subtotal • Technical 700 140 . 645 60S

If a Vendor (all to achieve 3S0 minimum points In the preliminary scoring, It will receive no further conslderatiort from the
evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost •'
.  .

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150. 86

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 XXX 135 1,10

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 285 196

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 930 601

14;

1- TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,825,347 $3,199,345

Reviewer Name Title

11Gcne Patnode iWoflttorce Development Administralor

2 iBriana Williamson

SlJoshua Kelly

iProgram Specialist II • SNAP Employment & Trainif>fl'
tOuality Assurance Specialist

4ILaufa Ingram

SiVirginia Jones
(Financial Manager

IPropram Specialist IV
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

ProjecHO# IRFP-2024-DES-07-STREN"
Project Title iStrengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

1

Concord & Laconia
Maximum Points

Available

MMCNH - Health Market

Connect NH

SNHS-Southern NH

Services, inc. '
Technical

01 ■ Implementation Plan 200 60 160

02 • Infrastructure Plan ,  100. 20 80

03 - Ca^aci^/Staffing Plan 100 15 80

04 • Experience • Population and

Challenges 100 " 30 85

05 - Experience - Worlcforce Activities 100 5 90

06'- Ouality Assurance & Improvement 100 10 90
•j,

0 0

Subtotal • Technical 700 140 605

If a Vertdor fall to achieve 350 minimum points In the preliminary scoring. It will receive no further consideratioii
from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost t-

Vendor Cost •  150 XXX ■ _ - 150

Ver>dor Budget Evaluation ISO • XXX 100

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 250

TOTAL POINTS •  1000 140 BS5

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,565,857

Reviewer Name'

1 iGene Palnode

2l6riana Williamson

SlJoshua Kelly

Laura Ingram

Virginia. Jones

Title

jWorkforce Development Adminislrator III ' I
jpfogram Specialist II • SNAP Employment & Training |
lOuality Assurance Specialist " I
Financial Manager ii
jPfograrh Specialist IV ' • , 'i
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New Hampshire Departmerit of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurernent

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# |RFP.2Q24-DES-07-ST,REtr
Project Title IStrcnflthenlitg Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Rochester & Seacoast

Maximum

, Points
Available

HMCNH-Health Market

Connect NH

.SNHS-Southern NH
Services. Inc.

Technical

01-.Implementation Plan 200 60 170

02-.Infrastructure Plan 100 20 75

03 - Capacity/Staffing Plan ' 100 15 80
04 - Experience - Population and Challenqes 100 30. 85

OS - Experience - Workforce Activities ' 100 5 80
06 • Ouality Assurance & Improvement . 100 10' 85

0 0

Subtotal T Technical 700 140 676

If a Vendor fail to achieve 350 minimum points iri the preliminary scoring, it will receive no further consideration
from the evaluation team and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost

Vendor Cost 150 XXX 150
Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 . XXX 130

Subtotal • Cost 300 0 280

TOTAL POINTS 1000 140 855

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST $1,532,685

Reviewer Name

1 Gene Patnode

2 Biiana Williamson'

3 [Joshua Kelly

4 ILauraJngram
SiVirginia Jones

Title

tWorkforce Development Administrator III .
iProgram Speclalisi II - SNAP Employmeni & TraininQ

IQuality Assurance Specialist
iFlnancial Manager' v '
iPfogram Speclalisi IV'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID ff IHPP-2024-DES-07-STREN
Project Title Istreng'thenlng Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Berlin, Conway & Littleton Maximum Points Available HMCNH - Health Market Connect NH

Technical " ' .
61 • Implementaiion Plan 200 66
Q2 - Intrasiruciure Plan • 100

03 • Capadty/Statling Plan •  • . . 100 15
Q4 • Experience • Population and Challenges '  . 100 36
05 • bxpenence • Workforce Activities 100 5

06-0ua!ity Assurances Improvement •. ■  100 10

6  •
i  Subtotal • Technical 700 f46

If a Vendor fall to achieve 350 minimum points in the prelimlr\ary scoring, It will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team

and the Vendor's Cost Proposal will remain unopened.

Cost ' . • •

Vendor Cost ... 150 XXX
Vendor Budget bvaluallon 150 •xXX

Subtotal •Cost 300 0 -

TOTAL POINTS i66d 140

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST unr

Reviewer Name

1 IGene Patnode

2|Briana Williamson

31Joshua Kelly

■AlLaura Ingram
SiVifginIa Jones

Title

IWofklorce Development Adminisirator III
jProgram Specialist II - SNAP Employment & Training
lOuality Assurance Specialist .
{Financial Manager
iPfogram Specialist IV
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet ■

Project ID0
Project Title

|RFP-2Q24-DTS^7-STREN
tStrengthening Citizens and Bueinesses tor Economic Mobility

Claremont & Keene Maximum Points Available HMCNH - Health Market Conned NH

Technical

6l - Implementation Plan •  200 60 ...

02 ̂ Inlrastructure Plan fW 20

Q3 • Capacity/StaHing Plan • 100 15

Q4 • Experience ■ Population and Challenges 100 30

05 • Experience: workforce Actiyiiies 100 5

06 - Ouality Assurance & Improvement 100 10

0

Subtotal-Technical 700 140

If a Vendor fall to achieve 350 .minimum points in the preliminary scoring, It will receive no further consideration from the evaluation team
and the Vendor's Cost Proposal wilt remain unopened.

Cost *

Vendor Cost 150 yxx

Vendor Budget Evaluation 150 yxx

Subtotal • Cost 300 ,  0

TOTAL POINTS 1000 r, 140

TOTAL PROPOSED VENDOR COST unr

Reviewer Name

1 iGene Painode

2|Briana Williamson

3[Joshua Kelly

QLaura Ingram

SjVictoria Jones

Title

IWorktofce Development Administrator ill ' • :

jProgram Specialist II • SNAP Employment & Trainingi
iOuality Assurance Specialist i

IFInancial Manager
JPrdgram SpecUdlst IV
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1F1M737-ACM0-229444BB15BE FORM NUMBER P-37 (VCrsiOfl 2/23/2023)
Subject: RFP-2024-DES«07-STREN-p2 / Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

•  be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in \vriting prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

l.r State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.

1.2 .Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Souihem New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• 1.4 Co'niroctor Address . ' '

40 Pine Street, j
Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-668-8010

1.6 Account Unit and Class

05-95-45-450010-61270000-

074-500589

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2026

1.8 Price Limitatioh

53,098,542

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
^OoegSleiM^ by:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Ryan douthier

•

Chief Operating officer

1.13 Slate Agency Signature
DocuSloMd b)p:

D...V^6/2024
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Karen Hebert

Division Director •

1.15 .Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
Sy. 9

By: - On: 3/27/2024 '
—74#7Wft44»4He0..

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)_

G&C Itcrn.numbcr: , C&C Meeting Dale:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaie of New

Hampshire, 'acting through the agency identifted in block- I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified inblock 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the opprovol of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Manipshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this -Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Dale, all • Services-perfomicd by the Contractor prior to the

' Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that (his Agreement does not become effective, (he
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor' for any costs
incurred or Services perfomicd,
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dote
specified in block 1.7.-

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of "this Agreement to "the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued approprinlioh of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any pay'ments'hercuhdcr in excess of such
available appropriated funds, in (lie event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any slate or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or othcrvvise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and^
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBITS, in whole or in pad,
the Slate shaH have the right to withhold payment until such.funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
lemiinatc (he Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination, the
State shall not ̂  required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the cvcrTt funds
in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 Tlic contract price, method of payment, ohd terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly, described jn EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by,reference.
5.2 Noiwithstanditig any provision in this Agreement to the
.contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall (he total of all payments authorized, or actually made
'hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
'payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses,-of
.whatever nature' incurred ,by the Contractor in.the pcr/ormance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services:

5.3 The State reserves the right to offscl from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required oi; permitted by N.H. RSA'SO:?
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law..
5.4 The Stoic's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
perfomiance or other equitable remedies against (he Stale.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

. regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which Impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for. employment,
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status;
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affimiative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value .by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
'mode which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, o.r acceptance ofpr acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6,4. The Contractor agrees to p>crmil the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
(he purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement arid
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, tenns
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perfomi the Scn-ices. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform (he

;Service.s, and shall be properly licensed and oiher%vise.authorized
to do so under all applicable taws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in bjock 1.9, or any"
successor,'shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to thjs
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of Ihc following'acts or omissions of the
Contractor'shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;

. 8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2' Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, of more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State detemiines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suiters by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. termination.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any *
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor

• shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fiflecn (15) calendar .days after the date of
termination, a report ("Tennination Report") describing in detail
all Scivices performed, and the contract price earned, to. and
lincluding the date of termination. In addition, at the State.'s
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar.days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Scr\'ices under ihc Agreement.

10. PROPERTY,OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, inforiiialion and things developed of obtained during the
pcrformnncc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
.formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, vjdco
recordings," pictorial reproductions, drawings,- analyses, .graphic
represeniations, computer programs.- computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and docuincnis, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
Stale, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agrecritcni, shall be the property of the Stole, and shall be rctumcd
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

II. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects on
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its ofTiccrs, employees,-
agents or members shall have authority to-bind the Stale or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

U. ASSfCNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State .written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No -such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment". "Change of Control" means (a)' merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of (he assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Scr\'iccs shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained In a subcontract or an,assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall Indemnify,
.defend, and hold hannless the State,, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without liniitaiion, reasonable attomeys' fees, arising .out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the Stale, its'ofTiccrs,
or' employees caused by (he acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful miscohduci, or fraud by (he Contractor, its
cmisloyees, agents, or subcontractors. The Siate shal! not be liable
for any .costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
"pfiragrnph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to, constitute .a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive.the termination
pf this Agreement.
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M. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contraclor shall, ai its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 Thepoliciesdescribed in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy fomts and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block I-.9, or any successor, a ccrtifi^te($) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide ccrtificate(s) of insurance for all rcncwal(s) of
insurance required irndcr this Agreement. The ccrtincatc(s) ,of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28J-A ("lyorkers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreenient. The
Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer identified In block
1.9, ;0r any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
fcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Coniractor, which might arise under applicable State of New',
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
pcrfonnance of (he Services under this Agreement.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the panics
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. '*
19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Stale of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement Is the wording-chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the tenns of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in,EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

s

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A.are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Coniractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
ndditiohal documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out'the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A Stoic's failure to enforce Its rights 25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
wjth respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement Agreement are held by" a court of competent jurisdiction to' be
shall notactasawaivcrofthcrightofthe State to later cnforceany contrary to any stale or federal law. the remaining provisions of
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach. this Agreement will remain in full force and elTect.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the otherparty shall 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at'the time of executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
mailing by certified.mail, postage'prcpaid, in a United Slates Post deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
"Office addressed Jo the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
and 1.4, hercin._ agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1.' Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions •

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4)
additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5.. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with

■' the Health Insurance Portability and - Accountability Act. Written
agreemerits shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. ■ The
.Contractor.shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided, for.
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

RFP.2024-DES-07-STRE"N^2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT 8

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work - Applicable to ALL Services

1.1.

1.2.

The Contractor must provide services to assist Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families (TANF)/New Hampshire Employment Prograrn (NHEP) participants in
obtaining career advancement, support services and opportunities to achieve
continued upward economic mobility. The Contractor must provide the services
outlir>ed below:

1.1.1. Workforce Development Services, for all TANF/NHEP participants.

1.1.2. Post TANF .Services, for participants who closed TANF cash
assistance; and NHEP due to eamings, from the time of cash closure
for a one (1) year period and those participating in the Earned Income
Disregard pilot prograrn, to increase employment retention, reduce
recidivism, support ongoing training and learning opportunities that
will promote career advancement, including, ongoing reduction of
■obstacles to employment in efforts to avoid employment loss.

1.1.3. Pilot Disregard Services (for those actively participating In the
75% or 100% earned income disregard), for participants who
remain eligible for TANF cash, will receive services as described in
Section 2.3.

The Contractor must ensure services -are available and provided in the
Concord, Laconia, Rochester and Seacoast Regions, as outlined in the'
Geographic Region Table below' '
Geograjshic Region Table: . .
District Office
Concord Region
40 Ternll,Park Drive '
Concord, NH 03301:9955
Phone: 603-271-6201 or
1-800-322-9191

Laconia Region
65 Beacon Street^
West Laconia, NH 03246-9988
Phone: 603-524-4485 or

City/Town
Allenstown, Andover, Boscawen,
Bow, Bradford, Canterbury,
Chichester, Concord, Contoocook,
Danbury, Dunb'arton, Elkins, Epsom.
Franklin,. Henniker, Hill, Hillsboro,
Hodksett, Hopkinton, Loudon. New
London, Newbury. Northfield.
Perhbrdke, Penacook, Pittsfield,
^Salisbury, Suncook, Button, Warner,
Webster, and Wilmot.

Alexandria, Alton, Ashland,
Barnstead, Belmont, Bridgewater,
Bristol, Campto.n, Center Harbor,
Dorchester, Ellsworth. Gilford^

RFP-2024bES-67-STR6N-d2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT 8

V*

1-800-322-2121 Gilmanton, Groton, Hebron,
Holdemess, Laconia, Lakeport,
Meredith, New Hampton, Plymouth,
Rumney, Sanbornton, Silver Lake,
Thomton, Tllton, Walerville Valley,
Wentworth, and Winnisauam.

Rochester Region
150 Wakefield Street., Ste 22

Rochester, NH 03867-1309

Phone: 603-332-9120 or
1-800-862-5300

Barrington, Dover, Durham,
Farmlngton, Gonic. Lee, Madbufy,
Middleton, Milton, New Durham,
Rochester, Rollinsford,
Somersworth, Strafford, and Union.

Seacoast Region
19 Rye Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Phone: 603-433-8300 or

1-800:821-0326
(

Brentwopd, Candia, Deerfield, East
Kingston, Epping, Exeter, Fremont,
Greenland, Hampton, Hampton
Falls, Kensington, Kingston, New
Castle. NewTields, Newington,
Newmarket. North Hampton,
Northwood, Nottingham,
Portsmouth, Raymond, Rye,
Seabrook, South Hampton, and
Stratham..

1.3. The Contractor must^provide direct services to participants by offering services
in a client-friendly office or meeting space in the Geographical Region for which ■
the participant is located.

1.3.1. The Contractor must have an office space in. each Geographical
Region where services are provided, and, must also travel to
corhmuriity locations including, but not limited to:
1.3.1.1. LocaUibrariesj.
1.3.1.2. Community colleges;
1.3.1.3. Community resources centers;
1.3.1.4. One Stop Centers; and
1.3'.1.5. Other state:acceptable establishments that ,are

convenient to the participants. ^

The Contractor must ensure participants work toward achieving
identified goals in, an individualized manner. Providing services in a
work simulated environrrient with idehtified structured curricula will be
used cautiously and minimally in this service delivery model. ~
The Contractor must deliver services individually, in a group setti^ in

RFP.2p24;DES^)7.STREN.02 >' 0.2,0 Conlracto, InlUals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

n.

EXHIBITS

which all participants have a vested interest or need, In person, via
remote workshops, by telephone, and using ernali and other
technologies, including video conferencing. Individualized services
are crucial to the service delivery model and must focus on the six (6)
areas of workforce development identified by the Department, which
are as follows:

y,

1.3.i3.1. High School Credential Attainment..
1.3.3.2. Career Exploration and Identification.
1.3.3.3. Training/Credential Attainment-Licensures and/or

Apprenticeship Program.
1.3.3.4. Completion of an Employment Portfolio.
1.3.3.5. Participation in a Work Experience or On.-the-Job Training

(OJT).,
■  1.3.3.6. Career Ladder Employment.

1.4. The Contractor' must actively participate in monthly meetings w|th the
Department. Meetings, will address enhancing service delivery, ensuring
accountability for specified deliverables, fostering collaboration on training
needs, promptly addressing issues, engaging in discussions about

'■ policy/protocol changes, and providing updates on the Contractor's progress.
Other meetings with the Department may be required for a variety of other
topics that include, but are not lirpited to: •

1.4.1. District Office meetings;

1.4.2. ,NH Works. Partner meetings;

1 ;4.3. Community stakeholder meetings; and

'*■ 1.4.4. Other meetings,.as requested by-the Department.
.  1.5. The Contractor must provide program information to the NHEP participants to

share the supports that are available to them.

1.6. The Contractor must' ensure that their Workforce Developers complete Job
Developer Training, either within the initial year of the contract or within the
initial year of erpployment with the. Contractor. This obligation can be fulfilled
by providing proof of current certification.

1:7; The Contractor must participate in on-site monitoring, conducted by the
Department ori an annuail basis, or as otherwise required by the Department,
to ensure services are being provided in accordance with this Contract. 'The
on-site monitoring includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.1. Staff intemevys.

1.7.2. Participant interviews."
1.7.3. Review of program curricula and assigned activities, as apptoWe.

RFP-2024-DE$-p7-STREN-02 B-2.0 Contraclo'rlnitials[ ^
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.  New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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1.7.4. Review of documentation and data in the Department's ITsystems.

1.8. The Contractor must provide Workforce Developers and Post TANF Program
staff, as indicated in the Staffing Table, below. . /

Staffing Table:

District Office
Services

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program

Concord Reqion 2 2

Laconia Region 1 1

Rochester Reqion 2 .  2 .

Seacoast Reqion 1 1

•  Hours may be satisfied by multiple positions, with varying schedules, to
■meet the needs of the participants.

1.9. The Contractor must provide the following staff to participant ratios in the
Staffing Ratio Table, below.

Staffing Ratio Table: ; .

TImeframes
Ratios

Workforce Developer Post TANF Program
Effective upon G&C
approval through 6/30/2025

25:1 30. :1

7/1/2025-6/30/2026 . 25:1 35: 1

1.10. Scope of Services - Workforce Development Services
I  ' ' .

I.IO.t The Contractor must provide service to participants that are in
alignment with the Department Career Counselor's completed
assessment and employment plan, which includes immediate, near
term and long-term needs, and goals of the participant.

i.10.2. The Contractor must ensure.that individualized, quality and equitable
services are provided to participants that are aligned with and follow
the workforce development areas which include, but are hot'limited
to: -

i.10.2.1. Expanded Career Exploration. The Contractor must
,,, provide training and support on:

1.10.2.1.1.. Labor market tools, utilization and
information including: pccupational
Information Network (0*NET), Bureau of

"  .. Labor' Statistics. Economic Labor^Warket
RFP-2p24-pES-07-STREN-02
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Infonnation and other state and federal

assistance resources;
1.10.2.1.2. Career opportunities that are identified as In-

demand with salary range increases and
opportunities for upward career
advancement;

1.10.2.1.3. Wage projections related to specific
industries and sector partner initiative
evolvement;

1.10.2.1.4. Employment trends;
1.10.2.1.5. Working with employers to set up job

shadows and job tours; and
1.10.2.1.6. Administering and working with skills and

interest assessments.

1.10.2.2. Training and Credentialing Attainment. The Contractor
must support and assist NHEP participants with:

1.10.2.2.1. Working with employers to identify the
training necessary to fill open positions to
address their employee shortages;

1.10.2.2.2. Collaborating with employers and training
providers, such as the Community College
System and other educational programs, to
.develop customized trainings to address the
employee shortage needs of New
Hampshire businesses; and

1.10.2.2.3. Navigating available opportunities
connected to apprenticeships.

1.10.2.3. Employability Skills Training, Community Service, and
Employment Portfolio Development. The Contractor
must provide training and development on:

,  1.10.2.3.1. Resumes: Update Jo address specific
occupational/industry language.

1.10.2.3.2. Cover Letters.

1.10.2.3.3. Employment applications.
1.10.2.3.4. Interview skills and preparedness.
1.10,2.3^5. Utilizing. existing labor market tools and

information.

1.10.2.3.6. Utilizing vario'usjob search training methods.
1.10.2.3.7. Interpersonal soft skills.

• • (•;
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1.10.2.3:8. Collaborating and partnering vyith
community service agencies to increase
work readiness skills.

1.10.2.4. Work Experience/Internship. The Contractor must:

1.10.2.4.1. Develop work . experience/internship
opportunities that are in line with participant
career goals.

1.10.2.4.2. Ensure -work , experience/internship
opportunities are no longer than 240 hours
and do not exceed 16 weeks in duration. .

1.10.2.4.3. Monitor participant progress at the work
experience/internship, site 'on a bi-weekly
basis.

1.10.2.4.4. Monitor participant progress at the, work
.r .experience/internship site on'- a monthly

basis with the employer partner.
1.10.2.4.5. Develop and execute work experience

agreements with both employers and
participants.

1.10.2.4.6. Work with participants in collaboration, with
'  . . businesses through the on-boardihg

process.

1.10.2.5. Career Ladder Employrnent. and/or On-The-Job
Training (OJT) Support. The Contractor must assist and
support participants in all areas oif their employment,

.  Jncluding but not limited-to;

1.10.2.5.1. The on-boarding process. ^
1.10.2.5.2. Job retention.

1.10.2.5.3. Workforce development training and other
services related to employment stabilizatiori.

1.10.2.5.4. Career development and advancement.
■' '1.10.2.5.5. Wage progression.

1.10.2.5.6. Re-ernployment supports and services'.
1.10.3. The Gontractor.must become familiar with, and have a strong working

■ knowledge and understanding of the New Hampshire's Work
Verifica'tion Plan and how that plan guides service delivery-based en
the twelve (12) allowable federal TAN'R activities located on the
Federal Register 45 CFR Parts 261, 262, '263V and '265.
https://www.QOvinfo.QOv/content/Dkq/FR-2008-b2-05/Ddf/08-455.pdf.

1.'10.4. The'Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, must^g^vide

RFP-2024-bES-07-STREN-02 8-2.0 Contractor Inilials
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support services, as referenced in Attachment 2 - NHEP Employment
& Training Support (ETS) Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS &
Bridges and direct navigation with participants to address and/or
remove challenges to employment, including but not limited to:

1,10.4.-1. Transportation,
1.10.4.2. Child care.

1.10.4.3. Family and work balance.
1.10.4.4. Other challenge.s to employment that may include, but are

not limited to:

1.10.4.4.1. Mitigating obstacles while employed;
1.10.4.4^.2. Assistance with new employee acclimation

to the workplace;
1.10.4.4.3. Conflict resolution; and
1.10.4.4.4. Assistance with unforeseen challenges,

including but not limited to: ■

1.10.4.4.4.1. Car repairs;
1.10.4.4.4.2.. Necessary tools of the

trade; and
1.10.4.4.4.3. Workplace ' uniforms and

"  clothing.

1.10.5. The Contractor must collaborate with all State of New Hampshire
Workforce partners to broaden opportunities available to participants,
which includes, b'ut is not limited to:

1 .'10.5.1. Agencies funded by the Workforce innovation Opportunity
Act (WlOA). .. .

1.10.5.2. NH Department of Education, Vocational Rehabilitation. .
110.5.3. NH Employment Security, One Stop Centers.,
1.10.5.4. Family Resource Centers.
1.10.5.5. Other comrriunity partners approved by the Department.

1.10.6.. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce agencies and
partners to coordinate and/or blend multiple funding streams
necessaly to support the NHEP/TANF popula'tion ' with tuition,
reduction in challenges to employment, and employment needs, in
order to prepare participants to transition from public assistance.

1.10.7. The Contractor must collaborate with other workforce and training
providers to maintain current knowledge of the various credenlialing,
training, on-the-job training (OJT), apprenticeship and direct

. employment opportunities that are available, in order to offer those
opportunities to NHEP participants.

(
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1.10.8. the Contractor must work in collaboration with employers,
Department Career Counselors, and participants to ensure that all
parties are communicating appropriately and timely.

^1.10.9. The Contractor must report all participant changes, including,changes
in employment status, to the Department Career Counselors within
two (2) business days.

1.10.10. Reporting Requirements.

1.10.10.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data into
the Department's New HEIGHTS system at least monthly,
that includes but is not limited to:

1.10.10.1.1. Employment data. -
1.10.10.1.2. Service delivery data.
1.10.10.1.3. Any required documents.
1.10.10.1.4. Updates to participant contact information.

1.10.10.2. The Contractor must report to the Department's Bureau
Chief of Employment Supports or designee by the tenth
(10"^) calendar day following the end of the reporting
period of each month, that includes but Is not limited to;

1.10.10.2.1. Number of participants referred for:

1/10.10.2.1.1. Work Experience.
1.10.10.2.1.2. Community Service,.
1.10.10.2.1.3. On-the-job Training (OJT).
1.10.10.2.1.4. Apprenticeship.
1.10.10.2.1.5. Unsubsidized employment.

1.10.10.2.2. Number of participants that started in a Work
Experience/Community Service.

1.10.10.2.3. Number of participants that started an
OJT/Apprenticeship/Unsubsidized
employment.

1.10.10.2.4. Number of Work Experience/Cpmmurilty
Service agreements developed.

1.10.10.2.5. Number of Work Experience/Community
Services agreements, actually started.

-1.10.10.2;6. Total number of participants, in Work
Experiences.

1.10.10.2.7. Number of participants in Work Experience
that led.to OJt. ^

1.10.10.2.8. Number of participants in a Work Experience
that led to direct emplpyment.

1;.10.10.2t9... Number of participants in an OJT.

RFP-2024-DES-b7-STREW-02 . 0-2.0 ■Contractor Initials
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1.10.10.2.10. Number of OJT's that led to direct
empioyment.

1.10.10.2.11.Number of referrals received from

Department Career Counselors in the
month.

1.10.10.2.12. Number of overall active participants in the
month.

1.10.10.2.13. Number of contacts with participants made
in the month, broken down by the following

"contact methods, that include but are not

•  • limited to:

>  1.10.10.2.13.1: Phone contact.
^  1.10.1.0.2.13.2. Email and- other

technologies.
v  1.10.10.2.13.3. Videoconferencing.

1.10.10.2.13.4. In-person.
1.10.10.2.13.5. In.a group setting, including

workshops and job fairs.

1.10.10.2.14.Number of participants who entered
employment.

1.10:10.2.15. Number of job losses in the month.
1,10.10,2.16. Any other data requested by the

Department.

1.10.11. Performance Measures. ^ ■

1,10.11.1. Work Experience/Internship. Jhe Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.1.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
in a Work Experience/Internship vyithjn 60
days of referral date.

1.10.11.1.2. Minimum of 70% of participants transition
,v ' from their Work Experience into either OJT,

Apprenticeship or Unsubsidized
Employment after completion of either 16

^  weeks or 240 hours in the Work Experience.
1.10.11.1.3. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be

reached out to bi-weekiy to discuss how the
Work.Experience is progressing.

1.10.11.1.4'.- Minimum of 95% of employer partners will
receive monthly communication in order to
assess participants progress, and to gather
Information regarding transitioning

enoe to

fC
participants from their Work Experi,
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OJT or Unsubsid(zed Employment. Each
monthly communication will be documented
within the New HEIGHTS system.

1.10.11.2. On-the-Job Training (OJT). The Contractor must ensure;

1.10111.2.1. Minimum of 70% of participants are placed
In an OJT within 60 days of referral date.

1.10.T1.2.2. Minimum of 90% of all participants will enter
into Unsubsidized Employment upon the
completion of the OJT.

1.10.11.2.3.-Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to bi-weekly to discuss how the

\  OJT is progressing.
1.10.11.2.4. Minimum of 95% of employer partners will

receive monthly communication in order to
assess participant progress as well as
gather information regarding transilioning
participants from their Work Experience to
OJT to unsubsidized employment. Each

... monthly communication will be documented
within the New HEIGHTS system,

1.10.11.3..^pprenffcesh/ps. The Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11:3.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to monthly to discuss how the

J  Apprenticeship is progressing, including
progressive wage gains.

i;i0.11.3.2. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
supported through all training aspects of the
apprenticeship and all credentials, training,

0-, p.ost-secondary educational achievernents
will be captured.

1.10.11.3.3. Minimum of 95% ongoing communication
with apprenticeship partners. Each monthly
communication will be documented within

the New HEIGHTS system.

4. Unsubsidized Employment for those in.NHEP, "the
■Disregard Pilot and the Post TANF F^rogram (as
appropriate for individual situations and needs). The
Contractor must ensure:

1.10.11.4.1. Minimum of 95% of all participants will be
reached out to monthly, to discuss fei^the

RFPr2024'DES-07-STREN-02 8-2.0 Contractor initials ■ •

Southern Hampshire SoKicos, Inc. Page 10 of 26



DocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

OocuSign Envelope 10:9AS6853B-1 Fi M737-AD40-229444BB15BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

job is progressing, including a focus on the
following (as appropriate):

1.10:11.4.1.1. Workforce development
training, including
credentials, upskilling,

-  " employer provided
training opportunities, etc.

1.10.11.4.1.2. Career development and
advancement including,
high demand industries.

1.10.11.4.1.3. Wage progression.
1.10.11.4.1.4. Job retention, related to

employment stabilization.
1.10.11.4.1.5. Re-employment supports

and services.

1.10.11.4.1.6; Mitigating obstacles to
employment.

1.10.11.4.1.7, Employment, and training
assistance services.

1.10.11.4.2. Each monthly communication will be
■  documented within the New HEIGHTS

system.

I.'il. Scope of Services - Post TANF Program Services for NHEP
1.11.1. The Contractor must make and document at least three (3) contact

attempts to successfully engage each individual' offered services in
the Post TANF Program withiri ten (10) business days of receipt of a
referral from the Department, which will include the NHEP participant
contact information. .

1.11.1.1. Phone contact.

1.11.1.2. Email and other.technologies.

1.11.1.3. Video conferencing.

1.11.1.4. In-person.

1.11.1.5. In a group setting, including workshops and job fairs.

1.11.2. The Contractor must utilize the Department's New HEIGHTS system'
td 'document all contact and activities with participants in the-Post

■  TANF Program.

1.11.3. The ,'Contractor-rtiust ensure that different contact methods are
utilized, in efforts to reach Post TANF participants and/of par&jf^nls
in the Disregard Pilot Program", including in-person. at the hotf
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participant (with their verbal permission), and/or in-person in the
community, when necessary and appropriate. Contact and/or
services should be provided no less than twice per month.

1.11.4. The Contractor must provide resource and services to meet the
individual needs of the participant to assist the participant in meeting
employment goals which may include, but are not limited to;

1.'11.4.1. Referrals for services;

•  1.11.4.2. Direct delivery of services; and

1.11.4.3. Authorization of payment for services.

1.11.5. Transitional Workforce Services: '
•  .• •

1.11.5.1. The Contractor must ensure that individuals receive
transitional workforce services to assist therh in transitioning
froni one job to another or from one career area to another,
on an as needed basis, in the following areas:

:v l.'n.5.1.1. Careercounseling;
'■ i;11.5.1.2. Workforce development training and other

services related to employrnent stabilization;
1.11.5.1.3. Job retention: and . :•

..1.1.1.5.1.4. PostTANF employment. .
1.11.6. Stabilization and Support Services:

1.11.6.1. The Contractor must approve and provide payment for'
stabilization and support services, as '.referenced in
Attachment 2 - NHEP Employrnent &■ Training Support
(ETS) Activities Interface In New HEIGHTS & Bridges, on an
as needed ba'sis in the following areas:
1.1T.6.1.1. Transportation allowances":
1.11.6.1.2. Aiito repairs;
1.11.6.1.3. pentalcare; '
1.11.6.1.4. Uniforms and tools; *
1.11:6.1.5. Eyeglasses;
1.11.6.1.6. Child care;

.  1.11.6.1.7. Tuition assistance: "
1.11.6.1.8. Technology and access to technology; and
1.11.6.1.9. Other items approved by the Department.

1.11.6.2. the Contractor must provide supporting documentation
upon the Department's request for all supportive services, in
accordance with Exhibit C.

1.11.6.3. The Contractor nhusl coordinate with appropri^
RFP-2024-OES-O7-STREN-O2 8-2.0 CbnUactor Initials
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resources to connect participants, on an as needed basis to
the services and assistance that will support them in their
progression toward upward economic mobility.

1.11.7. High School Credential Attainment. The Contractor must:

1.11.7.1. Have a working knowledge of .the Adult Education system in'
New Hampshire and support participants in navigating the

services required to work toward the obtainment of their

High School Credential.

1.11.7.2. Provide assistance and support to participants in all aspects
of the attainment of a secondary school diploma, High .
School (HS) or High School Equivalency Test (HiSet).

1.11.8. Job Retentlon/Ppst-Employment Services:

1.11.8.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that participants
receive the following job retention and post-employment
services, on an as needed basis, in the follovying areas:

1.11.8.1.1. Ongoing communication;
:■/ *1.11.8.1.2. Support with employment issues;

1.11.8.1.3. Interpersonal skills;
1.11.8.1.4. - Workplace mentoring; ,
1.11.8.1.5. Crisis prevention and resolution;

'• 1.T1.8.1.6. Linkages with job training; and
1.11.8.1.7. Occupational skills training to obtain, maintain

and upgrade employment. J.,'-
1.11.9. Wage Progression:

1.11.9.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
. participants receive wage progression services, in the
following areas, as needed:

j  1.11.9.1.1. Self^advocacy.and leadership skills:
'• 1.11.9.1.2. Occupation and wage information;

1.11.9.1.3.. Financial literacy trajnihg, including:

1.11.9.1.3.1. Household budgeting;
1.11.9.1.3.2. Methods to increase ef—credit

scores;

1.11.9.1.3.3. Banking, including checking and
saving accounts; and

1.11.9.1.3.4. Interest rates,

1.11.9.1.'4. Federal Earned Income Tax Credit and Child
•  TaxCredit counseling; and {—

.  - '
RFP-2024-OES-07-STREN-02 6-2.0 Contractor Inilials

.  3/26/2024,
SoothomNowHompsNfoServices. Inc. PaQe13ot26 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID: 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

OocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56853B-1Fi'm737-AO40-2294448B1 56E

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

1.11.9:1.5. Work Opportunity Tax Credits.

1.11.10. Re-Employment Services:

1.11.10.1. The Contractor must provide and ensure that referred
participants receive the following re-employment services to

.  reach their desired career goals:

1.11.10.1.1. Comprehensive workforce development and
job search skills;

1.11.10.1.2. Job leads and introductions to employers; and
1.11.10.1.3. Assistance with reactivating available benefits

during re-employment search phase and/or
during occupational training.

1.11.11. Reporting Requirements:

1.11.11.1. The Contractor must enter individual participant data and
updates into the Department's New HEIGHTS system on
the day that contact is made with the participant and/or
services are dejivered. Updated contact/service data must
include, but is not limited to:

1.11.11.1.1. Employment data.
1.11.11.1.2. Post-Secondary enrollment/achievement

data.

1.11,.11.1.3. Client dernpgraphics. -
1.11.11.1.4. Service delivery data.
1.11.11.1.5. Any required documents.
1.11.11.1.6. Participant!s contact data.

1.11.11.2. The Contractor must submit a monthly programmatic report,
to the Department's Bureau Chief of Employment Supports
or designee by the tenth (10^) day of each month, to the
Department, monthly and year to date totals of the following:

1.11.11.2.1. Number of referrals from Department Career
Counselors in the month.

1.11.11.2.2. Number of individuals that became active

participants from referrals received in the
month. , . ,

1.11.11:2.3. Numl)er of overall active participants in the
month.

1,11.11.2.4, Number of cumulative active participants to
date in the contract year (non-duplicative
count).
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1.11.11.2.5. Number of contacts in the month, to include
contact type.

1.11.11.2.6. Number of participants . who ■ entered
employment.

1.11.11.2 .7. Number of job losses in the month.
1.11.11.2.8. Number of participants enrolled in education.
1.11.11.2.9. Number of participants who discontinued

education prior to completion.
1.11.11.2.10.Nunniber of participants who .completed

education.
I

1.11.12. Performance Measures. The Contractor must ensure:

.1.11.12.1. Minirnum of 60% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program complete an up-to-date employment portfolio.

1.11.12.2. Minimum of 75% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program, receive
financial literary services based on the strengths and needs of
the participant identified on their financial literacy assessment,
completed at the time they started with NHEP, including
subsequent training in this .area to date.

1.11.12.3. Minimum of 80% of participants who enroll iri the Post TANF
Program, including those in the Disregard Pilot Program; receive
contact and services from their Career Counselor on a bi-weekly
basis;'pr.at a minimum of monthly. ,

•  1.11.12.4. Minimum of 70% of Post TANF Program participants maintaining
employment. Second Quarter after exit from NHEP.

1."11.12.5. Minimum of 70% of participants enrolled in the Post TANF
Program maintain employment for the Post TANF.Program year,
Fourth Quarter after exit from NHEP.

1.11.12.6. Rate of TANF Program recidivism of Post TANF-■Program-
participants is 20% or less.

1.11.12.7. Minimum of 10% of participants who enter Post TANF .Program
.without an.occupational skills training credential/post-secondary
degree/license 'will obtain an occupational skills training
credential/post-secondary degree/license while in the program.

1.12. Background Checks

1.12.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under"this
Agreement, the Contractor rnust ensure that said individual has
undergone:

1  t.n

1.12.1.1. A criminal background check, -at the Gbritractor's
expense, and has no convictions for crirries^that

RFP.2p24-OES-p7.STREN-p2 B-2.0 ■; Cpnlfaclprlnitials.
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represent evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement:

■1.12.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to
RSA 161-F:49, with resujts indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement; and

.1-12.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to
RSA 169-C:35, with results indicating no evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement.

1.13. Confidential Data

1.13.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit as

V. . referenced below.

1.13.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon
Department request. j..

"N

1.14. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.14.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Deparfrnerit
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment ' (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal[s)/website(s) .or Department
system(s)/applicalion(s)/web porta!(s)/website{s) hosted by the
Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum", the following:

1.14.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored:
1.14.1.-2.- Who wili haveaccess to Pll;
1.14.1 .'S;- How Pll will be used in the system;

RFP.20244jES-07-STREN-02 "8.2.0 " Contractor Initials
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1.14.2.

■1.14.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked;
■  " and

1.14.1''.5. Privacy practices.
The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pll.

1.15. Department bwned Devices, Systems and Network Usage
.1.15.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information

Security Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this
Agreement, authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office to use a Department issued device (e.g. computer, tablet,
mobile telephone) or access the Department network In the fulfilment
of this Agreement, must: . . - -

■  1.15.1.1. Sign- and abide by applicable Department'and New
Hampshire Department of Information Technology (NH
DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedures
and guidelines, and complete applicable trainir^gs as
required;

1.15.1.2. Use the information that they have perrriission to access
solely for conducting official Department business and
agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including, but not limited, to personal or other private and
non-Department use, and that at .no time shall they
access or attempt to access information .without having
the express authority of the Department to do so; -

1.15.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures,
and/or agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.15.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license; modify, reverse
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and at all times must
use utmost care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in accordance with the license or any other
agreement executed by the Departmerif;

1.15.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s)
authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office or designee;
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1.15.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office or designee;

1.15.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication
messages created, sent, and received on a Department-
issued email system are the property of the Department
of New Harripshire and to be used for business purposes
only. Email Is defined as "internal email systems" or
"Department-funded email systems."

1.15.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH
DolT policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.15.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.15.1.9.1.To only use a Department email address
assigned to them with a
affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov";

1.15.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines Information
,  - - .identifying the End User as a non-Departrnent

workforce member; and
it

1.15.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is,
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message
■' may contain information that is privileged and

.  confidential and is intended only for the use of
the individual(s) to whom it is addressed. If you
receive this message.in error, please notify the

H  sender immediately and delete this electronic
message and any attachments from your

■  system. Thank you for your cooperation."

1.15.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email,
access or pdteiitial access to Confidential Data, and/or a
workspace in a.'Departrnent building/facility, must:'\

1.15.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual
Information Security & Compliance
Awareness Training prior to accessing,
viewing, handling, hearing, or' transmitting
Department Data or Confidential'Data.

1,.15,i.10,^: Sign the Department's Business Use and'
Confidentiality Agreement and As^ojjJse
Agreement, and "the NH polT Deoa^ent ■

RFP-2024-DES-07-STReN-q2 8-2.0 Conlraclor Jrttials —

SoirthernNewHampshire Services. IfK. _Pa9al8of26 Date ^726/2024



DocuSign Envelope 10; 89EeA99O-78B3-4AC8-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

,  OocuSign Envelope ID; 9A56653B-1P11-4737-AO40-229444BB1SBE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

wide Computer Use Agreement upon
execution of the Agreement and annually
thereafter.

1.15.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view
the Department's Policies and Procedures
and Information Security webpages.

1.15..1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in
violation of any of the above terms and conditions, said
End User may face removal from the Agreement, and/or
criminal and/or civil prosecution, if the act constitutes a
violation of law.

1.15.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of
three business days prior to any upcoming transfers o;

,  terminations of End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges.
If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badges or who have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees
to notify the Department's Information Security Office or
designee immediately.

1.15.2. Workspace Requirement

1.15.2.1. If applicable, the Department will-work with Contractor to
-r- determine requirements for providing necessary

•  workspace and State equipment for its End Users.

1.5.2 The Contractor must utilize the Department's State-owned loaned assets to
expand upon their personnel's ability to perform the scope of work outlined
in Exhibit's - Scope of Services. The loaned assets are outlined in Exhibit
B-l Department Loaned Asset Inyentory, which is attached fiereto and,
incorporated by reference herein. The Contractor agrees to the following
terms regarding the use of loaned assets: ,

•  . 1.5.2.1 Assets to be Used bv User: Subject to the terms and conditions

of this Agreement, the Department agrees to provide to User
with the Assets listed on Exhibit B-1 Department Loaned Asset
Inventory, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. This is a non-transferable right for the User to

■■use, the Assets. The type of asset and quantity deployed will be
determined jointly, by the' Contractor and the Departrnent. An
Asset inventory reflecting the deployed Assets will be managed
by the Department with input and validation by the Contractor
arid will be updated as :needed for asset managemehf^'the '

RfP-2024-OES-O7-STREN-02 0-2.0 Contrectof Initials'^*-—
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duration of this Agreement.

1.5.2.2- The Contractor agrees to use and operate the assets only in
conjunction with the business use stated herein for
administration of the Exhibit B - Scope of Services, unless
otherwise agreed upon by mutual written consent, and with
written exception approval by the Department's Information
Security or Deputy Information Security Officer.

1.5.2.3 The Contractor agrees the terms and conditions of the entire
Agreement apply to the loaried assets as well.

1.5.2.4 The Contractor agrees the loaned assets will not be taken out of
the contiguous United States nor will remote software be used
to remote into the device from outside the contiguous United
States. !

1.5.2.5 The Contractor acknowledges the assets ̂\\\ be provided with
specific standard Microsoft software identified on Exhibit B-1
Department Loaried Asset Inventory. The Contractor agrees it
will not purchase for or install software In the loaned asset. If
non-standard software is required, the Contractor and the
Department's Division of Economic Stability's Information
Services Lead will work with the Department's Security Office to
obtain appropriate approvals 'and security reviews prior to
software/application procurement and installation.

1:5.2.6 The Contractor acknowledges the Department's Security Office
and NH DolT will provide technical assistance or IT support in
association with the use of the assets. New HEIGHTS System
technical team, the system contractor, arid/or NH Departriient of
Ihformatipn Technolpgy (DolT) will provide technical assistance

■  or IT support for the use of the system as applicable.

1.5.2.7 The Contractor understands the loaned assets may be replaced
by the Department or NH DqlT over the life of the Agreement
and agrees to comply with requirements to return and receive
new devices as directed by the Department and/or NH DolT.

■  1.5.2.8 The Contractor understands and agrees that the Department
retains ownership of the loaned assets and will return them to
the Department in good working condition within thirty (30) days
of contract termination, inclusive of any arnendrnents to extend

*  the contract term.

1.16. Upon termination of the Agreement the assets will be returned to the
Department's Informatiori Security Office and the data preserved per the-terms
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3/26/2024
Soulhom Nw HafnpsWre.Sorvlcos. Inc.. Page 20 of 26 Date



OocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC6-BBD3-01B3E14245F0

.  DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A56853B-lFll^737-AO40-229444Bai5BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT B

and conditions .of the Agreement and, if applicable, the Contract End-of-Life
Transition plan. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.16.1. General Requirements

1.16.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration, of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from
the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the
Services previously performed by the Contractor for this
section the. new Contractor^ shall be known, as-
"Recipient"). Ninety:(90) days prior to the end-of the
contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin working with ttie Department

c;: and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the
DTP template to the Contractor.

.1.16.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in connection with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users' to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure-transfer of records
(electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data

V  " (electronic and hard copy), the transition- of any sUch
Service from the- hardware, software, network and

_  . .telecommunications equipment and internet-related
■information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT
Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.-

1.16.1.3; If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or
software, licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, and/or store Departmerit Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be" inventoried
and returned to the Department, along with'the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

1.16.1.4.J The internal planning of the Transition Services, by the
Contractor, and its End Users shall be provided to the '
Department and if applicable the Recipient in |a-tj^ely
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manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1.16.1.5. Should the data Transition, extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements, and if applicable, the

■: , Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is
accepted as complete by the Department.

1.16.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Tfansition of said
data Is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will
jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.2. Completion of Transition Services

.  1.16.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the
Recipient in acoDrdance with the mutually agreed upon

.  Transition plan, unless within said l^buslness day term
the Contradtor notifies the Department of an Issue,
requiring additional tjme to complete said product. .

1.16:2.1 Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the
>, Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the

terrris and conditions of the Department's information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.16.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Result's
1.16.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the

.results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the
lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product or.at any time during the data Transition process.
The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken to
resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is. riot
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to

^  i ■ initiate actions in accordance with the Agreement.
1.'17. .Website and Social Media ^os
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1.17:1. The Contractor must work with the Department's Communications
Bureau to ensure that any social media or website designed,
created, or managed on behalf of the Department meets all
Department and NH DolT website and social media requirements
and policies.

1.17.2. The Contractor agrees Protected Health" Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), or other Confidential
Information solicited either by social media or the website that is
maintained, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unless

. expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of
PHI, Pll, or other Confidential Information is subject to the terms of

■  the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit, the
Business Associate Agreement signed by the parties, and all
applicable Department and federal law, rules, and agreements.
Unless specifically required by .the Agreement and unless clear

.  notice is provided to users of the website or social media, the
Contractor agrees that site visitation must not be tracked,.disclosed
or used for website or social media analytics or marketing.

1.17.3. State of New Hampshire's Website Copyright

1.17.3.1. All right, title and interest in the State WWW site, including
copyright to .all Data and'information, shall remain with the
State of New Hampshire. The Slate of New Hampshire
shall also retain all right, title and interest in any user
interfaces and computer instructions embedded within the
WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other-Data or
information shall, where applicable, display the State or
New Hampshire's copyright.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirerrients, which^
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements. ■' ■

2.3.- The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information m
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 .CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.. (HIPAA) of 1996, and 'in
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

■  k
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3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future stale or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

^ 3.2.1. The Contractor must submit:

3.2.1.1. A detailed description of the language assistance'
services,-within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of the
Agreement,,to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or .services to individuals with limited
English proficiency;'individuals who are deaf or have ,
hearing loss; individuals who are blind or-have low

vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.2.1.2. A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective Date
of the Agreement and annually thereafter, that -all
personnel involved the provision of services to
individuals under this Agreement have completed,

"* within the, last 12 months, the Contractor Required
. Training Video on Civil Rights-related Provisions in
DHHS Procurement Processes, which is accessible on
the Departnient's website
(https://www.dhhs.hh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civiI-
right-compiiance-dhhs-vendors); and

3.2.1.3. The Departments Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist within ten (10) days of the Effective;Date of
the Agreement. The Federal Civil Rights Compliance
Checklist iriust have been completed within the last 12
months and is accessible on the Department's website

y;: (https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business'-dhhs/civil-'
right-compliance-dhhs-vendprs).

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership'

3.3.1. Alj dpcuments, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, ,"The
preparation of lhis-(repprt, document etc.) was financed an
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Contract with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human

*' Services."

3-3-2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreenient must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. the Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials-produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3,. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters. . ,

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. in the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
■■ ^ must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of fedecal, slate,

county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental

.  license or permit must be required for.the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor'\vill procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection ;wlth the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants ̂nd agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must'corhply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and'must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-Iay/s ,and
■regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physioafodata
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evidencing and reflecting ali costs and other expenses incurred by the
. Contractor in the performance of the Contract/and all income received
or coilected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect-all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,

. requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of In-kind contributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to alt reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from'the Contractor

4.2.

4.3.

'.'K ■
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'  Attachment I -NHEP ETS Aciiviiies Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

Employment <& Training Support (ETS) Services

The following information is intended for use by the NHEP Employment Counselors when authorizing ETS
services for eligible clients, using New HEIGHTS and Bridges systems for active participants.

If ETS services are funded by the Contractor for the Post TANF Program, adhere to the following guidelines.

Bridges/New HEIGHTS Activities Interface

.  New HEIGHTS..SYSTEM . • . . .BRIDGES- . . ,

ACTIVITY CODE- •ACTIVITY
-.1

CODE ALLOWABLE

SERVICE .
ABE/GED Contract AB Education 02 01-17

ABE/GED Non-Contract . GE Education 02 01-17

AWEP AW AWEP 08 01-07, 10-18
AWEP Concurrent A1 AWEP 08 01-07, I0-I8.'
Barrier Resolution BR Barrier Resolution JO 01.06,07. 16, 17, 19
CWEP (Community Service) OS CWEP 13 01-07, 10-18
CWEP Concurrent .  CI CWEP 13 01-07, 10-18
Etnploymenl ' ' EM Employment 01 01-07, 10-17
Employment 1st Concurrent El Employment 01 01-07, 10-17
Employment 2nd Concurrent E2 Employment 01 01-07, 10-17
English as a Second language EN Education 02- 01-17

English as a Second language Concurrent Nl Education 02 01-17

Family intervention FI Job Readiness 10 01,06, 07, 16. 17..19
High School ■ HS Education 02 01-17

HomeCare Works HC OJT 07 01-17

Job Readiness JR Job Readiness 04 01-07, 10-17
Job Search v.. JS - Job Search 06 ,01-07, 10-17
OJT OJ OJT 07 01-17

Posl-Secondary Education PS Post-Secondary 05 01-17

Self-Employment ■  SE EmployjTient 01 01-07, 10-17 ■

Self-Ernploymcm Concurrent SA Employment 01 01-07, 10-17
Single Course sc Single Course 09 01-17 .

Single Course Concurrent "* ■  SI Single Course 09 01-17

Vocaljpnal Educational Training CT Vocational Skills 03 01-17 >r.^.

Training
Workplace Success (CWEP) JC CWEP 13 01-07, 10-17
Work-place Training - Secondary activity offered at ;
Ihc Workplace Success OR any other secondary
Iraining program. ^

TO •Single Course

1

09 01-17
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DHHS/Diyision of Economic & Housing Siability
NHEP

Bureau of Employmcni Supports'
Last revised; 5.31.19

Attachment I - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

• TANF Cash must be open, client must be enrolled in the Work Program, and meeting participation to receive ETS services
• All requests for ETS services must be preapproved by the ECS
• All ETS services must be authorized in the activity requiring the service
• Providers must submit bill no more than 90 days after ETS Service end date
• Transportation is the only ETS that can span two fiscal years

Service Code and Type
Payment Method
Form U

Requirements Service Codes Group
General Limits

Time Limits
■0.1 Child Care Registration
PROVIDER : .

'255- ■ ;■ '

•lAuthorize under case head Rip #
.• Cannot be used for fi rst week of CC' • >
• Onc*-tinic payment pef. child 'pcr provider per SPY

01-05"
Combined^ S500 SF.V

Iiidividiial- None
2 month, ! SFV

02 Education/Training
PROVIDER

-2'55'

01-05
Combined- $500 SFY

Indlyidual- None*
2 months I SFY

03 Books & Supplies .
PROVIDER
255 -

01-05
i Combined- $500 SFY

Individual.- None
2 month, 1 SFY

04 Uniforms
PRO\nDER
255

• Must t^e used for. uniforms only • . .
*• Must complete C.lDlhing Request Approval Form 2'74T-

01-05
Gombincd- $500 SFY-

Individual- None
2 month, ISFY

05 Tools of iheTradc.
provider

'255'

01.-05
Combined- $500 SFY

Individual- None
2 month, l.SFY

06 Auto Repair
BOTH
255 * •

T

• Must be dcteritiincd the auto is necessary to participate in NHEP
• Copy of valid driver's l.iccnse/auio i;egis,tration rnust be on fi le
• Review written estimate of the cost of repairs frotn an auto repair

business to include;
•  Name, address and phone//of ihe'busincss u

.Itemized list of repairs including parts, labor, and associated costs
necessary to make the vehicle functional and safe

/ NHEP Roadworthy Statement indicating the vehicle is worth repairing
• Vehicle triusl be registered to client, other parent in 2-parcnt case,
or dependent child
(Written csllmflic must be submitted In ndvanec of senlce being provided c.vcep't
In.nn emergency where the vehicle requires towing.)

06
$500 SFY

2 month,'1 SFY

07 Transportation ?
;CLIEiNr
■256

t  ' '."i '

07.&'17
Combined- SJOO/mo":

12 month, 2 SFY
'il7 Piibiic/PrivateCarrier
iPROVIDER
-256A. . ■ h'

;• Can'be'nuilti-rideormonthiy pass 07&,I7
'Combined- $l60/mo:.

'4 month, I'SFV
08 Tuition
PROVIDER ^
257

• Used for: Post-Secondary Education, or Vocational Training
• Before authorizing, The ECS ihusl receive: ^

the name of tlic program,
proof of enrollment,

$1575 SFY
6 month, 1 SFY

'i
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4  . Attachment 1 - NHEP ETS Activities Interface in New HEIGHTS & Bridges

08 Tuition (com.)
PROVIDER

257

^ the class schedule, and
/ the expected start and end dates.

• Education & Training Assessment Checklist must be completed
• Vocational assessment must have been completed and

program match career goals
• All other sources of funding (PELL Grants, WIOA funding etc.)

must have been exhausted

$1575 SFV

6 month, 1 SFV

10. Auto Insurance

BOTH

255

• May be billcd priof to.'scrvlce" provided
• Aiiio insurancc-for only the usual and customary roles, not for

higher rates due to'accidents, violations,"etc.
•.A statement of coverage &'charges from tHe provider is needed
VMusi provide a minimum of'lb months of coverage' ;
• May only.be used if auto insurance Is a condition'of emplbymcn't

10-12,14-16
Combined- $750

Individual- None

2 month, 1 SFV

ill Auto Registration • .
CLIENT

255

• May be billed prior-to'scrvjce provided

■• Client provides currerit regisiiation as an estimate of
cost or an estimate from the city clerk's office

• Client provides copy of valid drivers license
• Cannot be used for vanity plates .. > •
•. Vehicle must be registered toiclient," other'parent in 2-parent case, or

dependent child " ' ' . ■

10T2, 14-16:
Combined- S750
Individual-$350
2;month, 1 SFY

12 Driver's License Fees:
CLIENT
255

• May be billed prior t.ojscpvice provided.
• Recipient niust provide copy of the ricw license

10-32,14-16
Combincd-'$750
Individual-$90
2 month, 1 SFY

14 Work/Office clothing
BOTFI

•255

• Not for uni forms
■•'Musibe approved for activity appropriate clothing only
• Musfcomplete Clothing Request Approval.Form 274T.

10-12,14-16
Combined^ $750
Individual- S20.0
2 month, 3 SFY

, 15 Personal Care
BOTH

'.255^
'  ;.

•"Used for haircuts and personal care items' • . {/
;^(tboihpasic/tbotlibrush, deodorant; et.c.)

30-12; 34-16
Combined- $750,
Individual- $25
2 month, I SFV

.16.E/0 Other
BOTH
255

• Requires ESM approval If: '* r
?  > Auto repair exceeds S300'

5^" Incidentals (CB.C, clothing, ctc.).cxceeds $60
.• All other resources must bc'exhaiisted ^ .

I0.-32,14-i6
• Conibincd- $750
Individual-. None

2 month, I SFY

13 Dental
PROVIDER
255.

• Requires FSM approval if over $200
• All other resources must be exhausted
• Cannot be approved for Prophyjaxis or Orthodontics
• Surgery covered under Medicaid

13
$1500 SFV

4.month, 3 SFY

18 Mentor Program
(CC Solutions)
PROVIDER
255 •-'

18
S800/Pr6vidcr

$1,000 SFY
2 month, 1 SFY

19 Assessment
PROVIDER
255

19
$800 SFY

2 month, 3 SFY
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Exhibit B • 1

Department Loaned Asset Inventory

Contractor Company Name:

.Full Name of Primary Contractor Point-of-Contact (POC) for Assets:

•Full Name of Department POC for Assets:

"Contractor POC Email Address: Department POC Email Address;

Contractor POC Phone Number: Department POC Phone Number

Contractor POC Office Address: Department POC Office Address:

Dell Utitude 531015,16GB DDR4 RAM, 256 SSD, LTE ,

(includes power adapter/cord, Windows 10)
-

1

Dell WD19 Docking Station (Includes power
adapter/cord)

•

Dell.P2217 Monitor (includes power cable; VGA

cable, DIsplayPbrt cable)
\

Dell Pro Briefcase

Dell KBl Wired Keyboard

Dell MSI Wired Mouse

Microsoft Office Professional
I

'fv

Soulhern N^Harnpshire Services. Inc.

RFP-2024-DES-67.STRENT02 Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Dale

fC

3/26/5624
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C
v''

■' Payment Terms

'1. This Agreement is funded by: ■
1.1. 83% Federal funds, Administration for Children and Farnilies, as

awarded on February 7. 2024, by the Department of Health and Human
Services. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program, ALN
#93.558, FAIN #22NHTANF.

1.2. 17% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2;2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332. .
3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures

incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-2
Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth {15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

t,*.

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with.
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services. .

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable .to the
Department. ■

4.3.V Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs .incurred in the
previous rnpnth.

^  4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs including, tirrie
sheets, payroll records, receipts- for purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable. The Contract shall provide the supporting

. documentation:

4.4.1. *With each invoice unless otherwise determined by the
Departmerit,

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the department with the supportirig
..documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. js assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to besinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

•a: .. . ' •

Financial Manager .j
is: Department of Health and Human Services

;  ' . > '
RFP-2p24-pES-07-STREN-02 ^ C-2.1 Conlractor Initials ^^

.^ulhem New Hampshire Services. Inc. Page 1 of 3 • Dale ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic Mobility

EXHIBIT C i

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

■6. The final invoice, and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion dale specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

.  8. ,A_Odits ^

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov:if
' any of the following conditions exist: .
8.-1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

■  8.4.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.'1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Secu.rity and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submitan annual financial audit.

8.2., If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of ,2 CFR Part 200, Subparl F of the Uniforrh
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit'
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. ■ The Coritractor shall subrhit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
irnplerrientation of the corrective action plan.

RFP-2024-DE$-07-STREN-02

Southorh New Ham^Nre Services, Iik:.

C-2.1

Page 2 ol 3

(iConlractor Inilials^—'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Strengthening Citizens and Businesses for Economic WIobility

EXHIBIT C

8.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120

•  days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, maybe required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits.perfonmed by an independent CPA upon request.

8.5. ■ In addition to, and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood arid agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which, exception has been taken, or which have been
disallovyed because of such an exception.

RFP-2024-DE^07-STREN-02 , .

SoLithem Nev/Hampshire Services, Inc.

C-2.1

Page 3 of 3

Contractor Initials

Dale
3/26/2024
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EiNblC-l 8ido«t

Ntw HaniptMr* OvpartnMnt o< Htatth and Human Sarvteai

Contractor Mama: inc.

Budget Rcqueit lor: 5iranp(7>onii(| Cubans and SusinMaM tor f«onomi;Mo04it)r r ConoorOd Laoonia Aagix ,

BudgaiPariod: £lf9af<^GiCtpp'WtllfinvgttJun9 30.!0K ,
Indirect Cost Rala (1'appllcabla) 6.90%

•  ' i ^

■  Line item
Program Cost • Funded by DHHS • SFY

24 "
Program Cost • Funded .by OHKS - SFY

25

Program Coat • Funded by DHHS • SFY
,28

1. Salary & Wage*. 537.082 5382,752 5373.285

2. Fnnga BarrctiU S2S.454 5148.824 5184.440

3. Consuliants $0 50 50

4. Equipmeru
MIract eosi rate cannoi be appfiad lo equipman* coals par 2 CPA
200.1 artf Appendu IV n 2 CFR 200.

>0 50 SO

5.(a) Supplies - Educational 50 50 50

S.(b) Supplias • Lab 50 50 50

5.(0} Supplies - Pliarmacy ' •50 50 T  SO

5.(d) Supplies • Madteal SC 5C 5C

S.la) Suppbes - Onice 52.000 5430C 53.000

S. Travel 52.000 57.587 58.072
7. Soitware i  50 SC 50

S. (a) Oiner ■ hUAeilngrCcmmunicairens 51.000 51.000 5500
5. (l>| Other • Educadon and TraMng 50 52.00C - 50
a. (e) Oiiiar • Other Ispodfy below) 50 50 50
ueevpsncy .  512.411 549.644 549,844

£mptoyme/t Training Servhci 510.250 548.750 580.000

uaCds/ mtwtrtea 5340 •  . , 50 SO

Ttttphont 51.431 58.901 $8,895

Uinar (pfaasa apaafy) ■SO 50 50
CXAer (pttM speed)'} 50 50 50
cimar (please tptcny} 50 50 v  50

9. Subrecipleni Contracts 50 $0 50

Total Orect Costs 5l17.9«a 5632.059 $687,838

Total indiraa Costs 510.070 557.748 560.176

Subiotait 5128.038 '  5689.807 $748,012
lOlAL --- - . t. 11.545^97 . - . - .

RFP-202«-OES-07-STftEM-02

. Cofttaeur Mtiab
d
3/26/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D- Federal Requirements

1,-

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

r  ' The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L -100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et'seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12ofth0GeneralProvisionsexecutethefollowingCertific3tion;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS -

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES' - CONTRACTORS

v: US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS • . ■ . "

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will mairitairi a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by Inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Departrhent in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the cetlification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is .placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension, of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner ^
NH Department of Health and Human Services
•129 Pleasant Street ' .

-  Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and,specifying the actions that will be taken against.employees for violation of such
prohibition; • '

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about.

1,2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
m

.  1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1 ;2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplacer

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by.the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writirig of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminajj^rug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sucfTayiviction;

''.vl 6/23 7' Exhibit D Contractor's Initials 7~
fr Federal Requirements Date^^^5^55Z

Page 1 of .10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an.employee or otherwise receiving.actual notice of such conviction.

;• Employers of convicted employees-must provide notice. Including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

.. 1:6.'1'. Taking appropriate personnel action against such-an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation progfarh approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcenient, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor rnay insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

(  .f

v16/23 Exhibit D • Contractor's Initials
Federal Requirements Date^Z??^7^^^

Page 2 of 10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

'N

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foilowino
Certification': ^

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT-OF EDUCATION -.CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): •
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI .
•Child Care Development Block Grant under title IV

■The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge'and belief, that:

1. No Federalappropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of '
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

/■ - t

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person" for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
ari officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor) the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying
in accordance with its instructions, see htlps://orTibTeporl/icr/2pi009-0348-022/doc/20388401

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cdoperative.agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly!

This certification is a riiaterial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for riiaking or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure. '

3.

6/23 ExhibilD.
Federal Requirements

.Rage 3 of 10
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SECTION C: CERTIFtCATlON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identiHed.in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive-Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Oebarment, Suspensiori, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;-

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification requlr^ below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
l>e considered in connection with the NH Depaitment of Health and Human Services' (DHHSj
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish.a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other rernedles'
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective prirtfary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed •
circumstances. .

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." 'lower tier covered
transaction." "participant." "person," 'primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily'exclud^," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

T Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See •
v  https:/Avww.govinfp.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol.1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

1

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
'  ,• covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered

^  -transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
f'' ' from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

?'• 7. The prospective prirriafy participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
■ clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibillty and Voluntary Exclusion ■
Lower Tier'Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered

i- transactions and in all solicitations fprlower tier-covered transactions.-

8. :A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a cedification of a prospective participarit'in a
;iower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
)from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide ttie method and frequency by which it delermines the eligibility of its principals. Each'
participant may, but is notjequired to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)._.
https://www.ecfr.goy/currentytitle-22/chapter-V/part-513.
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which |s normally possessed by a prudent
person in (he ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this trarisactlon, in
addKion to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may-terminate this
transaction for cause or default.-

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ■

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11 r2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of
' or had a'civil judgment rendered against them for commissiori of fraud or a criminal offense

in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain.-or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violatlori of Federal or Stale
antitrust sialules or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise crirhinally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, ,Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph

!  (I)(b) of this certification; and
11.4. Have not within, a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had'one or more

public transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated'for cause or default.

j12,. Where (he prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prosp^tive participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOyVER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS /
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier

participant, as defined i,n 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge arid belief that It and
its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach ah explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by subrriitting this proposal (Agreement) that It
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier'Covered.Transactions," without modification in all lower.tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contraclor Idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees.by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal ,
requirements, which rnay Include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200). ■

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of'1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or In the delivery of services or benefrts. on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;-

3. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002: (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which.adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the'Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federial financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in'any program or
activity);

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal
. financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the •
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity:

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

7^ The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86). which'prohibits *
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1976 (42_U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not, include
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (iJ.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations r: Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Erriployment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures): Executive Order No. '13279 (equal'.protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental isrinciples
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Departmerit of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistjeblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 ahd The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot
Program for Entiancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants
and.contracts.

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-767,1q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials ̂
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters.

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in Instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100!000 that involve the employment of

. mechanics or laborers must Include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704. as
f  . supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). •

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contractor Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that 'funding agreement.* the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401. "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements." and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

*. it '*

the certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
.against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Hum^an Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified iri Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification; -i:

■  1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to complywith the provisions
indicated above.
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care. -
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan.-or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to.children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of. facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
trealmenl.-Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity. ,

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contiector agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the ProrChildren Act
of 1994. •

r>v'
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFpA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
t *

7. • Location of the entity

8. Pririciple place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information Is.ngt already available through ref)Orting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit.FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or avyard amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera] Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification: '{■

The below named Contractor agrees to'provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. . . f-

v1'6/23 .. . Exhibit D Contractor's
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-• FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true arid accurate.

HLN3BCYOOVM3 *
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or nx)re of your ennual gross reveriue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here .
If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

•Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities-
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U,S,C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here' ;
If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five mosi highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Contractor Name: southern New Hampshire Services inc

3/26/2024

Date:

-OMuSIOMdby:

Nam^Ryan^^louthier

Chief operating sofficer
r y-V-''''
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A. Definitions ,

The foiiowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure;'
.. unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to

■ situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable Information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health information," Breach-
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data' means' all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, .public
assistance benefits, and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
■  the State of NH ̂ created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the coursis of performing contracted services
-*of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This inforrhation includes, but Is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financiaf Information
'(PFI), Federal Tax,Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers.(SSN). Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstrearh user; etc..) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security poficy,
whicti includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data; unwanted disryption.or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for .the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
fifmware. or .software characteristics withjsut the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, Incidents include the loss of data through theft;or device misplacement, loss

Conlraclor Initials
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or misplacement' of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction. , ,

"7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an operi network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

.  8., "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information,which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

' information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked'

<  or linkabjie to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy, Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

•c' t'

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Proteded Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart.C, and'amendments
'thereto.

12; "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

,not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that iS' accredited by the
American National Standards Institute. ^

I. RESPONSIBI.UTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
•  y

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain .or transmit Confidential Inforrhatlon
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, ofHcers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transiriit PHI in any manner that would, constitute a violation

'of the Privacy and .Security Rule.

•OS

. ft
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2..~The Contractor rfiust not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure. .

3. If .DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be" bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terrfis of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtainetd under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized'representatives of
,  DHHS for the purpose of inspecting" to confirm compliance with the terms of this

Contract.

II. ' METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA '

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing.Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's encryption,
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet,

;2. Corriputer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as.a method of transmitting DHHS

■  data..

3. Encrypted Email! End User may orilyemploy email to transmit Confidential Data if email
Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to recelve.such information.

4, Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential .Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be usOd and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site. ' '

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such,as Dropbox or Google Cloud.Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

6, 'Ground ..Mail Service. End User may only jransmit.Confidential Data via ceiiified ground
rnail within the contiriental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

■  7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Corifidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

-M

.  ft
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8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via ah open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.'

10. SSH File'Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End

User is employing ah SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletioh cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confideritial Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this'
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenvise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must: • •

A. Retention

The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data • collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the.United

Stated This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud, computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster, Recovery locations.

.2. Tfie Contractor agrees-to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

13. The Contractor.agrees to provide.security awareness and educatiori for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

,4. the Contractor .agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

6. The Contractor agrees iConfidential Data stored in a\Cloud must be in a
■ FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All seri/ers and devices must have
currently-supported, -and hardened operating systerns, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as'
a whole, must have aggressive'intrusipn-detectipn and firewall protection..
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D.I^HS Informatjon Security Requirements

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation .with the Slate's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its sub
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or .contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and oV disaster recovery
operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be render^ unrecoverable via a secure wipe program.in
accordance with jndustry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzatibn, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Departrnent of
Commerce. The .Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data'has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, ' regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Coritractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, wilhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract.
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

a.'' ' •

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract-,
■  Contractor agrees to ,completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means

of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES. FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, arid any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1.- The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to.protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed", and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
infprrnation throughout the' information lifecycle, where .applicable, (from creation,

'transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). . .

Contractor Initials
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate, authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable..

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum rhatch those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department .to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access

•  being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.'103. the Contractor .will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9.. The Contractor will work with the Departmerit at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the. survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that rhay
occur over the life' of the Contractor engagement. The suryey will be completed
annually..or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
sCo'pe of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes..

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Departrnent data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office,leadership
rnember,within the Department.

11. Data'Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shajl make
efforts to investigate the causes of the ..breach, promptly take measures to prevent

.Contractor Inliiats
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future breach and minimize^any. damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response.and recovery from

the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes'and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.p.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually Identifiable health information and as-applicable

.  underStatejaw. ■

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements .established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://vww.nh,gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of jnformatiori Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

I .*

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify, the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of.any security'bfeach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential Jnfprrnatioh breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that

.  connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the. Confidential Data obtained" under this Contract
-to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform'their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. compjy with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this.Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. saf^uard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFtare encrypted and password-protected.

-D»
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d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
Information.

e. limit disciosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable

,  • data derived from-DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
aswellasnon-dutyhours{e.g.. door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable Information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at.rest, or when stored
' on portable media.as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data" must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

1. unders.tand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. 'End Users will keep their credential information secure.,
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA, and,other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in.
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. i§§ '431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's proc"edures must also address how the Contractor will:

rt. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-S?;

Conlractor Inilists
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification niethods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and

' bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as applicable,

in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI, PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B. ;

DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Conlractor Initials
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT -

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement"), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as d^ned herein, shall be referred to'as the "Business Associate!" The State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. "Department" shall be referred
to as the 'Covered Entity." The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as "the
parties."

The parties agree, to comply'with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle P. Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 (JSC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Sul3stance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws.and regulations may be amended from time to time,

(1) Definitions

a. Thefollowing terms shall,have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act. a~hd Part 2, as they may be amended from lime to time:

' "Breach." "Designated Record Set," "Data Aggregation," Designated Record
Set," "Health Care Operations," "HITECH Act." "Individual," 'Privacy Rule,"'
"Required by law," "Security Rule," and "Secretary."

,b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreernent
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable. Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

C; "Constructively Identifiable," means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient.to identify an individual who is a.subject of
the information.

' d. "Protected Health Information" ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the" BAA,
means" protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or'on behalf
of Covered Entity, and ipcludes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record" means any patient "Record," relating to a "Patient." and "Patient
Identifying Information," as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders" protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is -
developed :or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services,
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including'^byMw.t'

Exhibit F
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limited to all Its'directors. ofTicers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transrhit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

b.' Business Associate may use or disclose PHI. as applicable:

i. For the proper management,and administration of the.Business Associate;

II. As required by law, according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;

•  III. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
Entity; and

V,' Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
lagreement with'the third parly or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate-shall not. disclose any PHI In response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI, If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure.-

• the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and- shall
... ' cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to

contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicalple
relating to i^art 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3) -Qbliaations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI In accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
.and Security Rule with regard.to electronic PHI, and Part 2. as applicable.

b. ' 'The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer at the following email address, OHHSPrivacyOfficer(S)dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or-disclosure not provided for.by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or' compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvefteht or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

c. In[the event of a'breach. the Business Associate shall comply with the terrns of this
Business Associate Agreement, ail applicable state and federal laws and
regulations.and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Buslness.Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
availatsle at -the time it' .becomes aware of any known or suspected privaey-cof

■  Exhibit F I fC
Contractor Initials ^ ■

Busirtess Associate Agreement
Page 2 of 5 3/26/2024

V2.0



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89EBA99D-78B3-4AC8tBBD3-01B3E14245F0

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A58853B-1FlV-4737-AD40-2294^BB15BE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human

Exhibit F

security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to;

I. The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;-

II. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information: ;

llj. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How 'the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
hasbeen mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its Incident or breach Investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered "Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.

f.. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
■ books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services! for purposes of determining the
Business Associate's and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in "writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
'  Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices

all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms' of the BAA and the
Agreement. ' -t.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j.. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated
Record ;Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered,
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered •
Entity to fulfil! its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I, ■ Withihteh (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enlity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to' [PHTSf
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. (n the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associatis shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

-n. Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or aeated or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the. Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platfonn.

VI. If return or destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise, agreed to ip the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
ofthe Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such .
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been,
destroyed. v

jA) Qbliaations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
V, on the Covered Entity's website:

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaa/publJCations.htm'in accordance with 45 CFR
Sectio.n 164.520.

b; Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by,Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR
Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

'  c. Covered entity shall promptly notify. Busines's Associate of any restrictions on the
use or, disclosure of PHI-that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that'such restriction mjy affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination of Agreement for Cause

a. Ir) addition to the General, Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide ah
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous , '

a. Definitions. Laws, and Regulatory References. Ail Taws and regulations
Exhibit F
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from lime to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b. Change in law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to'tak'e such action
'  as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate

to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on.behatf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation • The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA arid the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
persoh{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can .be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable. .

f. Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and

, (3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
-  {P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA. v

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement. ""

Department of Health and Human Services . Southern ,New Hampshire Services inc

The State Name of the Contractor

t>»cu8l9n#d by: DocuSlgn ^

|£t|(UA- (Jjn/ikiur
Signature of Authorized Representative Signature 'of Authorized Representative

Karen Hebert Ryan clouthier

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

• Division Director Chief Operating Officer

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

3/26/2024 3/26/2024 i:

Date Date.
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